Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. CLIENT AGREEMENT

(APRIL-2023)

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Table of Contents

PAR	T: A GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITION	4
2.	Introduction	4
3.	Definitions	4
4.	Risk Disclosure	12
5.	Risk Warning Notice	13
6.	Supplemental Risk Warning Notice	16
7.	The Scope Of This Agreement	19
8.	Currency of Accounts and Conversions	21
9.	Corporate Actions and other events affecting Underlying Instruments	22
10.	Representations and Warranties	23
11.	Market Abuse	23
12.	Manifest Error	24
13.	Events outside Our Control and Market Disruption Events	25
14.	Events of Default/Insolvency	26
15.	Your Right to Cancel	28
16.	Privacy and Data Protection	28
17.	Intellectual Property	30
18.	Website and System Use	32
19.	Limitation of Liability	33
20.	Tax	34
21.	Amendments and Termination	35
22.	General Provisions Relating to the Agreement	36
23.	Notices	36
24.	Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Language	37
25.	Supplemental Terms	37
26.	Communication	39
27.	Server log file	40
28.	Force majeure	41
29.	Notice Regarding MetaTrader	41
30.	Supplemental Terms	42
31.	Software and Technology	44
32.	Liability and Indemnity	44

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

33.	Scalping	45
34.	Banned/Prohibited Jurisdictions	46
35.	Negative Balance Protection	47
36.	CFDs in Crypto currencies	47
37.	Introducer	48
38.	Introducer's Right and Responsibilities	48
39.	General Information	54
40.	Account Information	55
41.	Miscellaneous	57
PART B	: CLIENT ORDER AND TRADING PLATFORM	58
42.	Client money	58
43.	Types of Accounts	61
44.	Client orders and transactions	61
45.	Trade Price	64
46.	Closing Trades	65
47.	Rollover	66
48.	Orders Rules	66
49.	Commissions, charges, and other costs	68
50.	Margin Requirement	69
51.	Margin Close Out Level	71
52.	Statements, Contract Notes and Portfolio Reconciliation	72
53.	Deposites and Withdrawals	73
54.	Netting and Set Off	76
55.	Leverage Modification	77
56.	Pending orders	78
57.	Trade and Order Execution Policy	79
58.	Trading Tools	82
59.	Inactive Client account	84
PART C	: CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY	86
60.	Conflicts of Interest Policy	86
PART D): PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT PLATFORM	90
61.	Portfolio Management Platform	90
PART E	: SOCIAL TRADING	102
62.	Social Trading	102

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

PART: A GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITION

2. Introduction

Warm Welcome to Orbit Global Ltd.

At Orbit Global Ltd, we focus on two things – offering the best solution to trade in forex, and letting tradesmen keep their hard-earned cut. You can be assured that we have your best interests at heart!

These TERMS AND CONDITIONS ("Terms") set out the rights and obligations of all users ("You") regarding the use of this Orbit Global Ltd ("Company" "our" or "us") of address Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. By using any of our services on the Company's Platform, you represent and warrant that you have the authority to be bound to these Terms. If you do not agree to these terms, then you may not access or use our services.

Please read the terms thoroughly and carefully.

3. Definitions

In this Agreement the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings:

"Account" means any account that we maintain for you for dealing in the Products made available under this Agreement and in which your Cash, Margin Requirements and Margin Payments are held and to which Realized Profits and/or Losses are credited or debited.

"Activity" means placing a Trade and/or applying an Order on your Account(s) or maintaining an Open Position during the period.

"Affiliate" means in respect of a specified entity, an entity that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common control with, the specified entity.

"Agent" means an agent or representative who we agree may act for you and/or give instructions on your behalf in respect of this Agreement.

"Agreement" means the General Terms, together with the Supplemental Terms, the Application Form and Market Information. "Anti-Money Laundering ("AML") & Know Your Customer ("KYC") Legislation", when used in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, shall mean, collectively, the BVI Anti- Money Laundering Regulations 2008 (the "AML Regulations 2008"), as amended by the Anti-Money Laundering (Amendment) Regulations 2010 (the "AML (Amendment) Regulations 2010"), and the Anti-Money Laundering (Amendment) Regulations 2012 (the "AML (Amendment) Regulations 2012"), as the same may be in force from time to time and modified or amended from time to time;

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

"Application Form" means the form(s) (in paper or electronic form) which you complete to open an Account and to trade with us under this Agreement.

"Base Currency" is the currency in which your Account is denominated and in which we will debit and credit your Account.

"Business Day" means Monday through Friday, excluding any BVI public holiday.

"BVI" means the British Virgin Islands.

"BVI Rules" means the BVI Securities and Investment Business Act, 2010 (the "SIBA", or the "Act") and the BVI Regulatory Code, 2009 (the "Regulations"), (as amended) of the British Virgin Islands, all regulations, rules and statements of guidance, the Proceeds of Crime Law (as amended) of the British Virgin Islands, the Money Laundering Regulations and the guidance notes on the prevention and detection of money laundering and terrorist financing in the British Virgin Islands, each as amended, replaced, varied and/or updated from time to time.

"Cash" means a figure stated on the Trading Platform which represents the amount of cleared funds available in your Account.

"Client Management" means our customer services team.

"Client Account" shall mean the unique personalised account of the Client consisting of all Completed Transactions, Open Positions and Orders in the Trading Platform, the balance of the Client money and deposit/withdrawal transactions of the Client money.

"Conflict of Interest Management Policy", when used in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, shall mean our prevailing policy regarding conflict of interest, which is posted on our Online Trading Facility and may be supplied separately on demand; our Conflict of Interest Management Policy is a policy only, it is not part of our Terms of Business and is not intended to be contractually binding or impose or seek to impose any obligations on us which we would not otherwise have, but for the Act, the Regulations and/or the Guidelines; we reserve the right to review and/or amend our Conflict of Interest Management Policy at our sole discretion, whenever we deem fit or appropriate;

"Corporate Action" means the occurrence of any of the following in relation to the issuer of any relevant Underlying Instrument:

- (a) any rights, scrip, bonus, capitalisation or other issue or offer of shares/equities of whatsoever nature or the issue of any warrants, options or the like giving the rights to subscribe for shares/equity;
- (b) any acquisition or cancellation of own shares/equities by the issuer;
- (c) any reduction, subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of share/equity capital;
- (d) any distribution of cash or shares, including any payment of dividend;
- (e) a take-over or merger offer;

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- (f) any amalgamation or reconstruction affecting the shares/equities concerned; and/or
- (g) any other event which has a diluting or concentrating effect on the market value of the share/equity which is an Underlying Instrument.

"Client", when used in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, shall mean "you" or "your" and, in more general terms, any Person (A) who is interested in Transactions and/or Contracts, (B) who enters or has entered our Online Trading Facility, and/or (C) who has submitted to us all required Account Opening Application Form(s) – including in each instance, without limitation, an original certified unexpired government-issued identification evidencing nationality, residence and bearing a photograph (e.g., driver's licence, passport, Government residency card, or similar identification), and a valid recent official utility (water, gas, electricity, etc.), bill or bank statement, in each instance not more than three (3) months old, showing name and address, as required under any relevant "Anti-Money Laundering ("AML") & Know Your Customer ("KYC") Legislation", obligations and/or procedures applicable to us, and whom has been accepted as a customer by us in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, in the manner set forth herein, and to whom Services will be provided by us;

"Daily Financing Fee" means the charge which we apply daily to an Open Position. Details of the Daily Financing Fees are set out on our Website.

"Declarable Interest" means the prevailing level or percentage at the material time, set by law or by the stock exchange(s) or other facility upon which the Underlying Instrument is traded, at which financial or other interests in an Underlying Instrument must be publicly disclosed.

"Dispute" means any dispute between you and us which, in the sole opinion of the party notifying the other party of the dispute, is required to be subject to the dispute resolution procedure set out in clause 60.

"Events of Default" has the meaning given in clause 14.1.

"Events Outside Our Control" means any event preventing us from performing or otherwise delaying or hindering our performance of any or all of our obligations under the Agreement and which arises from or is attributable to any acts, events, omissions or accidents beyond our reasonable control including (but not limited to):

- (i) an emergency or exceptional market condition;
- (ii) compliance with any law, governmental order or regulatory requirement, or any change in or amendment to any law, regulation or rule (or in the application or official interpretation by any court, tribunal or regulatory authority);
- (iii) any act, event, omission or accident which prevents us from maintaining orderly trading or hedging activities or meeting increased margin payments with third party brokers in any market in one or more of the Underlying Instruments in relation to which we ordinarily accept Trades;
- (iv) any strike, lock-out or other industrial dispute, riot, terrorism, war, civil commotion, nuclear, chemical or biological contamination, act of God, malicious damage, accident, breakdown of equipment, fire, flood, storm, interruption of power supply, failure of a utility service or breakdown of or

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- interruption in any technology, electronic, communication or information system; and/or
- (v) the suspension or closure of any index/market/exchange/clearing house or the abandonment or failure of any factor upon which we base, or to which we may relate, Our Prices, or the imposition of limits or special or unusual terms on any such factor.

"General Terms" means these terms and conditions.

"GFD" or "Good for the Day" refers to Orders which have effect on the day on which they are given in accordance with clause

If not executed, GFD Orders will cease to have effect when cancelled in accordance with this Agreement, on the expiry of the relevant Market or if we cease to trade in the relevant Market.

"GFT" or "Good for the Time" refers to Orders which have effect until a time specified by you. If not executed, GFT Orders will cease to have effect when cancelled in accordance with this Agreement, on the expiry of the relevant Market or if we cease to trade in the relevant Market.

"OGL" has the meaning as set out in clause 7.

"OGL Materials" has the meaning as set out in clause 17.1.

"GTC" or "Good until Cancelled" refers to Orders which have effect until cancelled in accordance with this Agreement. If not executed, GTC Orders will cease to have effect when you cancel them in accordance with this Agreement, on expiry of the relevant Market, or if we cease to trade in the relevant Market.

"Guaranteed Stop Loss Order" means an instruction to execute a Trade to close an Open Position at a pre-agreed price (as agreed between us and you) and subject to the terms of clause 48.

"Insolvency Event" means, in respect of any person:

- (a) a resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding up, dissolution or administration of such person,
- (b) any bankruptcy order is made against such person,
- (c) the appointment of a receiver, administrator, manager, administrative receiver or similar officer, or if any encumbrance takes possession of or sells, all or any part of the business or assets of such person,
- (d) the making of an arrangement or composition with creditors generally or the filing with court documents or making of an application to court for protection from creditors generally, or any arrangement which has that effect, or
- (e) if the relevant person becomes insolvent or is otherwise unable to pay its debts as they become due, or any act of insolvency or event that is analogous to those set out in paragraph (a), (b), (c), or (d) of this definition applies to the person concerned.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

If the person concerned is a partnership, the occurrence of any of the events listed in this paragraph in relation to any partner shall be an Insolvency Event in relation to such person.

"Information" means such market data, news feeds and other information as we may supply or make available to you, either directly or through a third party service provider or licensor, together with any element thereof as used or processed in such a way that it can be identified, recalculated or re-engineered from or used as a substitute for such data or information.

"Introducer" means a person or firm we appoint to effect introductions of potential clients to us.

"Joint Account Holder" has the meaning given to that term in clause 40.7.1.

"Key Terms" means, with respect to a Trade, the valuation of such Trade and such other details as we deem relevant from time to time which may include the effective date, the scheduled maturity or expiry date, any payment or settlement dates, the notional value of the Trade and currenc(y/ies) of the Trade, the Underlying Instrument, the business day convention and any relevant fixed or floating rates of the relevant Trade. For the avoidance of doubt, "Key Terms" does not include details of the calculations or methodologies underlying any term.

"Limit Order" means an Order which will be executed when the price of a Market reaches a price which is more favourable to you than Our Price at the time you place the Order.

"Linked Accounts" means those Accounts which we inform you are linked for the purpose of calculating your Total Margin and/or your Trading Resource under this Agreement.

"Liquidity Provider" means a financial institution that provides executable bid and offer prices in respect of our Products from time to time.

"Long Position" means an Open Position resulting from a Trade or Trades placed to buy units of a Market at Our Offer Price.

"Losses" means any losses, claims, injuries, damages, judgments, interest on judgments, assessments, taxes, costs, fees, charges, amounts paid in settlement or other liabilities (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, costs of collection and any reasonable cost incurred in successfully defending against any claim), provided that a person's Losses will not include any injuries, costs, losses and expenses which are directly caused by the relevant person's fraud, wilful default or gross negligence.

"Malicious Code" means any computer virus, Trojan horse, worm, time bomb or similar code or component designed to disable, damage, disrupt, manipulate, amend or alter the operations of, permit unauthorized access to, or ease, destroy or modify any software, hardware, network or other technology.

"Manifest Error" has the meaning given by clause 12.1.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

"Margin Close Out Level" means the Margin Level at or below which we may close your Open Positions and take other actions to restrict your Account under clause 51.

"Margin Factor" means the percentage or number of units we set for each Market and which is multiplied by the Quantity to determine the relevant Margin Requirement.

"Margin Level" means the ratio of Net Equity (the sum of y-our Cash and Unrealized P & L) to Total Margin (expressed as a percentage). Your Margin Level is stated on the Trading Platform (and may be referred to on the Trading Platform as your "margin level" or "margin balance").

"Margin Multiplier" means the number by which a Margin Requirement is multiplied to increase the amount you are required to hold as security for a Trade.

"Margin Requirement" means the amount of money that you are required to deposit with us as consideration for entering into a Trade and maintaining an Open Position (and may be referred to on the Trading Platform as your "margin" or "required margin").

"Market" means a contract we make available which is comprised of a unique set of price information, minimum and maximum Quantity, expiry and other commercial features determined by reference to an Underlying Instrument.

"Market Counterparty" has the meaning given to such term in the BVI Rules.

"Market Disruption Event" means any of the following events:

- (a) trading in respect of the Underlying Instrument is suspended or limited for any reason whatsoever, including by reason of movements in the price of the Underlying Instrument exceeding limits permitted by the relevant exchange or limits or special or unusual terms are imposed on the trading of the Underlying Instrument by the relevant exchange;
- (b) trades which we have entered into in relation to any relevant Underlying Instrument or other relevant financial instrument are cancelled or suspended by the relevant exchange;
- (c) an unusual movement in the level of, or the unusual loss of liquidity in respect of, the Underlying Instrument or our reasonable anticipation of the occurrence of the same; and/or
- (d) the occurrence of any other event which causes a material market disruption in respect of the Underlying Instrument.

"Market Hours" means the hours during which we are prepared to provide quotes for Our Price and execute Trades and Orders in a Market, as further specified in the Market Information.

"Market Information" means an electronic document (also available in paper form upon request) located on the Trading Platform which sets out the commercial details for each Market, including but not limited to: Margin Factors, the minimum and maximum Quantity

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

and Our Spread. In the event you elect to use a third party hosting or trading application (for example, MetaTrader), information specific to such third party hosting or trading application located on the Website shall supplement the Market Information; however, to the extent there are any inconsistencies the Market Information will prevail. Note that certain components of Market Information may not be available via a mobile application and must be accessed via desktop.

"Net Equity" means a figure stated on the Trading Platform which represents the sum of your Cash and Unrealized P & L (and may be referred to on the Trading Platform as "equity" or "margin balance").

"Notices and Policies" means information we are required by law or regulation to disclose to our clients or otherwise desire to disclose, including: the Risk Warning Notice, our Trade and Order Execution Policy, our Conflicts of Interest Policy and any notices with respect to third-party trading platforms.

"Open Position" means the position in a Market created by a Trade to the extent that such position has not been closed in whole or in part under this Agreement.

"Order" means an instruction you give us to execute a Trade when the price of a Market reaches a specified price or an event or condition occurs.

"Orders Aware Margining" means a reduced Margin Requirement that applies to Trades in certain Markets which have attached Stop Loss or Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders.

"Our Address" means Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands.

"Our Bid Price" means the lower of two prices we quote for each Market.

"Our Offer Price" means the higher of the two prices we quote for each Market.

"Our Price" means Our Offer Price and Our Bid Price for each Market.

"Our Spread" means the difference between Our Bid Price and Our Offer Price.

"Portfolio Data" means the Key Terms in relation to all outstanding Trades between you and us in a form and standard that is capable of being reconciled. The information comprising the Portfolio Data for Portfolio Data Delivery Date will be prepared as at the close of business BVI time on the immediately preceding Business Day.

"Portfolio Data Delivery Date" means each date determined by us, provided that such dates shall occur not less frequently than the close trading the next Business Day.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

"Price Tolerance" is a feature which allows you to adjust the amount of slippage you will accept on applicable Trades, where slippage is the difference between Our Price quoted on the Trading Platform and the price the Trade is executed.

"Product" means each type of financial instrument or investment contract we make available under this Agreement, subject to additional terms set out in the relevant Product Supplement.

"Quantity" means, in respect of a Trade or an Open Position, the number of units traded in the relevant Market to which that Trade or Open Position relates, synonymous to "trade size".

"Realized Profits" and "Realized Losses" means your profits or Losses (as appropriate) which result on expiry or closure of an Open Position.

"Risk Warning Notice" means the notice provided to clients in the Annex to these General Terms detailing the risks associated with undertaking trading in our Products.

"Security Information" means account numbers and/or Username as applicable, passwords and other information required to identify you for the purposes of you trading with us under this Agreement.

"Short Position" means an Open Position resulting from a Trade or Trades to sell units in a Market at Our Bid Price.

"Stop Loss Order" means an instruction to execute a Trade to close an Open Position when Our Price reaches a specified price.

"Stop Order" means an instruction to create a Short Position when Our Price reaches a specified price.

"Supplemental Terms" means the supplemental terms to the General Terms for each Product type.

"Total Margin" means a figure stated on the Trading Platform which represents the aggregate of the Margin Requirements applicable to your Account (and may be referred to on the Trading Platform as your "required margin", "margin requirement" or "margin").

"Trade" means a transaction entered into by you pursuant to this Agreement.

"Trade and Order Execution Policy" means our policy on the extent to which we will be required to provide clients with best execution when executing Trades and Orders.

"Trading Hours" shall be as set forth on the Trading Platform.

"Trading Platform" means the password protected trading system (including any related software and/or communications link) that we may supply or make available to you, either

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

directly or through our third party service providers or licensors, and through which you can deal with us under this Agreement and view your Account information.

"Trading Resource" means your Net Equity less your Total Margin (and may be referred to on the Trading Platform as your "available margin" or "free margin"). This is subject to: any additional factors which need to be taken into account under the Supplemental Terms for any particular Product type; any additional factors which we may agree will be taken into account in assessing your Trading Resource.

"Underlying Instrument" means the instrument, index, commodity, currency (including currency pair) or other instrument, asset or factor whose price or value provides the basis for us to determine Our Price for a Market.

"Unrealized Losses" and "Unrealized Profits" means the profits or Losses (as appropriate) that have not as yet been realized on Open Positions before expiry or closure.

"Unrealized P&L" means a figure stated on the Trading Platform which represents your Unrealized Profits less your Unrealized Losses.

"Website" means our website which comprises (among other things) the Trading Platform, the Market Information and information related to third party hosting or trading applications (for example, MetaTrader).

2. Risk Disclosure

- 2.1 This agreement can not and does not disclose or explain all of the risks and other significant aspects involved in dealing in these Transactions and was designed to explain in general terms the nature of the risks particular to dealing in these Transactions and to help the Client to take investment decisions on an informed basis.
- 2.2 Prior to applying for an account you should consider carefully whether trading in these Transactions is suitable for you in the light of your circumstances and financial situation. Margin FX and CFDs involve different levels of exposure to risk and, in deciding whether to trade in such instruments, you should be aware of the following.
- 2.3 We provide services for trading derivative financial contracts. Our contracts are traded on a margin or leverage basis, a type of trading which carries a high degree of risk to your capital. The price of the contract you make with us may change quickly and your profits and losses may be more than the amount of your investment or deposit. If you do not hold sufficient funds to meet your margin requirements, then we may close your open positions immediately and without notice. Please read the Risk Warning Notice carefully to understand the risks of trading on a margin or leverage basis. You should not deal in our contracts unless you understand and accept the risks of margin trading. Trading in these products may not be suitable for everyone.
- 2.4 Foreign markets will involve different risks to markets. The potential for profit or loss from OTC derivatives relating to a foreign market or denominated in a foreign currency

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

will be affected by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. It is possible to incur a loss if exchange rates change to your detriment, even if the price of the instrument to which the OTC derivatives relates remains unchanged. Margin FX and CFDs are contingent liability transactions which are margined and require you to make a series of payments against the purchase price, instead of paying the whole purchase price immediately, and they may only be settled in cash.

2.5 Our insolvency or default may lead to your positions being liquidated or closed out without your consent. As all deposits lodged with us are held in a segregated client account or accounts, in such circumstances those deposits would attract all legal protections afforded under the applicable laws. Net unrealised running profits are also held in trust by us (in excess of our contractual and regulatory requirements) and would normally be similarly protected for your benefit as beneficial owner, unless a Court were not to uphold the trust in relation to the net unrealised profits, in which event you would rank as an unsecured creditor of ours in relation to such net unrealised profits. It should also be noted that keeping your funds in a segregated client account does not offer or guarantee absolute protection of your funds in the event of our insolvency or default where there is a deficit in the segregated client account. Although by dealing with us you will not be dealing in securities, you need to be aware that you may still be subject to the applicable laws. The obligations to you under the Client Agreement and the margin FX and CFDs are unsecured obligations, meaning that you are an unsecured creditor of ours.

3. Risk Warning Notice

Derivatives Risk Warning Notice

This notice is provided to you as a client in compliance with the BVI Securities and Investment Business Act, 2010 (the "SIBA", or the "Act") and the BVI Regulatory Code, 2009 (the "Regulations"), and its accompanying Regulations. Clients are afforded greater protections under this Law and its accompanying Regulations than other clients, and you should ensure that your broker tells you what these are.

This notice does not disclose all of the risks and other significant aspects of derivatives products such as futures, options, and contracts for differences. You should not deal in derivatives unless you understand the nature of the contract you are entering into and the extent of your exposure to risk. You should also be satisfied that the contract is suitable for you in the light of your circumstances and financial position. Certain strategies, such as a "spread" position or a "straddle", may be as risky as a simple "long" or "short" position.

Whilst derivative instruments can be utilized for the management of investment risk, some investments are unsuitable for many investors. Different instruments involve different levels of exposure to risk, and in deciding whether to trade in such instruments you should be aware of the following points.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

3.1 Futures

Transactions in futures involve the obligation to make, or to take, delivery of the underlying asset of the contract at a future date, or in some cases to settle your position with cash. They carry a high degree of risk. The "gearing" or "leverage" often obtainable in futures trading means that a small deposit or down payment can lead to large losses as well as gains. It also means that a relatively small market movement can lead to a proportionately much larger movement in the value of your investment, and this can work against you as well as for you. Futures transactions have a contingent liability, and you should be aware of the implications of this, in particular the margining requirements, which are set out in paragraph 5.6 below.

3.2 Options

There are many different types of options with different characteristics subject to different conditions:

3.2.1 (1) Buying options:

Buying options involves less risk than selling options because, if the price of the underlying asset moves against you, you can simply allow the option to lapse. The maximum loss is limited to the premium, plus any commission or other transaction charges. However, if you buy a call option on a futures contract and you later exercise the option, you will acquire the future. This will expose you to the risks described under "futures" and "contingent liability transactions".

3.2.2 (2) Writing options:

If you write an option, the risk involved is considerably greater than buying options. You may be liable for margin to maintain your position and a loss may be sustained well in excess of any premium received. By writing an option, you accept a legal obligation to purchase or sell the underlying asset if the option is exercised against you, however far the market price has moved away from the exercise price. If you already own the underlying asset which you have contracted to sell (known as "covered call options") the risk is reduced. If you do not own the underlying asset (known as "uncovered call options") the risk can be unlimited. Only experienced persons should contemplate writing uncovered options, and then only after securing full details of the applicable conditions and potential risk exposure.

Certain options markets operate on a margined basis, under which buyers do not pay the full premium on their option at the time they purchase it. In this situation you may subsequently be called upon to pay margin on the option up to the level of your premium. If you fail to do so as required, your position may be closed or liquidated in the same way as a futures position.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

3.3 Contracts for differences

Futures and options contracts can also be referred to as a Contract for Differences. These can be options and futures on any index, as well as currency and interest rate swaps. However, unlike other futures and options, these contracts can only be settled in cash. Investing in a contract for differences carries the same risks as investing in a future or an option and you should be aware of these as set out in paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2 respectively. Transactions in contracts for differences may also have a contingent liability and you should be aware of the implications of this as set out in the paragraph 5.6 below.

3.4 Off exchange

It may not always be apparent whether or not a particular derivative is on or off-exchange. Your broker must make it clear to you if you are entering into an off exchange derivative transaction. While some off-exchange markets are highly liquid, transactions in off-exchange or "non transferable" derivatives may involve greater risk than investing in on-exchange derivatives because there is no exchange market on which to close out an open position, i.e. these might be securities that are not readily realisable instruments. It may be impossible to liquidate an existing position, to assess the value of the position arising from an

off-exchange transaction or to assess the exposure to risk. Bid and offer prices need not be quoted, and, even where they are, they will be established by dealers in these instruments and

consequently it may be difficult to establish what is a fair price.

3.5 Foreign markets

Foreign markets will involve specific market risks. In some cases the risks will be greater. On request, your broker must provide an explanation of the relevant risks and protections (if any) which will operate in any relevant foreign markets, including the extent to which he will not liable for any default of a foreign broker through whom he deals. The potential for profit or loss from transactions on foreign markets or in foreign denominated contracts will be affected by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

3.6 Contingent liability transactions

Contingent liability transactions that are margined require you to make a series of payments against the purchase price, instead of paying the whole purchase price immediately.

If you trade in futures, contracts for differences or sell options you may sustain a total loss of the margin you deposit with your broker to establish or maintain a position. If the market moves against you, you may be called upon to pay substantial additional margin at short notice to maintain the position. If you fail to do so within the time required, your position may be liquidated at a loss and you will be liable for any resulting deficit.

Even if a transaction is not margined, it may still carry an obligation to make further payments in certain circumstances over and above any amount paid when you entered the contract.

Contingent liability transactions which are not traded on or under the rules of a recognized may expose you to substantially greater risks.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

3.7 Collateral

If you deposit collateral as security with your broker, the way in which it will be treated will vary according to the type of transaction and where it is traded. There could be significant differences in the treatment of your collateral depending on whether you are trading on a recognized investment exchange, with the rules of that exchange (and associated clearing house) applying, or trading off exchange. Deposited collateral may lose its identity as your property once dealings on your behalf are undertaken. Even if your dealings should ultimately prove profitable, you may not get back the same assets that you deposited and may have to accept payment in cash. You should ascertain from your broker how your collateral will be dealt with.

3.8 Commissions and charges

Before you begin to trade, you should obtain all the relevant facts relating to the firm's remuneration attributable to any transaction and details of any other charges for which you will be liable. If any charges are not expressed in money terms (but, for example, as a percentage of contract value), you should obtain a clear written explanation, including appropriate examples, to establish what such charges are likely to mean in specific money terms. In the case of futures, when commission is charged as a percentage, it will normally be as a percentage of the total contract value, and not simply as a percentage of your initial payment.

3.9 Suspensions of trading

Under certain trading conditions it may be difficult or impossible to liquidate a position. This may occur, for example, at times of rapid price movement if the price rises or falls in one trading session to such an extent that under the rules of the relevant exchange trading is suspended or restricted. Placing a stop-loss order will not necessarily limit your losses to the intended amounts, because market conditions may make it impossible to execute such an order at the stipulated price.

3.10 Clearing house protections

On many exchanges, the performance of a transaction by your broker (or the third party with whom he is dealing on your behalf) is "guaranteed" by the exchange or its clearing house. However, this guarantee is unlikely in most circumstances to cover you, the client, and may not protect you if your broker or another party defaults on its obligations to you. On request, your broker must explain any protection provided to you under the clearing guarantee applicable to any on-exchange derivatives in which you are dealing. There is no clearing house for off-exchange instruments which are not traded under the rules of a recognized investment exchange.

3.11 Insolvency

Your broker's insolvency or default, or that of any other brokers involved with your transaction, may lead to positions being liquidated or closed out without your consent. In certain circumstances, you may not get back the actual assets that you lodged as collateral and you

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

may have to accept any available payment in cash. On request, your broker must provide an explanation of the extent to which he will accept liability for any insolvency of, or default by, other brokers involved with your transactions.

4. Supplemental Risk Warning Notice

4.1 Introduction

You are considering dealing with us in financial instruments and investment contracts relating to various financial markets. Unless separately defined in this notice, words and expressions shall have the meanings given to them in the General Terms.

This notice is designed to explain in general terms the nature of and some of the risks particular to our Products. We provide this warning to help you to take investment decisions on an informed basis. However, please note that each Trade will carry its own unique risks which cannot be explained in a general note of this nature.

Our Products carry a higher risk of loss than trading many traditional instruments, such as shares in many large companies or fixed income securities such as bonds issued by governments or large companies. For many members of the public, trading in our Products is not suitable. It is very important that you should not engage in trading in our Products unless you know, understand and are able to manage the features and risks associated with such trading and are also satisfied that trading in our Products is suitable for you in light of your circumstances and financial resources.

In considering whether to engage in trading our Products, you should be aware of the following risks.

4.2 Leverage

A high degree of "gearing" or "leverage" is associated with trading our Products. This stems from the margining system applicable to our Products which generally involves a comparatively modest deposit of the overall contract value to open a Trade. This can work for you and against you. A small price movement in your favour can result in a high return on the money placed on deposit; however, a small price movement against you may result in substantial losses, possibly more than the money placed on deposit. Prices can move quickly particularly at times of high market volatility (see below) and, if these price movements are unfavourable to your Trade(s), you could quickly build up significant losses.

If you do not maintain enough funds in your Account to satisfy your Margin Requirements, we may close any or all of your Open Positions (in some circumstances without warning). If we do this, your Open Positions may be closed at a loss for which you will be liable.

4.3 Nature of Margined Trades

Our client agreement explains in detail how our Products operate; see our General Terms, Supplemental Terms, as well as your Application Form. Also you should review examples and explanations found on our Website – although these are not part of the Agreement, they provide useful guidance on trading in our Products (and the risks associated with them).

A Trade in one of our Markets is a Trade based on movements in Our Price. Our Price for a Market is set by us but relates to the price of the relevant Underlying Instrument. Whether

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

you make a profit or loss will depend on the prices we set and fluctuations in the Underlying Instrument to which your Trade relates. Trades in our Products can only be settled in cash. Trades in our Products are legally enforceable.

In certain circumstances your losses on a Trade may be unlimited. For instance, if you open a position with us by selling the contract in question (a practice known as "shorting a market") and the price rises, you will make a loss on that Trade and it is impossible to know the limit of your potential losses until you close the Trade or your Open Positions are closed when your Margin Level reaches the Margin Close Out Level. You must ensure that you understand the potential consequences of a particular Product or Trade and be prepared to accept that degree of risk

You will not acquire the Underlying Instrument nor any rights or delivery obligations in relation to the Underlying Instrument.

4.4 Volatility

As mentioned above, whether you make a profit or a loss will depend on the prices we set and fluctuations in the price of the Underlying Instrument to which your Trade relates. Neither you nor we will have any control over price movements in the Underlying Instrument. Price movements in the Underlying Instrument can be volatile and unpredictable.

A feature of volatile markets is "Gapping", the situation where there is a significant change to Our Price between consecutive quotes. Gapping may occur in fast and falling markets, when markets are closed and reopened (for example, over weekends) or if price sensitive information is released prior to Market opening or during market hours. The price at which we execute your Orders may be adversely affected if Gapping occurs in the relevant Market. Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders will always be executed at your specified Order price, but all other types of Orders will be executed when Our Price meets or exceeds your specified Order price. If Gapping occurs, the price at which your Order is executed may significantly exceed your specified Order price.

4.5 Liquidity

A decrease in liquidity (a term which describes the availability of buyers and sellers who are prepared to deal in an Underlying Market) may adversely impact Our Price and our ability to quote and trade in a Market. If there is a significant reduction or a temporary or permanent cessation in liquidity in an Underlying Instrument, such events may be deemed an Event Outside of Our Control or Market Disruption Event (as applicable) under the General Terms and we may increase Our Price, suspend trading or take any other action we consider reasonable in the circumstances. As a result you may not be able to place Trades or to close Open Positions in any affected Market.

4.6 Dealing Off-exchange

Dealing in our Products is conducted exclusively off-exchange, a type of trading which is also called dealing "over-the-counter" or "OTC". In dealing with us off-exchange you deal directly with us and we are the counterparty to all of your Trades. When dealing on Markets which are

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

not centrally cleared markets, there is no exchange or central clearing house to guarantee the settlement of Trades.

4.7 General

We maintain our financial stability by hedging against large Trades and/or open position exposure.

If there is anything you do not understand, or if you require clarification on any matter, please contact Client Management.

5. The Scope Of This Agreement

- 5.1 These General Terms are part of the agreement between **Orbit Global Ltd. ("OGL", "we", "us" or "our")** and its **client ("you" or "yourself")** which governs our trading services and all transactions we conduct with you.
- "ORBIT GLOBAL LTD.", a British Virgin Islands (the "BVI") incorporated Company No. 2091165, having its registered office at Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands (henceforth "us", "our", "we", the "Company" or "ORBIT GLOBAL LTD."), in relation to your investment activities with us (hereinafter referred to as our "Customer Agreement", and contains the terms and conditions that apply to the access and/or use of any of our Website(s), Trading Platform(s), Software and/or Services (hereinafter, collectively, referred to as our "Online Trading Facility").

"ORBIT GLOBAL LTD.", is a BVI incorporated company and is regulated in the BVI by the British Virgin Islands Financial Services Commission (the "BVI FSC", or the "FSC").

"ORBIT GLOBAL LTD.", is operating under the BVI Securities and Investment Business Act, 2010 (the "SIBA", or the "Act") and the BVI Regulatory Code, 2009 (the "Regulations"), as the same may be modified and amended from time to time.

Category 1: Dealing in Investments Sub-category B: Dealing as Principal;

Category 2: Arranging Deals in Investments.

As a licensee in Investment Business ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. has in place professional indemnity insurance that complies with the insurance requirement under Part 1 Section 13 of the SIBA. This professional indemnity insurance covers claims in relation to the conduct of current employees and past employees.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 5.3 The agreement between us relating to our trading services consists of the following documents:
 - 5.3.1 Application Form;
 - 5.3.2 These terms and conditions; and
 - 5.3.3 These General Terms; and
 - 5.3.4 Any additional terms and conditions issued by us and notified to you and accepted by you, in
 - 5.3.5 connection with our dealings with you;
 - 5.3.6 There are other materials that explain the basis of our dealings with you and they include:
 - 5.3.7 Our website, which includes our trading platform
 - 5.3.8 the Supplemental Terms for the relevant product.
 - 5.3.9 These documents are referred to as the "Agreement".

Please read this Agreement carefully and seek professional advice if necessary. Contracts that we enter into with you under this Agreement are legally binding and enforceable. By signing the Application form or by electronically submitting your application on our website you confirm that you accept the terms of the Agreement. When we open an account for you, you will be bound by the Agreement in your dealings with us.

- 5.4 The Agreement supersedes all our previous terms and conditions and any amendments thereto and will be effective from the specified date or the date we acknowledge acceptance of your Application Form.
- 5.5 Each Product we offer is subject to its Supplemental Terms. Should there be any conflict between these General Terms and the Supplemental Terms, the Supplemental Terms will prevail.
- 5.6 Other materials which explain the basis upon which we trade with you but are not part of the Agreement include:
 - the Market Information, which provides the commercial details for each Market, including Market Hours, Margin Factors and other requirements for dealing in each Market. Market Information is located on the Trading Platform. In the event you elect to use a third party hosting or trading application (for example, MetaTrader), information specific to such third party hosting or trading application located on the Website shall supplement the Market Information. We may make changes to the Market Information from time to time, and will make current versions of the Market Information available to you on the Trading Platform;
 - 5.6.2 our Website including our Trading Platform via which you will trade with us; and

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 5.6.3 our notices and policies the Risk Warning Notice, our Trade and Order Execution Policy, our Conflicts of Interest Policy and any notices with respect to third- party trading platforms (together "Notices and Policies"). We may make changes to our Notices and Policies from time to time, and will make current versions of our Notices and Policies available to you on our Website.
- 5.7 Please read the Agreement and the Notices and Policies carefully and discuss with us anything which you do not understand. Unless we have agreed in writing that any part of this Agreement is not to apply, we will regard this Agreement as setting out all the relevant terms concerning our trading services and any Trades which you enter into with us. Trades that we enter into with you under this Agreement are legally binding and enforceable. By signing the Application Form or by electronically submitting your application on our Website or, if applicable, via a mobile application, you confirm that you accept the terms of the Agreement. When we open an Account for you, you will be bound by the Agreement in your dealings with us.
- 5.8 Words and expressions have the meanings set out in the Definitions at clause 3. References to clauses are to clauses in these General Terms unless stated otherwise.
- 5.9 Unless written notice is required in accordance with this Agreement, you may communicate with us in writing (including by email or other electronic means) or orally (including by telephone). Email, chat, text, instant messaging features whether transmitted through the internet, a proprietary network, a computer, a pager or another wireless device or otherwise may be provided to you as a convenience to enhance your communications with us. Except where otherwise provided in clause 44.1 you shall not use these features to request, authorize or effect any transaction, to send fund transfer instructions or for any other communication that requires non-electronic written authorization. We shall not be responsible for any loss or damage that results if any request is not accepted or processed. You agree that you shall use these features in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and you shall not use them to transmit inappropriate information, including information that may be deemed obscene, defamatory, harassing or fraudulent.
- 5.10 The language of communication shall be English, and you will receive documents and other information from us in English. By opening an Account with us, you agree to receive trading services from us in English and subject to the English terms and conditions of this Agreement. We may in our sole discretion provide local language support. If a document is translated into another language this will be for information purposes only and the English version will prevail.

6. Currency of Accounts and Conversions

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 6.1 Where we are entitled to do so under this Agreement (including in connection with our rights under clauses 14 and 54) we may convert sums denominated in one currency to another currency. We may also perform a notional currency conversion where this is required for valuation purposes.
- 6.2 Unless we have agreed otherwise, we will automatically convert any Cash, Realized Profits and Losses, adjustments, fees and charges that are denominated in another currency to your Base Currency before applying them to your Account.
- 6.3 Unrealized Profits and Losses that are denominated in another currency may be valued at or converted in notional terms to your Base Currency. Such balances are for your information only and are not final until the Realized Profits and Losses are converted and applied to your Account.
- 6.4 We shall perform any currency conversion or valuation at commercially reasonable rates. We may receive remuneration from the counterparty to any foreign exchange transaction which we enter into.
- 6.5 If we have exercised our rights in connection with clauses 14 and/or 54 or you have made a payment to us in a different currency from that in which you were obliged to pay us, we may pass on to you all commission or other charges which we incur in any currency conversion we carry out.

7. Corporate Actions and other events affecting Underlying Instruments

- 7.1 When a Corporate Action or an Insolvency Event occurs in relation to any Underlying Instrument and/or its issuer we may, acting in a commercially reasonable manner, make adjustments to your Open Positions and/or Orders to reflect those actions and to put you in a position as close as possible to that of a direct holder of the Underlying Instrument.
- 7.2 The actions we may take pursuant to clause 9.1 include, but are not limited to:
 - 7.2.1 Changing Margin Factors, Margin Multipliers and/or the minimum level of Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders both in relation to Open Positions and new Trades;
 - 7.2.2 making a reasonable and fair retrospective adjustment to the opening price of an Open Position, to reflect the impact of the relevant action or event;
 - 7.2.3 opening and/or closing one or more Open Positions on your Account;
 - 7.2.4 cancelling any Orders;
 - 7.2.5 suspending or modifying the application of any part of this Agreement;
 - 7.2.6 crediting or debiting sums to your Account as appropriate; and/or

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 7.2.7 taking all such other action, as we reasonably consider appropriate to reflect the effect of the relevant action or event.
- 7.3 We shall use best endeavours to take any such actions as soon as we are reasonably able to do so and this will normally be as soon as is reasonably practicable after the relevant event has occurred.
- 7.4 When we make adjustments to Open Positions, where possible we will adjust the Open Position as held by you to be effective from the commencement of Market Hours on the same Business Day on which the relevant event or action is effective in relation to the Underlying Instrument.
- 7.5 Depending on the event concerned, we may take any of the actions set out in this clause 9 without prior notice. If we do so, we shall give you notice at the time we take the action or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter.

8. Representations and Warranties

- 8.1 Representations and warranties are personal statements, assurances or undertakings given by you to us on which we rely when we deal with you. You make the following representations and warranties at the time you enter into this Agreement and every time you place a Trade or give us any other instruction:
 - 8.1.1 all information that you supply to us (whether in the Application Form or otherwise) is true, accurate and not misleading in any material respect;
 - 8.1.2 if you are an individual, you are over 18 years old;
 - 8.1.3 except where we have agreed otherwise in writing, you act as principal and not any other person's agent or other representative, and have full legal and beneficial ownership of your Account;
 - 8.1.4 you have obtained all necessary consents and have the authority to enter into this Agreement and/or to place any Trades and instructions;
 - 8.1.5 if you are a company or body corporate you are properly empowered and have obtained all necessary corporate or other authority under your memorandum and articles of association or other constitutional or organizational documents;
 - 8.1.6 neither the entry into this Agreement, the placing of any Trade and/or any Order or the giving of any other instruction will violate any law, rule or regulation applicable to you;
 - 8.1.7 you have not and will not upload or transmit any Malicious Code to our Trading Platform or Website or otherwise use any electronic device, software, algorithm, and/or any dealing method or strategy that aims to manipulate any aspect of our Trading Platform or Website, including, but not limited to, the way in which we construct, provide or convey Our Price; and
 - 8.1.8 you will use the Products and services offered by us pursuant to this Agreement honestly, fairly and in good faith.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 8.2 You agree that for the duration of this Agreement you will promptly notify us of any change to the details supplied by you on your Application Form, including in particular moving to another country or territory or any change or anticipated change in your financial circumstances, regulatory or employment status (including redundancy and/or unemployment) which may affect the basis on which we do business with you.
- 8.3 Any breach by you of any warranty or representation made under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the representations and warranties given in clause 10.1, renders any Trade voidable or capable of being closed by us at our then prevailing Our Price, at our discretion.

9. Market Abuse

- 9.1 When you execute a Trade with us, we may buy or sell on securities exchanges or directly from or to other financial institutions shares or units in the relevant Underlying Instrument or financial instruments related to that Underlying Instrument. The result is that when you place Trades with us your Trades can have an impact on the external market for that Underlying Instrument in addition to the impact it might have on Our Price. This creates a possibility of market abuse and the purpose of this clause is to prevent such abuse.
- 9.2 You represent and warrant to us at the time you enter into the Agreement and every time you enter into a Trade or give us any other instruction that:
 - 9.2.1 you will not place and have not placed a Trade with us if to do so would result in you, or others with whom you are acting in concert having an interest in the price of the Underlying Instrument which is equal to or exceeds the amount of a Declarable Interest in the Underlying Instrument;
 - 9.2.2 you will not place and have not placed a Trade that contravenes any law or regulation prohibiting insider dealing, market manipulation or any other form of market abuse or market misconduct; and
 - 9.2.3 you will act in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.
- 9.3 In the event that you place any Trade in breach of the representations and warranties given in this clause 10 or any other clause of this Agreement or we have reasonable grounds for believing that you have done so, in addition to any rights we may have under clause 14, we may:
 - 9.3.1 enforce the Trade or Trade(s) against you if it is a Trade or Trades which results in you owing money to us;
 - 9.3.2 treat all your Trades as void if they are Trades which result in us owing money to you, unless and until you produce conclusive evidence within 30 days of our request that you have not in fact committed any breach of warranty, misrepresentation or undertaking under this Agreement.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 9.4 You acknowledge that it would be improper for you to deal in the Underlying Instrument if the sole purpose of such a transaction was to manipulate Our Price, and you agree not to conduct any such transactions.
- 9.5 We are entitled (and in some cases required) to report to any relevant regulatory authority details of any Trade or Order. You may also be required to make appropriate disclosures and you undertake that you will do so where so required.
- 9.6 The exercise of any of our rights under this clause 11 shall not affect any of our other rights we may have under this Agreement or under the general law.

10. Manifest Error

- 10.1 A Manifest Error is an error, omission or misquote (including any misquote by our dealer) which by fault of either of us or any third party is materially and clearly incorrect when taking into account market conditions and quotes in Markets or Underlying Instruments which prevailed at that time. It may include, but is not limited to, an incorrect price, date, time, Market or currency pair, financing calculation, rebate, commission or any error or lack of clarity of any information, source, commentator, official, official result or pronouncement.
- 10.2 If a Trade is based on a Manifest Error (regardless of whether you or we gain from the error) and/or closed on the basis of Manifest Error we may act reasonably and in good faith to:
 - 10.2.1 void the Trade as if it had never taken place;
 - 10.2.2 close the Trade or any Open Position resulting from it; or
 - 10.2.3 amend the Trade, or place a new Trade, as the case may be, so that (in either case) its terms are the same as the Trade which would have been placed and/or continued if there had been no Manifest Error.
- 10.3 We will exercise the rights in clause 12.2 as soon as reasonably practicable after we become aware of the Manifest Error. To the extent practicable we will give you prior notice of any action we take under this clause but if this is not practicable we will give you notice as soon as practicable afterwards. If you consider that a Trade is based on a Manifest Error, then you must notify us immediately. We will consider in good faith whether it is appropriate to take any action under this clause 12 taking into account all the information relating to the situation, including market conditions and your level of expertise.
- 10.4 In the absence of our fraud, wilful deceit or negligence, we will not be liable for any loss, costs, claims or demand for expenses resulting from a Manifest Error.

11. Events outside Our Control and Market Disruption Events

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 11.1 We may determine that a situation or an exceptional market condition exists which constitutes an Event Outside Our Control and/or a Market Disruption Event.
- 11.2 If we determine that an Event Outside Our Control or Market Disruption Event has occurred we may take any of the steps referred to in clause 13.3 with immediate effect. We will take reasonable steps to notify you of any action we take before we take any action to the extent practicable. If it is not practicable to give you prior notice, we will notify you at the time or promptly after taking any such action.
- 11.3 If we determine that an Event Outside Our Control and/or a Market Disruption Event has occurred, we may take one or more of the following steps:
 - 11.3.1 cease or suspend trading and/or refuse to enter into any Trades or accept any Orders;
 - 11.3.2 alter our normal trading times for all or any Markets;
 - 11.3.3 change Our Price and Our Spreads and/or minimum or maximum Quantity;
 - 11.3.4 close any Open Positions, cancel and/or fill any Orders, and/or make adjustments to the price and/or Quantity of any Open Positions and Orders;
 - 11.3.5 change the Margin Factors and/or Margin Multipliers in relation to both Open Positions and new Trades;
 - 11.3.6 change the Margin Close Out Level applicable to your Account;
 - 11.3.7 immediately require payments of any amounts you owe us, including Margin Requirement;
 - 11.3.8 void or roll over any Open Positions; and/or
 - 11.3.9 take or omit to take all such other actions as we consider to be reasonable in the circumstances to protect ourselves and our clients as a whole.
- 11.4 In some cases we may be unable, after using reasonable efforts, to acquire, establish, re-establish, substitute, maintain, unwind or dispose of any Underlying Instrument we consider necessary to hedge or protect our exposure to market and other risks arising from an Open Position. When this occurs we may close that Open Position at the prevailing Our Price.
- 11.5 We will not be liable to you for any loss or damage arising under this clause 13, provided we act reasonably.

12. Events of Default/Insolvency

- 12.1 The following shall constitute Events of Default:
 - 12.1.1 an Insolvency Event occurs in relation to you;
 - 12.1.2 you are an individual and you die, become of unsound mind or are unable to pay your debts as they fall due;
 - 12.1.3 the Margin Level for your Account reaches or falls below the Margin Close Out Level;
 - 12.1.4 you act in breach of any warranty or representation made under this Agreement or any representation or warranty made by you under this

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- Agreement and/or any information provided to us in connection with this Agreement is or becomes untrue or misleading;
- 12.1.5 any sum due and payable to us is not paid in accordance with this Agreement;
- 12.1.6 whether or not any sums are currently due and payable to us from you, where any cheque or other payment instrument has not been met on first presentation or is subsequently dishonoured or you have persistently failed to pay any amount owed to us on time including Margin Requirement;
- 12.1.7 at any time and for any periods deemed reasonable by us you are not contactable or you do not respond to any notice or correspondence from us; and
- 12.1.8 we reasonably believe that it is prudent for us to take any or all of the actions described in clause 14.2 in the light of any relevant legal or regulatory requirement applicable either to you or us.
- 12.2 If any Event of Default occurs we may take all or any of the following actions:
 - 12.2.1 immediately require payment of any amounts you owe us, including in respect of any Margin Requirement;
 - 12.2.2 close all or any of your Open Positions;
 - 12.2.3 convert any balance to your Base Currency in accordance with clause 8;
 - 12.2.4 cancel any of your Orders;
 - 12.2.5 exercise our rights of set-off and combination;
 - 12.2.6 change the Margin Close Out Level applicable to your Account;
 - 12.2.7 impose a Margin Multiplier to your Trades or Account;
 - 12.2.8 suspend your Account and refuse to execute any Trades or Orders;
 - 12.2.9 terminate this Agreement and/or
 - 12.2.10 take or omit to take all such other actions as we consider to be reasonable in the circumstances to protect ourselves and our clients as a whole.
- 12.3 We may also close your Account on 14 days notice in the circumstances set out below. If we rely on our rights under this clause, your Account will be suspended during the 14 day notice period and you will not be able to place Trades other than those to close existing Open Positions. If you have not closed all Open Positions within the period of 14 days notice we shall be entitled to take any action within clause 14.2. The relevant circumstances are:
 - 12.3.1 any litigation is commenced involving both of us in an adversarial position to each other and, in view of the subject matter of or any issues in dispute in relation to that litigation, we reasonably decide that we cannot continue to deal with you while the litigation is pending;
 - 12.3.2 where you have persistently acted in an abusive manner toward our staff (for example by displaying what we consider to be serious discourtesy or the use of offensive or insulting language); and/or
 - 12.3.3 where we believe on reasonable grounds that you are unable to manage the risks that arise from your Trades.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 12.4 Without limiting our right to take any action under clauses 14.2 and 14.3, we may also close individual Open Positions and/or cancel any Orders where:
 - 12.4.1 we are in dispute with you in respect of an Open Position. In this case we can close all or part of the Open Position in order to minimize the amount in dispute; and/or
 - 12.4.2 there is a material breach of the Agreement in relation to the Open Position.
- 12.5 Without limiting our right to take action under clauses 14.2, 14.3 and 14.4, we may in our discretion suspend your Account pending investigation for any reason. Whilst your Account is suspended you will be able to place Trades to close your Open Positions but you will not be entitled to place Trades which would create new Open Positions. Circumstances in which we may choose to exercise this right include but are not limited to the following:
 - 12.5.1 when we have reason to believe that an Event of Default has occurred or may occur but believe that it is reasonably necessary to investigate circumstances with a view to confirming this;
 - 12.5.2 when we have reason to believe that you do not have a sufficient understanding of the Trades which you are placing or the risks involved;
 - 12.5.3 when we have not received within 10 days of a written request all information, that we believe that we require in connection with this Agreement; and/or
 - 12.5.4 we have reason to believe that there has been a breach in your Account security or that there is a threat to your Account security.
- 12.6 If we have suspended your Account pending investigation, we conclude our investigation as soon as reasonably practicable. When we conclude our investigation we will inform you whether trading on your Account may resume or whether we will seek to take further action pursuant to this Agreement.
- 12.7 We may exercise our rights to close Open Positions under this clause 14 at any time after the relevant event has occurred and will do so on the basis of the next available Our Price for the affected Open Positions.

13. Your Right to Cancel

- 13.1 You are entitled to cancel this Agreement by giving us notice in writing within a 14 day cancellation period. You need not give any reason for the cancellation and the right to cancel applies even if you have already received services from us before the cancellation period expires.
- 13.2 The period for cancellation begins on the date the Agreement starts to apply to you.
- 13.3 You may only give us notice of cancellation in writing. The notice will be considered received by us in accordance with clause 23.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 13.4 As the price of our contracts depend on fluctuations in the Underlying Instrument which are outside our control and which may occur during the cancellation period, you have no rights to cancel this Agreement if any Trade placed by you has been executed before we receive notice of cancellation.
- 13.5 Following a valid cancellation and subject to clause 54.2, we will return any amounts you have deposited with us prior to receipt of your cancellation notice.
- 13.6 If you do not exercise the right of cancellation, the Agreement will continue in effect until either you or we terminate the Agreement by either of us giving notice in accordance with clause 21, or by our exercising any of our other rights to terminate under this Agreement. There is no minimum or fixed duration of the Agreement.

14. Privacy and Data Protection

- 14.1 We will obtain and hold information about you (including, without limitation, personal information and information relating to your Account and your Account history) in accordance with data protection and anti-money laundering legislation. You agree that we can rely on, hold and process your information for the purpose of performing our obligations under this Agreement, including administering the relationship with you, managing your Account, recovering amounts payable, considering any of your applications, carrying out risk assessment, complying with regulatory obligations, and undertaking product development and analysis.
- 14.2 You agree to our disclosing any such information referred to in this clause 16:
 - 14.2.1 in accordance with this clause 16;
 - 14.2.2 where we are required to by law or regulatory obligation;
 - 14.2.3 to regulatory authorities where appropriate or on reasonable request, and to such third parties as we reasonably consider necessary in order to prevent crime, e.g. the police;
 - 14.2.4 where reasonably necessary, to any third party which provides a service or license to us in connection with the Products or services we provide for your Account or this Agreement, but only for the purpose of providing that service or license or in connection with our compliance with any reporting, audit or inspection obligations to any such third party service providers or licensors; and
 - 14.2.5 in accordance with clause 22.2.
- 14.3 In order to provide services to you, you acknowledge that it may be necessary for your information to be transferred to someone who provides a service to us in other countries, including outside of the British Virgin Islands, and you consent to such transfer.
- 14.4 You consent to us, or our agents acting on our behalf, carrying out such credit and identity checks, including money laundering checks, compliance regulatory reporting and fraud prevention checks, as we may reasonably consider necessary or desirable,

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

including requesting a reference from your bank or any credit reference agency. You understand and agree that any third party referred to in this clause may share any information concerning you with us and other organizations involved in credit reference, the prevention of fraud and/or crime and/or money laundering or for similar purposes or to recover debts involved.

- 14.5 You authorize us to contact you by email, telephone or post to give you information about carefully selected products or services offered by us, that are similar or related to products or services provided or previously provided to you. You consent to us using your data for this purpose for the period you have an Account with us and after you close the Account. If you do not wish to receive such information then please contact us in writing or by telephone. Our Address and contact details are stated on our Website.
- 14.6 By submitting the Application Form to us, you agree to be bound by the terms of our Privacy Policy as set out on our Website including authorizing us to pass your personal data to selected Affiliates or third parties (including Introducers) for the purpose of contacting you by email, telephone or post to give you information about carefully selected products or services offered by that party that are similar or related to the Products or services provided or previously provided to you by us. You consent to us using your data for this purpose for the period you have an Account with us. If you no longer wish to receive such information then please write to us at Our Address or write directly to the third party.
- 14.7 Where you have been introduced to us by an Introducer, you consent to us exchanging information with that Introducer in order to perform our obligations under this Agreement and as required by us to maintain our relationship with the Introducer. This may, without limitation, result in us disclosing financial and personal information about you, your application, details of trading activity in the Account and/or your conduct of the Account and/or your use of our facilities (including information gained when you use our learning tools and trading simulators). If you no longer wish us to pass on such information then please write to us at Our Address.
- 14.8 We will use reasonable endeavours to contact you and notify you of any change to how we hold, process or disclose information, by posting a notice on our Website or sending you an email to your last known email address. If you do not tell us you object to this change in writing within 60 days of the notice and you continue to maintain the Account after the expiry of this period of notice then we will regard you as having agreed to it.
- 14.9 If you wish to access information that we hold about you, or to have inaccurate information corrected please contact us by sending an email to our email address set forth on our Website. Please note we may require you to pay a fee for this information. Please note that certain information may be exempt from being disclosed and that in certain circumstances we may not be able to disclose certain information.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

14.10 You agree that we may record all conversations with you and monitor (and maintain a record of) all emails and electronic communications sent by or to us. All such records are our property and can be used by us, amongst other things, in the case of a dispute between us or for training purposes.

15. Intellectual Property

- 15.1 Our Website, including the Trading Platform, and any and all Information, software applications, documentation and other information, data and materials which we may supply or make available to you, either directly or through a third party service provider or licensor (collectively the "OGL Materials") are and will remain our property or that of our third party service providers or licensors.
- 15.2 All copyrights, trademarks, design rights and other intellectual property rights in the OGL Materials, including without limitation all updates, modifications, compilations and enhancements, and all derivative works based on any of the OGL Materials, are and will remain our property (or those of our third party service providers or licensors as applicable).
- 15.3 We supply or make the OGL Materials available to you on the basis that (a) we can also supply and make them available to other persons and (b) we can cease or suspend providing any of them, but we will only do that if your Account has been closed or required by any of our third party service providers or licensors, by applicable law or as otherwise provided in this Agreement.
- 15.4 You may access and use the OGL Materials only as expressly permitted for the operation of your Account in accordance with this Agreement.
- 15.5 You must comply with any policies relating to any of the OGL Materials, or their use, including any additional restrictions or other terms and conditions that we or our third party service providers or licensors may issue, of which we may notify you from time to time.
- 15.6 You must not supply all or part of the OGL Materials to anyone else and you must not copy or reproduce all or part of them without our prior written permission.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 15.7 You must not delete, obscure or tamper with copyright or other proprietary notices displayed on any of the OGL Materials.
- 15.8 If we have provided any materials to you in connection with our Website you must return those to us on closure of your Account.
- 15.9 Except to the extent expressly permitted under this Agreement or any other written agreement between you and us, you must not: (a) modify, translate or create derivative works based upon any of the OGL Materials; (b) take any action compromising or challenging, or threatening to compromise or challenge, the enjoyment or use by any other client of any of the OGL Materials or the rights of us or any of our third party service providers or licensors in any of the OGL Materials; or (c) reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble any of the OGL Materials comprising software or otherwise attempt to discover the source code thereof.
- 15.10 You must notify us immediately of any unauthorized use or misuse of any of the OGL Materials of which you become aware and, to the extent reasonably requested by us, provide us cooperation in remedying such violation and/or taking steps to prevent the future occurrence thereof.
- 15.11 We or our third party service providers or licensors may from time to time modify market data, our Trading Platform or Website, or the OGL Materials, and/or methods or speeds of delivering the same, which modifications may require corresponding changes to the methods or means you use to access the OGL Materials and/or may sever or adversely affect your access to or use of the OGL Materials. Neither we nor our Affiliates shall be liable for any such consequences.

16. Website and System Use

- 16.1 We will use reasonable endeavours to ensure that our Website, mobile services and our systems can normally be accessed for use in accordance with this Agreement. However all or any of these may fail to work properly or at all or our premises may suffer from power failure. On this basis:
 - 16.1.1 we do not warrant that they will always be accessible or usable;
 - 16.1.2 we do not warrant that access will be uninterrupted or error free.
- 16.2 We may suspend use of our Website to carry out maintenance, repairs, upgrades or any development related issues. We shall use reasonable endeavours to give you notice of this and to provide alternative ways for you to deal or obtain information as to your Account but this may not be possible in an emergency.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 16.3 We warrant that we have the right to permit you to use our Website in accordance with this Agreement.
- 16.4 We will use reasonable endeavours to ensure that our Website is free from any Malicious Code, but we do not warrant that it will be free at all times of Malicious Code. You should use your own Malicious Code protection software that is up to date and of good industry standard. In addition you must not upload or transmit any Malicious Code to our Trading Platform or other aspects of our Website.
- 16.5 You are responsible for ensuring that your information technology is compatible with ours and meets our minimum system requirements, as may be amended from time to time. The minimum system requirements currently in effect are set out on our Website.
- 16.6 We or other third party service providers or licensors may provide you with Information in connection with the provision of our services. You agree that:
 - 16.6.1 neither we nor our Affiliates shall be responsible or liable if any such Information is inaccurate or incomplete in any respect or for any actions you take or do not take based on, or your reliance upon, such data or information;
 - 16.6.2 you will use such Information solely for the purposes set out in the Agreement;
 - 16.6.3 you will truthfully complete and submit to us in a timely fashion:
 - a) any declaration as we may require at any time in respect of your status as a user of Information; and
 - b) any additional agreements with us or any of our third party service providers or licensors relating to our provision to you of any Information;
 - 16.6.4 such Information is proprietary to us or the provider and you will not retransmit, redistribute, publish, disclose, alter, amend, rent, loan, license or display in whole or in part such data or information to third parties; and
 - 16.6.5 you will pay any fees and other costs associated with your access to and use of any Information, of which as we may notify you from time to time, and shall be responsible for payment of any and all taxes, charges or assessments by any foreign or domestic national, state, provincial or local governmental bodies, or subdivisions thereof, and any penalties or interest relating thereto, in respect of your access to and use of any Information.
- 16.7 Various access methods (e.g. mobile, desktop) may be made available to you. Different access methods may have different functionality and content from one another, and such content and functionality are subject to change without notice.
- 16.8 In the event you select to use a third party software application to provide you with trading programs, signals, advice, risk management or other trading assistance or a third party hosting or trading application (for example, MetaTrader), we do not assume any responsibility for such application, product or service. The foregoing shall apply irrespective of whether we offer, promote or endorse to you such third-party application, product or service.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

17. Limitation of Liability

- 17.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall exclude or limit our liability for death or personal injury caused by our negligence or for fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation or for liability that cannot be excluded under any applicable laws or the requirements of any regulator.
- 17.2 Subject to clause 19.1, we shall not be liable for:
 - 17.2.1 Events Outside Our Control;
 - 17.2.2 any action we may take under:
 - (i) clauses 12 ("Manifest Error");
 - (ii) clause 13 (Events Outside Our Control or Market Disruption Events"); and/or
 - (iii) clause 14 ("Events of Default and Similar Circumstances") provided that we act within the terms of those clauses and in particular act reasonably where required to do so;
 - 17.2.3 any failure of communication (for any reason) within clause 32 ("Website and Systems Use") including (without limitation) the unavailability of our Website (including the Trading Platform) or our telephone systems provided always we act within the terms of clause 32;
 - 17.2.4 the use, operation, performance and/or any failure of any third party trading systems, software or services not provided by us; or
 - 17.2.5 any claim loss, expense, cost or liability suffered or incurred by you (together "Claims") except to the extent that such loss, expense is suffered or incurred as a result of our breach of the Agreement, negligence or wilful default.
- 17.3 Other than as described in clause 19.4 and subject to the limits on our liability in this clause 19, we are each only responsible for Losses that are reasonably foreseeable consequences of breaches of this Agreement at the time the Agreement is entered into.
- 17.4 Neither we nor our Affiliates are responsible for indirect Losses which happen as a side effect of the main loss or damage and which are not foreseeable by you and us. Neither we nor our Affiliates shall be liable to you for Losses which you incur which are foreseeable by us or other OGL Parties because you have communicated the possibility of such Losses or any special circumstances to us or OGL Parties.
- 17.5 Neither we nor our Affiliates shall be liable to you for any loss of profit or opportunity, or anticipated savings or any trading Losses.
- 17.6 The limitations of liability in clause 19 apply whether or not we or any of our employees or agents or our Affiliates knew of the possibility of the claim being incurred.
- 17.7 We carry on the business to which this Agreement relates in reliance on the limitations and/or exclusions in this clause being enforceable. We do not insure against any of the potential liabilities described in this clause. If the exclusions and restrictions are not acceptable to you, then you should not deal with us.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

18. Tax

- 18.1 You are responsible for the payment of all taxes that may arise in relation to your Trades. Where, as a result of your trading, there is a tax charge under a financial transaction tax regime, stamp duty, transfer tax, dividend tax, withholding tax or other taxes or duties due in any jurisdiction, we reserve the right to pass these on to you. We may elect to do so by withholding any such amounts from your Realized Profits. You may find additional information with respect to our practices in a Market on our Website or by calling Client Management.
- 18.2 We shall not be responsible for any taxes that may arise as a result of a change in law or practice or by reason of your paying tax in a jurisdiction other than the BVI.
- 18.3 We shall not be responsible for advising you on any change in tax law or practice. You shall in all circumstances be responsible for your own tax advice in relation to your Trades.
- 18.4 You agree to provide us or our agents, upon request, any documentation or other information regarding you or your beneficial owners that we or our agents may require from time to time in connection with our obligations under, and compliance with, applicable laws and regulations. By agreeing to these terms and conditions, you waive any provision under the laws and regulations of any jurisdiction that would, in the absence of such waiver, prevent or inhibit our compliance with applicable law as described in this paragraph including, but not limited to preventing (i) you from providing any requested information or documentation, or (ii) the disclosure by us or our agents of the provided information or documentation to applicable governmental or regulatory authorities. You further acknowledge that we or our agents may take such action as we consider necessary in relation to you and your Accounts to ensure that any withholding tax payable by us, and any related costs, interest, penalties and other losses and liabilities suffered by us, or any other investor, or any agent, delegate, employee, director, officer, member, manager or affiliate of any of the foregoing persons, arising from your failure to provide any requested documentation or other information to us, is economically borne by you.
- 18.5 The Client shall be solely responsible for all filings, tax returns, and reports on any Transactions which should be made to any relevant authority, governmental or otherwise, and for the payment of all taxes (including but not limited to any transfer or value-added taxes) arising in connection with any Transaction.
- 18.6 The Company is not liable to disclose any reports regarding profits, commissions, and other fees received by Company from the Client's trading unless stated otherwise by the Agreement.
- 18.7 By opening an account, the Client unconditionally accepts all fees applicable to his or her account as per trading conditions described on the Company Website.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

19. Amendments and Termination

- 19.1 We may amend or replace any clause or part of the Agreement in whole or in part by giving you written notification of the changes through electronic medium. Amendments to this Agreement will not be valid and binding unless they are expressly agreed by us in writing. We will only make changes for good reason including but not limited to:
 - 19.1.1 making them clearer or more favourable to you;
 - 19.1.2 reflecting legitimate changes in the cost of providing the service to you;
 - 19.1.3 reflecting a change of applicable law, regulation or codes of practice or decisions by a court, ombudsman, regulator or similar body;
 - 19.1.4 reflecting changes in market conditions;
 - 19.1.5 reflecting changes in the way we do business.
- 19.2 If you object to any change you must tell us within 14 days of the date the notice is deemed received by you under clause 23 ("Notices"). If you do not do so you will be deemed to have accepted the change(s). If you give us notice that you object, then the changes will not be binding on you, but we may require you to close your Account as soon as reasonably practicable and/or restrict you to placing Trades and/or Orders to close your Open Positions.
- 19.3 Subject to clause 21.2 the amendments or new terms made pursuant to this clause 21 will apply (including to all Open Positions and unexecuted Orders) from the effective date (which we will state) of the change specified in the notice.
- 19.4 In addition to any other rights specified in this Agreement, we may end this Agreement and close your Account at any time giving you 14 days written notice. This is in addition to any other rights to end this Agreement and/or close your Account which we may have.
- 19.5 You may also end the Agreement and/or close your Account at any time, in whole or in part, by giving us written notice. Your Account will be closed as soon as reasonably practicable after we receive notice, all Open Positions are closed, all Orders cancelled and all of your obligations discharged.
- 19.6 Where either you or we provide notice to close your Account and/or end this Agreement under this clause 21, we reserve the right to refuse to allow you to enter into any further Trades or Orders which may lead to you holding further Open Positions.

20. General Provisions Relating to the Agreement

20.1 A court or regulatory authority may decide that a part or clause of this Agreement is not enforceable. If this happens then the relevant part of the Agreement will be given no effect and will not be considered part of the Agreement. This will not invalidate any other clause or part of the Agreement.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 20.2 You may not assign or transfer any of your rights or obligations under this Agreement without our prior written consent. We may assign or transfer all or any of our rights or obligations under this Agreement to any person. In connection with such transfer we may disclose to such prospective transferee any of your confidential information for any purpose relating to such transfer. We will comply with BVI Rules or any other applicable rule which may apply to this transfer.
- 20.3 Either you or we may elect not to require the other party to comply with this Agreement, or may delay requiring the other party to do so. This will not amount to a waiver by the party making such election of its rights under this Agreement unless that party clearly states that this is its intention. This means that the relevant party can still require compliance with the Agreement in future.
- 20.4 Except as provided by clauses 17, 18, 19 and 31.5, no clause of this Agreement is intended to confer any benefit on any person who is not a party to it or to be enforceable under the Contracts.
- 20.5 The Agreement may, however, be enforced by any of our Affiliates. We do not require the consent of our Affiliates or any other third party to vary, amend, modify, suspend, cancel or terminate any provision of the Agreement.

21. Notices

- 21.1 This clause 23 does not apply when:
 - 21.1.1 You place Orders and execute Trades pursuant to this Agreement, in which case communications shall be handled pursuant to clauses 44 and 52;
 - 21.1.2 we provide notice of changes to Margin Requirements, Margin Factors or Margin Multipliers pursuant to clause 49; or
 - 21.1.3 we provide notice of changes to the Margin Close Out Level applicable to your Account pursuant to clause 51.9.
- 21.2 When a notice may be given in writing, it may be provided by letter, fax, email or our Website including the Trading Platform.
- 21.3 We may send notices to you at your last known home or email address, place of work, fax, telephone, pager number or other contact details.
- 21.4 You must send notices by letter to Client Management at Our Address.
- 21.5 Unless specifically agreed otherwise in these General Terms, any notice given by us to you or by you to us will be deemed given and received if:
 - 21.5.1 sent by email before 4pm on a Business Day: one hour after sending. If sent by email at any other time: 9:00 am on the next Business Day.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

21.6 Additionally:

- 21.6.1 we may give you a notice by SMS text in which case you will be deemed to have received such a message one hour after we have sent it; and/or
- 21.6.2 we may leave you a message on our Website or Trading Platform and this will be deemed delivered one hour after we have posted it.

22. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Language

- 22.1 The Agreement and our relations before we entered into this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with BVI Law.
- 22.2 Subject to clauses 24.3 and 24.4, the Courts of BVI will have exclusive jurisdiction over any claim or matter arising under or in connection with the Agreement and the legal relationships established by the Agreement.
- 22.3 Subject to clauses 24.3 and 24.4, we shall be entitled to take proceedings against you in any other competent jurisdiction, and the taking of proceedings in any one or more jurisdictions will not preclude the taking of proceedings in any other jurisdictions, whether concurrently or not, to the extent permitted by the law of such other jurisdiction.

23. Supplemental Terms

These Terms

- 23.1 These Supplemental Terms set out the terms and conditions under which we offer a range of CFDs (our "CFD Markets") and FX Contracts and it forms part of the Agreement.
- 23.2 Unless separately defined in these Supplemental Terms, words and expressions shall have the meanings given to them in the General Terms.

Contracts for Differences

- 23.3 A contract for differences ("CFD") is an investment contract for which the profit or loss is the difference between the opening and closing price of the contract. The price of a CFD is determined by reference to the price of another financial instrument, such as: shares, indices, commodities, or fixed-income securities. Features of our CFDs are described below.
- 23.4 Trades in CFD Markets may be placed through the Trading Platform or by calling Client Management.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 23.5 We will quote, execute and settle Trades for CFD Markets in the currency in which the Underlying Instrument is denominated. However, we may convert the value of any Open Position for Account valuation and other purposes under clause 8 of the General Terms.
- 23.6 Commercial information (including but not limited to Market Hours, minimum and maximum Quantities and expiry dates) for each CFD Market is set out in the relevant Market Information.
- 23.7 For CFD Markets that do not specify an expiry date, your Open Positions will remain open until closed in accordance with the General Terms ("Closing Trades").
- 23.8 For CFD Markets that specify an expiry date ("Expiry CFD Markets"), your Open Positions will close and settle automatically on the expiry date specified in the Market Information unless you or we close the position in accordance with the General Terms before that date.
- 23.9 You may give instructions to "roll" any Open Position in an Expiry CFD Market prior to the expiry date. If we agree to roll the Open Position we will do so in accordance with clause 47 of the General Terms ("Rollover"). If you wish for any Orders attached to the Open Position to apply to the new Open Position, you must give us express instructions to attach the Orders to the new Open Position.

Leveraged FX

- 23.10 A leveraged FX contract is a margined over the counter (i.e. not executed on an exchange) trade between you and us where the price is determined by reference to the exchange rate between the currency pair that underlies the contact ("FX Contract").
- 23.11 Trades in FX Contracts may be placed through the Trading Platform or as otherwise permitted in accordance with clause 44 of the General Terms ("Client Order and transaction").
- 23.12 We may convert the value of any Open Position denominated in one currency to another currency for Account valuation and other purposes under clauses 40.8 and 8 of the General Terms ("Currency accounts and Conversions").
- 23.13 All Trades and Open Positions resulting from an FX Contract continue until closed by you or us in accordance with the General Terms. FX Contracts are not automatically closed or rolled on a daily basis.

Profit and Loss

23.14 Profits and losses for an Open Position will be credited or debited to your Unrealized P & L. Unrealized Losses may not allow you to place additional Trades and Unrealized Profits may not be available to be withdrawn until the Open Position is closed. Unrealized

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- Losses will reduce the amount you have available to place Trades and may result in your positions being closed under clause 51 of the General Terms ("Margin Close Out Level").
- 23.15 For CFDs, when an Open Position is closed Realized Profit or Realized Loss is calculated as: the difference between the opening value of the Open Position (Quantity x Our Price at opening) and its closing value (Quantity x Our Price at closing).
- 23.16 For FX Contracts, when an Open Position is closed, Realized Profit or Realized Loss is calculated as: (the difference between the opening and closing price) x Quantity.
- 23.17 Realized Profits or Realized Losses will be credited to or debited from your Cash.

Taxes

- 23.18 We are permitted, but not required, to withhold any sums for tax purposes on the Realized Profits or on any Daily Financing Fees that you receive as a result of holding positions in CFD and FX Contract Markets.
- 23.19 You are responsible for the payment of all taxes that may arise in relation to your Trades and we recommend. There may be taxes imposed that are not paid by us on your behalf. For all personal Tax enquires relating to tax arising from Trading, that you seek independent tax advice.

24. Communication

- 24.1 In order to communicate with the Client, the Company may use:
 - 24.1.1 Client Terminal internal mail
 - 24.1.2 Email
 - 24.1.3 Telephone
 - 24.1.4 Company's Live Chat
 - 24.1.5 SMS
 - 24.1.6 Mobile push notifications
 - 24.1.7 Web push notifications
 - 24.1.8 Instant messenger services (Viber, Telegram, Facebook Messenger, Whatsapp, etc.).

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 24.2 Company will use contact details provided by the Client whilst opening the Trading Account, and the Client agrees to accept any notices or messages from the Company at any time.
- 24.3 Any piece of information sent to the Client (documents, notices, confirmations, statements, etc.) shall be deemed received:
 - 24.3.1 Within one hour after an email has been sent if the information has been sent by email
 - 24.3.2 Immediately after sending if sent by the Trading Platform internal mail
 - 24.3.3 Once the telephone conversation has been finished if contacted by phone
 - 24.3.4 Within one hour after it has been posted on the Company News Webpage if posted at the Company's Website.
- 24.4 On the first day of each month, the Company will send the Client a statement that includes all Transactions of the previous month. The Statement shall be sent by email.
- 24.5 Any telephone conversation between the Client and the Company may be recorded. All Instructions and Requests received by telephone will be binding as if received in writing. Any recordings shall be and remain the sole property of the Company and will be accepted by the Client as conclusive evidence of the Instructions, Requests, or other arising obligations. The Client agrees that the Company may deliver copies of transcripts of such recordings to any court, regulatory, or government authority.

25. Server log file

- 25.1 The Server Log File is the most reliable source of information in case of any Dispute. The Server Log File has absolute priority over other arguments including the Client Terminal Log File as the Client Terminal Log File does not register every stage of the execution of the Client's Instructions and Requests.
- 25.2 If the Server Log File has not recorded the relevant information to which the Client refers, the argument based on this reference may not be considered.

26. Force majeure

- 26.1 The Company may, in its reasonable opinion, determine that a Force Majeure Event exists, in which case the Company will in due course take reasonable steps to inform the Client. A Force Majeure Event includes without limitation:
 - 26.1.1 Any act, event or occurrence (including, without limitation, any strike, riot or civil commotion, an act of terrorism, war, an act of God, accident, fire, flood,

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

storm, interruption of power supply, electronic, communication equipment or supplier failure, civil unrest, statutory provisions, lockouts) which, in the Company's reasonable opinion, prevents the Company from maintaining an orderly market in one or more of the Instruments

- 26.1.2 The suspension, liquidation or closure of any market or the abandonment or failure of any event to which the Company relates its Quotes or the imposition of limits or special or unusual terms on the trading in any such market or on any such event.
- 26.2 In case the Company determines in its reasonable opinion that a Force Majeure Event exists (without prejudice to any other rights under the Agreement), the Company may without prior Written Notice and at any time take any of the following steps:
 - 26.2.1 Increase margin requirements
 - 26.2.2 Close down any or all Open Positions at the prices which the Company shall in good faith consider to be appropriate
 - 26.2.3 Suspend, freeze, or modify the application of any or all terms of the Agreement to the extent that the Force Majeure Event makes it impossible or impractical for the Company to comply with them, or
 - 26.2.4 Take or omit to take all such other actions as the Company deems to be reasonably appropriate in the circumstances regarding the position of the Company, the Client, and other Clients.

27. Notice Regarding MetaTrader

- 27.1 MetaTrader (including MetaTrader 4, MetaTrader 5 and future MetaTrader product offerings that may become available) is a third-party trading platform provided by MetaQuotes for which OGL does not own the intellectual property. MetaTrader may or may not run in a OGL datacenter, and may or may not be supported by OGL personnel. OGL offers MetaTrader alongside its own proprietary trading platforms to offer its users the ability to select a platform that has the functionality that best suits their individual needs. However, users should be aware: (1) that OGL does not endorse MetaTrader; and (2) there are additional risks associated when using MetaTrader.
- 27.2 Since MetaTrader is provided by a third party, OGL does not have total control over the platform and as such OGL cannot guarantee the accuracy or validity of the account financial information or trading history of a user stored on MetaTrader.
- 27.3 Users that trade on MetaTrader are exposed to the risks associated with the system, including, but not limited to, the communication infrastructure that connects OGL to MetaTrader. As a result of any system failure or other interruption on MetaTrader, orders either may not be executed according to your instructions or may not be executed at all. Furthermore, as a result of any system failure or other interruption of

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- MetaTrader, you may not be able to place or change orders or view your trading positions or market data.
- 27.4 Meta Trader is provided by a third-party provider and not OGL. Therefore, to the extent not prohibited by law, OGL shall not be liable for any losses or damages suffered or incurred from the use, operation, or performance of MetaTrader. In addition, OGL shall have no responsibility or liability for any direct, indirect, punitive, incidental, special or consequential damages that arise from any fault, inaccuracy, omission, delay or any other failure of MetaTrader.
- 27.5 Meta Trader gives Users the ability to automate orders and trade requests. Where the number of these requests made by a User is excessively high and/or of a malicious nature, and in the sole opinion of OGL does not constitute reasonable or acceptable use, then OGL reserves the right to block that User, in its sole discretion.

28. Supplemental Terms

These Supplemental Terms set out the terms and conditions under which Orbit Global Ltd. ("OGL") offers you the Direct Market Access services described below (the "DMA Services"). These Supplemental Terms form part of the OGL General Terms, including the related Trading Policies and Procedures, in each case as amended from time to time (collectively, the "General Terms").

Unless separately defined in these Supplemental Terms, words and expressions shall have the same meanings given to them in the General Terms.

28.1 TERMS OF SERVICES PROVIDED; TRADING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.

- 28.1.1 Subject to the conditions of the General Terms and acceptance of your application to open an Account, OGL will maintain one or more Accounts in your name, and will affect cash settled and physically settled transactions with and for you in the international over-the-counter currency markets on a spot basis and provide such other services and products as OGL may, in its sole discretion, determine from time to time in the future. Unless expressly stated otherwise in writing, all transactions entered into in connection with the DMA Services shall be governed by the terms of the General Terms.
- 28.1.2 Upon receipt of an order from you as customer, OGL will attempt to place a financially equivalent order with its DMA Services liquidity provider(s) in OGL's name. Upon receipt of confirmation of fill price(s) from OGL's DMA Services liquidity provider(s), OGL will fill your order request, in part or in full, at the exact same price acting as counterparty to your trade. OGL's ability to fill your order will be contingent on OGL's ability to execute the order with its DMA Services liquidity provider(s) and pass these order fills on to you acting as counterparty to your trade. You acknowledge and agree that a lack of available liquidity from OGL's DMA Services liquidity providers may result in your order not being filled at any price. You further acknowledge and agree that OGL will display currently available pricing for the contracts offered under the DMA Services, but actual execution prices achieved in the market by OGL with its

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

DMA Services liquidity provider and passed on to you by OGL acting as counterparty to your trade may differ materially from pricing displayed, and you agree to accept the prices assigned to all filled orders pursuant to the DMA Services.

- 28.1.3 Unless otherwise specifically indicated in the trading platform through which you are accessing the DMA Services, all contingent and market orders placed on any trading day will expire at the end of each trading day.
- 28.1.4 Neither Request for Quote functionality nor a demo trading system will be offered as part of the DMA Services.

28.2 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

You hereby represent and warrant to OGL that:

- 28.2.1 your execution and delivery of these Supplemental Terms and your performance of all obligations contemplated hereunder have been duly authorized;
- 28.2.2 your execution and delivery of these Supplemental Terms and your use of the DMA Services offered hereunder shall not violate any law, rule, regulation, ordinance, charter, by-law or policy applicable to you; and
- 28.2.3 you acknowledge and agree that the transactions you execute through the platform will be subject to a commission and any bid/offer spread included in the foreign currency pricing offered to you via the platform through which you access the DMA Services.

28.3 RISK OF TRANSACTIONS

You acknowledge that you have been informed, and that you understand that (i) none of the DMA Services provided by OGL shall give rise to any fiduciary or equitable duties on our the part of OGL or any of its officers, directors, employees or affiliates; (ii) OGL may receive fees or other payments from one or more third parties in respect of any particular transaction executed in connection with the provision of the DMA Services hereunder; and (iii) the submitting or posting of any information to or on the platform by which the DMA Services are accessed by any person shall not be deemed to be a recommendation by any such person that you should enter into any particular transaction or that such transaction is suitable or appropriate for you.

28.4 TERMINATION

OGL may terminate these Supplemental Terms and your access to the DMA Services at any time for any reason or no reason, with or without notice, in its sole discretion.

29. Software and Technology

Trading in Exchange is in Electronic Mode. based on VSAT. leased line, ISDN, Modem and VPN, combination of technologies(Our Software name) and computer systems to place and route orders. I/we understand that there exists a possibility of communication failure or system

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

problems or slow or delayed response from system or trading halt or any break down in our back office/ front end system, or any such other problems/glitch whereby not being able to establish access to the trading system / network, which may be beyond your control and may result in delay in processing or not processing buy or sell Orders either in part or in full. I / We shall be fully liable and responsible for any such problem/fault.

30. Liability and Indemnity

Without prejudice to any other terms of this Agreement, relating to the limitation of liability and provision of indemnities, you acknowledge and agree the following Clauses shall apply to our Online Trading Platform:

(1) System errors and Delays

We shall have no liability to you for damage which you may suffer as a result of transmission errors, technical faults, malfunctions, illegal intervention in network equipment, network overloads, malicious blocking of access by third parties, internet malfunctions, interruptions or other deficiencies on the part of internet service providers. You acknowledge that access to an Online Trading Platform may be limited or unavailable due to such system errors, and that we reserve the right upon notice to suspend access to an Online Trading Platform for this reason.

Neither we nor any third-party software provider accept any liability in respect of any delays, inaccuracies, errors or omissions in any data provided to you in connection with an Online Trading Platform. We do not accept any liability in respect of any delays, inaccuracies or errors in prices quoted to you if these delays, inaccuracies or errors are caused by third-party service providers with which we may collaborate.

We shall not be obliged to execute any instruction which has been identified that is based on errors caused by delays of our Online Trading Platform to update prices provided by the related-party service providers. We do not accept any liability towards executed Transactions that have been based on and have been the result of delays as described above.

(2) Underlying Markets

We shall not be liable for any act taken by or on the instruction of an Exchange, clearing house or regulatory body.

(3) Suspension or permanent withdrawal with notice

We may suspend or permanently withdraw an Online Trading Platform, by giving you 24 hours written notice.

(4) Immediate suspension or permanent withdrawal

We have the right, unilaterally and with immediate effect, to suspend or withdraw permanently your ability to use any Online Trading Platform, or any part thereof, without notice, where we consider it necessary or advisable to do so, for example due

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

to your non-compliance with the Applicable Regulations, breach of any provisions of this Agreement, on the occurrence of an Event of Default, network problems, failure of power supply, for maintenance, or to protect you when there has been a breach of security. In addition, the use of an Online Trading Platform may be terminated automatically, upon the termination (for whatever reason) of:

- I. Any licence granted to us which relates to our online trading platform; or
- II. This agreement.

(5) Viruses from an Online Trading Platform and Unauthorised Use

We shall have no liability to you (whether in contract or in tort, including negligence) for any loss, liability or cost whatsoever from any unauthorised use of our Online Trading Platform and in the event that any viruses, worms, software bombs or similar items are either introduced into our computer system or network or introduced into your computer or other electronic device via an Online Trading Platform or any software provided by us to you in order to enable you to use our Online Trading Platform, provided that we have taken reasonable steps to prevent any such introduction. You shall indemnify us on demand for any loss that we suffer arising as a result of any such introduction. You shall also, on demand, indemnify, protect and hold us harmless from and against all losses, liabilities, judgments, suits, actions, proceedings, claims, damages and costs resulting from or arising out of any act or omission by any person using an Online Trading Platform with your designated passwords, whether or not you authorised such use.

(6) Misquotes / Mispricing

- (a) It is possible, but extremely rare, that a transaction may be performed on a wrong price due a miss-quote price feed from any of our third-party liquidity providers or through an unexpected technical fault. Equally, there may be delays due to internet connection or occasions where a position is opened or closed based on latent prices that do not reflect the correct market prices at the time of transaction, resulting in an inaccurate profit or inaccurate loss.
- (b) Such events may affect your transactions and our business. In this case, we will take all the necessary measures, immediately, to remedy and rectify the situation, as it is fair and suited to each case. Remedies include correcting deal entry prices or exit prices according to the correct market rates at the time of transaction. We may need to cancel any transaction(s) which are executed wrongly due to the 'price misquote', for example from pre-set limit/pending orders been triggered due to mispricing. We make our best efforts to contact and inform you for our actions, by telephone or by e-mail.

31. Scalping

Scalping is a trading strategy which is considered as an unacceptable practice, if used to return profits by taking advantage of internet latencies, delayed prices or through high volumes of transactions targeting tick fluctuations (rather than price movements) where trades are

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

opened and closed very quickly. Such trading behaviour is considered a breach of Orbit Global Ltd. Terms of Business, as such we reserve the right to act reasonably in good faith and at our sole discretion to:

- 31.1 Immediately terminate your account and your access to our servers.
- 31.2 Void any trade (i.e., treat the trade as if the trade had never taken place) which was part of any Scalping activity.
- 31.3 Close any trade, which formed any part of the Scalping activity, on the basis of our current market price.
- 31.4 We can exercise the above rights even if you have entered into (or refrained from entering into) arrangements with third parties relating to the relevant trade and even if you may suffer a trading loss as a result.

Please be advised that all trading activity is monitored, and in the event it is identified that you are Scalping we reserve the right to close your account with immediate effect. Orbit Global Ltd. will not be held liable for any losses incurred.

32. Banned/Prohibited Jurisdictions

- 32.1 The Company reserves the right and is entitled to at any time, and upon its sole discretion, to restrict offering its services to certain jurisdictions and consider them as banned countries in terms of engagement with the potential clients (the "Banned Jurisdictions"). Currently the Company does not accept new clients and/or the opening of new accounts from the following jurisdictions:
- 32.2 Afghanistan Åland Islands, Albania, American Samoa, Anguilla, Antarctica, Bahamas, Barbados, Belarus, Belgium, Bonaire, Sint Eustatius and Saba, Botswana, Bouvet Island, Brazil, British Indian Ocean Territory, Burkina Faso, Burundi, Cambodia, Canada, Cayman Islands, China, Christmas Island, Conco, Conco (Democratic Republic of the), Cuba, Dominica, Eritrea, Ethiopia, Falkland Islands (Malvinas), Fiji, French Polynesia, French Southern Territories, Ghana, Gibraltar, Grenada, Guam, Haiti, Heard Island and McDonald Islands, Holy See, Hong Kong, Iran, Iraq, Israel, Jamaica, Japan, Jordan, Lao People's Democratic Republic, Lebanon, Libya, Mali, Marshall Islands, Mayotte, Mongolia, Morocco, Mozambique, Myanmar, Netherlands Antilles, New Zealand, Niue, Norfolk Island, North Korea, Northern Mariana Islands, Palau, Panama, Philippines, Pitcairn, Puerto Rico, Russia, Saint Barthélemy, Saint Helena, Ascension and Tristan da Cunha, Saint Kitts and Nevis, Samoa, Senegal, Serbia, Singapore, Sint Maarten (Dutch part), Somalia, South Georgia and the South Sandwich Islands, South Sudan, Sri Lanka, St Lucia, Sudan, Syrian Arab Republic, Taiwan, Tokelau, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunisia, Turkey, Turks and Caicos Islands, Tuvalu, Uganda, United States, United States Minor Outlying Islands, United States of America, US Virgin Islands, Vanuatu, Venezuela, Yemen, Zimbabwe and any such other jurisdiction as we may from time to time at the Company's discretion designate as a "Banned Jurisdiction".
- 32.3 The aforementioned list of countries is subject to alteration at any time that the Company deems proper in its sole and absolute discretion without any prior notice. For any enquiries as to this list, customers may contact the Company's customer support for an updated list of banned countries.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

32.4 The client hereby confirms that, by agreeing to this Agreement, he or she is residing in a jurisdiction that allows them to trade the product(s) they wish to trade with the Company. The client covenants to inform the Company should his/her situation alter in any way. The Company reserves the right to request any additional information deemed necessary in order to verify compliance with this clause. The client will also inform the Company if they are not a citizen of the country in which they reside.

33. Negative Balance Protection

Trading in leveraged CFDs, involves significant risk and can result in the loss of all of the client's invested capital. However, it should be noted that Final to BVI is on a 'negative balance protection' basis which means that the client cannot lose more than his/ her overall invested capital (deposit).

Notwithstanding the above provision, in the case of Price Slippage or Market Gapping occurring, you Order may be executed at a price materially different to proposed execution price indicated at the time of placing the Order and in such cases such additional protection mechanisms as the negative balance protection will be correspondingly affected.

We reserve the right, at our sole and absolute discretion, to withdraw the 'negative balance protection': (i) with immediate effect at any indication or suspicion of abuse; and/or (ii) when Final to BVI considers it reasonably necessary (e.g. risk management) we will provide you with at least five (5) days' notice will be provided (unless notice is given prior any trading is conducted in the Account in which case it has immediate effect).

34. CFDs in Crypto currencies

When trading in CFDs where the underlying asset is a crypto currency, you should be aware that the crypto currencies are traded on non-regulated decentralized digital exchanges. Accordingly, price formation and price movements of the crypto currencies depend solely on the internal rules of the particular digital exchange, which may be subject to change at any point in time and without notice. This often leads to a very high intra-day volatility in the prices of the crypto currencies which may be substantially higher compared to other instruments. Therefore, by trading CFDs in crypto currencies you accept a significantly higher risk of loss of your invested amounts which may occur within a very short time frame as a result of sudden adverse price movements of the cryptocurrenci1es. We derive our market and pricing data on the crypto currencies from the digital decentralized exchanges the crypto currencies are traded on. Due to the non-regulated nature of such exchanges, the market data and price feed information provided by such exchanges may be subject to the internal rules and practices of such exchanges which may significantly differ from the rules and practices observed by the regulated exchanges. In particular, you should be aware that the pricing formation rules of the crypto currency exchanges are not subject to any regulatory supervision and may be changed at the relevant digital exchange's discretion at any time. Similarly, such digital exchanges may introduce trading suspensions or take other actions that may result in suspension or cessation of trading on such exchanges or the price and market data feed becoming unavailable to us. The above factors could result in a material adverse effect on your

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

open positions, including the loss of all of your invested amounts. Where a temporary or permanent disruption to or cessation of trading occurs on any digital exchange from which we derive our price feeds for the relevant crypto currency, your positions in such crypto currency will be priced at the last available price for the relevant crypto currency, and you may be unable to close or liquidate your position or withdraw any funds related to such position until the trading on the relevant digital exchange resumes (if at all). You accept that where trading resumes again at either the relevant original digital exchange or on any successor exchange thereof, there may be significant price differential (price gapping) which may impact the value of your CFD positions in the relevant crypto currencies and result in significant gains or losses. In the event that the trading resumes on any other successor exchange than the relevant original digital exchange, the Company reserves the right to perform adjustments in order to neutralize the effect of the price difference of the two exchanges. Where trading does not resume, your entire investment will potentially be lost.

35. Introducer

- 35.1 In cases where the Client is introduced to the Company through a third person ("Introducer"), the Client acknowledges that, the Company is not responsible or accountable for the conduct and/or representations of the Introducer and the Company is not bound by any separate agreements entered into between the Client and the Introducer.
- 35.2 The Client acknowledges and confirms that his agreement or relationship with the Introducer may result in additional costs, since the Company may be obliged to pay commission fees or charges to the Introducer.
- 35.3 This Agreement also governs the contractual relationship between the Introducer and Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies, by which the Introducer can, subject to the present terms and conditions, be remunerated for introducing Clients to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies.
- 35.4 The Introducer is engaged in the business of soliciting Clients in respect of financial services transactions and agrees to act as a mediator between Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and his Clients for the purposes of carrying out all the necessary preparatory work for the conclusion of an agreement between Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and a Client.
- 35.5 The Introducer, if required under applicable laws and regulations, is solely responsible to ensure that he/she is registered as an Introducer, or in some other capacity which authorizes the Introducer to undertake and provide to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies the services contemplated under this Agreement.

36. Introducer's Right and Responsibilities

36.1 In order for an Introducer to be considered for participation by Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies in the Introducer Program, the Introducer must complete and submit the

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- online application/questionnaire within the private section of the Introducer Panel at www.orbitglobalfx.com and accept online the present Agreement.
- 36.2 The Introducer as an individual hereto represents that he or she has the full right, power, and authority to enter into and be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to perform his or her obligations under this Agreement, without the approval or consent of any other party and/or confirms that he or she is qualified under any applicable regulatory requirements to offer the services mentioned in this Agreement.
- 36.3 If the Introducer is a company or a legal entity then the person agreeing to this Agreement on behalf of that company or entity hereby represents and warrants that he or she is authorized and lawfully able to bind that company or entity to this Agreement and the company has the full right, power and authority to enter into and be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to perform its obligations under this Agreement without the approval or consent of any other third party
- 36.4 The Introducer represents and warrants that where it applies is qualified under any applicable regulatory requirements to offer Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies, the products and services mentioned in this Agreement, and that all actions that will be performed by the Introducer will comply with the applicable Laws and /or Regulations and/or Directives. The Introducer hereby acknowledges that is solely responsible for being updated on all matters that are related to the applicable Regulations, Laws and Directives.
- 36.5 Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies will evaluate the Introducer's application in good faith and will notify the Introducer of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or of the Companies acceptance or rejection in a timely manner. If the Introducer's application is rejected for any reason, the Introducer may reapply only once the Introducer has rectified the issues which lead to his or her rejection.
- 36.6 Once the Introducer registers, provides his contact e mail address and creates password, the Introducer will be granted access to the secure Introducer Panel. From this Introducer Panel the Introducer will be able to access information with regards to the Introducer's performance and commissions.
- 36.7 The Introducer must provide shortly to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies, sufficient proof of identity documentation, and where applicable proof of address, as these may be requested from time to time. Orbit Global Ltd. will exercise due skill, care and due diligence when entering into, managing or
- 36.8 Creating any arrangement with an Introducer and may provide the Introducer with an appropriate and effective training in relation to the Services provided under this Agreement and the Introducer shall be obliged to follow as per the Agreement.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 36.9 The Introducer must provide true and complete information to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies, as these may be requested from time to time, about the Introducer and/or his/her activities and/or his/her blog and/or his/her website and/or his/her social media profile and/or any other information directly and/or indirectly related to the terms of the present Agreement and notify Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies promptly in case of any changes.
- 36.10 The Introducer upon the commencement of this Agreement must provide immediately to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies sufficient proof of ownership of the Introducer's blog and/or website and/or social media profile and/or otherwise, as these may be requested from time to time.
- 36.11 The Introducer acknowledges that he/she is aware of the contents and understands the Orbit Global Ltd.' and/or the Companies' Compliance and where applicable Anti Money Laundering Policies, which may be modified from time to time, and agrees to operate in accordance with the policies and procedures contained therein.
- 36.12 The Introducer shall always maintain in force all necessary registrations, authorizations, consents and licenses to be enabled to fulfil his or her obligations under this Agreement, has the ability, sufficient resources, and capacity to enter into this Agreement and will fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations (including but not limited to financial services regulations, data protection, trademark, copyright and anti-spamming rules) applicable to the Introducer or to the jurisdiction in which the Introducer is resident or carry on business.
- 36.13 Whenever requested, the Introducer will supply details and evidence of its status And business and of the licensing and/or authorization requirements applicable to the Introducer's activities at Orbit Global Ltd.' and/or the Companies' request.
- 36.14 The Introducer hereby confirms and understands that he/she shall not be entitled to receive any type of compensation when this is linked to the Introducer's personal/own trading activity with any one of the Companies and Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies shall have the right to supervise the Introducer effectively, in order to manage and/or exclude any risks that might be associated with this issue and/or any other issue related to the Introducer under this Agreement and generally assess the standard performance of the Introducer, retaining the necessary expertise and resources in order to do so.
- 36.15 To promote and market the ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. Products and Services the Introducer must use only the Promotional Material provided directly from Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies. In case when promotional materials will be prepared by the Introducer, the Introducer shall provide these promotional materials to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and shall obtain prior written approval before use of such promotional materials. From the moment when such promotional materials will be prepared based on a pre- approval as stated before, such promotional material shall become a property of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies. Promotional material, the same as landing

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

pages and other materials prepared by an Introducer in due course of this Agreement, must be used only after the Introducer has obtained written approval before they are launched, only for the purpose of this Agreement and must obtain Introducer's logo and a disclaimer that will state the following:

"All materials are prepared by the Introducer of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies bear no responsibility regarding provided information and/or materials. All claims should be addressed to the Introducer of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies, all rights of Orbit Global Ltd. and /or the Companies are reserved and Orbit Global Ltd. and /or the Companies brand and logo could not be used without prior written consent of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or of the Companies."

- 36.16 To perform the Services described in this Agreement, the Introducer shall bear all establishment and operational costs and expenses for any marketing, advertising and any other promotional or other activities related to the said Services.
- 36.17 Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies, holds the right to monitor the Introducer's site and/or website and/or blog and/or social media profile and/or any other site associated with the Introducer as deemed necessary and to make sure at all times that this Agreement does not result in the delegation by senior management of its responsibility and to ensure that:
 - 36.17.1 it is up-to-date and to notify the Introducer of any changes that Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies consider that could enhance Introducer's performance, instructions which the Introducer is obliged to follow and/or comply with.
 - 36.17.2 it contains relevant promotional materials.
 - 36.17.3 it does not breach IP rights and other proprietary rights of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or of the Companies.
 - 36.17.4 content of the promotional material is clear, fair not misleading and not aggressive.
 - 36.17.5 it is in compliant with the provisions of this Agreement.
 - 36.17.6 the Introducer upon Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies' request will provide all necessary website raw data files and access to the accounts of activities' monitoring including accounts change history where necessary. Such Access will be provided within 24 hours.
- 36.18 Any Promotional Material developed or created by Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and placed or used by the Introducer, is owned by Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and, except for the purpose of this Agreement, must not be used by the Introducer solely or in conjunction with any third party, without the prior written consent of the Company. Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies reserve the right, at

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

any time, to review the Introducer's placement of Promotional Material for the purpose of the present Agreement and approve its use of the Introducer's Links. Further, Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies may require that the Introducer changes the placement or use of such promotional material in order to comply with applicable Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies requirements such as:

- 36.18.1 the Introducer's website and/or social network should have a link directing prospective Clients to Orbit Global Ltd.' and/or the Companies site;
- 36.18.2 Orbit Global Ltd.' and/or the Companies Promotional Material could be provided to the prospective Client only with the prior written approval of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies;
- 36.18.3 the Introducer is obliged to place in an obvious location on Introducer's website its capacity as Introducer of the Company alongside with the name of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and Services to be provided;
- 36.19 Throughout the period that this Agreement shall be in force, the Introducer undertakes The responsibility to act in good faith at all times and must not make any false and/or misleading representations or statements with respect to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and/or the Introducer Program and/or Orbit Global Ltd. and/or ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. Products and/or the Services provided and/or engage in any other practice which may affect adversely the image, credibility or the reputation of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies.
- 36.20 The Introducer undertakes the strict responsibility not to take and/or assist and/or cause due to any act or omission, directly and/or indirectly to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and/or Orbit Global Ltd. and/or ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. and/or ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. Products and Services the following (list is not exhaustive):
 - 36.20.1 using any website for unlawful activities, or having any content on his or her website, that is defamatory, violent, pornographic, unlawful, threatening, obscene or racially, ethnically, or otherwise discriminatory or in breach of any third-party rights and shall not link to any such material; and/or
 - 36.20.2 violates any intellectual property or other proprietary rights of any third party or has defamatory or harassing and deceitful or untruthful comments and statements about Orbit Global Ltd. or Orbit Global Ltd. activities and business; and/ or
 - 36.20.3 contains software downloads that potentially enable diversions of commission from other Introducers in the Introducer Program.
- 36.21 Without prejudice to the foregoing, Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies will not be responsible and the Introducer will bear sole responsibility for his or her unlawful and/or illegal acts and/or omissions, including but not limited to the use of another person's copyrighted material or other intellectual property in violation of the applicable law or any third-party rights.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 36.22 Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies reserves the right at its absolute discretion to terminate this Agreement and the Introducer's participation in the Introducer Program and/or detach a Client from the Introducer and/or to cancel all orders and annul all profits and/or remove and deduct any Promotional Material which might be offered from time to time from the Introducer's account and/or the Client's account, with immediate effect when this is in the interest of its Clients, without any severe detriment, should the Introducer and/or any of his/hers Clients commit and/or Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies suspect that the Introducer and/or any of his/hers Clients commits any fraud in the use of and/or abuse of the Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies' Introducer Program and/or any attempt of collusion and/or manipulation and/or arbitrage and/or other forms of deceitful or fraudulent trading and/or other activity and/or breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and/or breach the conditions and/or breach the relevant applicable Laws, Regulations and Directives, and Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies shall not be liable to the Introducer for any commissions resulting from such fraud, breach or abuse detected and/or suspected. Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies will have the right to also take appropriate measures against the Introducer and inform at the same its clientele through its website for this termination.
- 36.23 The Introducer hereby acknowledges and accepts that it is prohibited to use the Promotional Materials and/or any other information provided by Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies in order to encourage users of its website and/or Prospective Clients of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or of the Companies to entrust the Introducer with funds for management and/or to offer in any way investment advisory services to prospective Clients on behalf of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies. Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies shall have the right to regularly verify and/or monitor that the Introducer does not proceed to any of these actions as stated hereunder and the Introducer agrees to such monitoring and provide all the necessary assets upon request within 24hours.
- 36.24 The Introducer must not transmit to or in any way, whether directly or indirectly, expose Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies' website, content, platform and any other of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies Property to any computer virus or other similarly harmful or malicious material, virus or device.
- 36.25 The Introducer must not cause or assist by any act or omission in the creation or design of any website, which explicitly or impliedly resembles the Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies' website and/or the ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. websites and/or leads Clients to believe the Introducer is Orbit Global Ltd. or any other Introduced business.
- 36.26 The Introducer shall promptly inform and/or disclose to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies of any development and/or information or acts of a third party that has become known to the Introducer that could potentially harm and/or have a material impact on Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and/or ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. and/or ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. Products & Services and/or their reputation in any way and manner.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 36.27 The Introducer cannot use or register a domain name or utilize through any search engine activity within any territory, keywords, search terms or any other brand identifiers for his/her activities with the name of ORBIT GLOBAL LTD., Orbit Global Ltd. or any other similar words or phrases which may cause confusion without the main brand's prior written consent, of Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies. The Introducer must add brand terms as negatives and actively target the brand through any media platforms settings where applicable. This includes, but not limited to PPC, Social media (including videos), mobile networks and display networks.
- 36.28 Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies reserves the right of request direct read only access to any paid search account for the purposes of monitoring keyword activity and the change history of an account at any time. Access will be granted within 24 hours of such a request. Access will be granted to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and/or the relevant authorities regarding all relevant data, books and/or even premises of the Introducer under this Agreement, for the purpose of more efficient monitoring.
- 36.29 As such, the Introducer hereby consents and accepts that the Introducer will not be entitled to compensation in the circumstances where such Prospective Clients and/or Clients are introduced from jurisdictions which are excluded as stated above.
- 36.30 Where an Introducer acts outside the scope of this Agreement and/or is in breach of any of the provisions of the Introducer Program and or if any of the provisions, herein applies, Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies shall have the right to cease the cooperation and take all the necessary measures against the Introducer, informing, at the same time, its' Clients through Orbit Global Ltd. website and/or ORBIT GLOBAL LTD. website, for such a termination.
- 36.31 Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies shall have the right to maintain registries and/or records with the Introducer, their associated Clients and the activities being carried out under this Agreement and the Introducer shall bear the responsibility to provide such records and/or reports to Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies on a monthly basis and/or as otherwise between Orbit Global Ltd. and/or the Companies and the Introducer.

37. General Information

- 37.1 Our trading service is an electronic service and you specifically consent to the receipt of documents in electronic form via email, our Website or other electronic means. We will not send a paper form of any communication sent to you unless you request us to do so. We reserve the right to charge for documents in a paper form.
- 37.2 You confirm that you have regular access to the internet and consent to us providing you with information about us and our services (including the Market Information), our costs and charges and our Notices and Policies by email or by posting such information on our Website or the Trading Platform.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 37.3 Unless we notify you and you agree otherwise, we will classify you as a Client for the purpose of BVI Rules. In certain circumstances we may wish to re-categorize you, but if we do so we will explain clearly why we are doing this and the effect this will have on your rights. Your express consent to this re-categorization will be required.
- 37.4 We will deal with you as principal and not as agent on your behalf. This means that any Trades are agreed directly between you and us and we will be the counterparty to all of your Trades.
- 37.5 Unless we agree otherwise in writing, you will also deal with us as principal and not as an agent or representative of another person. You will not permit any person to deal on your behalf unless we agree that such person (the "Agent") can act on your behalf. We will be entitled to rely on any instructions given to us by the Agent in relation to your Account. We may require confirmation that the Agent has authority to act on your behalf at any time we reasonably consider appropriate.
- 37.6 We shall not give advice to you on the merits of any Trade and shall deal with you on an execution-only basis. None of our staff are authorized by us or permitted under BVI Rules to give you investment advice. Accordingly, you should not regard any proposed trades, suggested trading strategies or other written or oral communications from us as investment recommendations or advice or as expressing our view as to whether a particular trade is suitable for you or meets your financial objectives. You must rely on your own judgement for any investment decision you make in relation to your Account. If you require investment or tax advice, please contact an independent investment or tax adviser.
- 37.7 You will not have any rights of ownership, delivery or otherwise in any Underlying Instrument as a result of a Trade with us. We will not transfer any Underlying Instrument or any rights (such as voting rights or delivery obligations) in it to you.

38. Account Information

38.1 After we have accepted your Application Form we will open your Account. We may open different Accounts for you (including different Accounts for different Product types). Depending on your knowledge, experience and types of Trades, certain Account types and features may or may not be available to you. When we open an Account for you we will inform you of the type of Account opened. We reserve the right to refuse to open an Account for any reason. Furthermore, we may change the features and criteria of our Accounts at any time by notifying you of the change whether on our Website, Trading Platform, via email or otherwise. Except as otherwise set forth herein (including to the extent provided for in clause 40.8 and the definition of "Portfolio Data Delivery Date" in clause 3) these General Terms will apply separately to each Account which we open for you. This means that a separate Cash balance, Net Equity, Trading Resource, Total

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

Margin and Margin Close-out Level will apply for each Account, and following an Event of Default, the Trades and Open Positions in respect of each Account will be dealt with separately from the Trades and Open Positions in respect of each other Account. An Open Position which is booked in one Account cannot be transferred to another Account except by closing that Open Position and entering into a new Trade to create an Open Position in the other Account. Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to applicable laws, if you have more than one Account, we shall be entitled in our discretion (but shall not be obliged) without notice to set off any available Cash balance, Net Equity, Trading Resource or other funds in one of your Accounts against any of your liability to us (including discharging Margin requirements or liabilities in one or more of your other Accounts) even if the exercise of such set off may result in the closure of open positions in any Account from which funds are transferred.

- 38.2 We are obliged by BVI Co. Rules to ensure that you understand the risks that you are exposing yourself to. In order to do so we need to obtain information about your relevant investment knowledge and experience so that we can assess whether a service or Product is appropriate for you; and if it is not to give you a suitable warning. If you choose not to provide us with the information we request or if you provide insufficient information we will not be able to determine whether the service or Product is appropriate for you. In these circumstances we shall give you a suitable warning and we may not be able to open an Account for you. Please note that we are not obliged to assess or ensure the suitability of any Trade you place.
- 38.3 We may also be required to obtain certain information about your other investment activities in order to ascertain your status for the purposes of regulations which apply to trading in over-the-counter derivatives.
- 38.4 You undertake that any information you provide to us is correct. You must immediately inform us of any material change to the information provided to us on your Application Form or by any other means, including any change to your contact details or financial status or any of the information referred to in clause 40.2.
- 38.5 For each Account that we open for you, we will provide you with a unique Account number and/or Username, as applicable, and will require such other Security Information as we consider appropriate:
 - 38.5.1 it is your responsibility to keep your Security Information (including your Account number and/or Username, as applicable) confidential;
 - 38.5.2 you agree that you will not disclose your Account number and/or Username, as applicable, or any other Security Information to any other person;
 - 38.5.3 we may agree separate Security Information with your Agent or any joint Account holders; and
 - 38.5.4 when you deal with us or give us an instruction, we will require details of your Security Information, including your Account number (or in the event your

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

Agent deals with us, your Agent's Account number) and/or Username as applicable.

- 38.6 Except where otherwise provided in this clause 45, you are responsible for paying any Losses, fees or charges arising from Trades entered into or instructions given using your Account number and/or Username, as applicable, and Security Information. You will be responsible for Losses where it can be shown that such Losses result from a person gaining access to our Trading Platform by abuse of our systems (that is by "hacking"/Cyber attack).
- 38.7 If you open an Account jointly in the name of yourself and others, then:
 - 38.7.1 we may act on instructions from either you or any other person in whose name the Account is opened (each a "Joint Account Holder"), including instructions to trade. In certain circumstances we may require instructions from all Joint Account Holders;
 - 38.7.2 we may give any notice or communication to either you or another Joint Account Holder;
 - 38.7.3 all Joint Account Holders shall be jointly and severally liable for Losses, fees or charges arising on a joint Account. Among other things, this means that any monies owed on the relevant Account shall be payable in full by you or any of the other Joint Account Holders; and
 - 38.7.4 if you or any other Joint Account Holder dies, we may take instructions from and pay any balance to the survivor(s).
- 38.8 We may inform you that your Accounts will be Linked Accounts. Your Linked Accounts may be aggregated for the purpose of calculating your Margin Level, your Total Margin or otherwise as specified in this Agreement.
- 38.9 Your Account will be denominated in a Base Currency. Your Base Currency can be found on the Trading Platform. We will only accept funds in your Base Currency. Trades for certain Markets may be conducted in other currencies however the resulting Open Positions may be valued at or converted to the Base Currency in accordance with clause 8 or the relevant Supplemental Terms.
- 38.10 Credit and debit entries, including any Daily Financing Fees, deposits and withdrawals, will be made to your Account. You are solely responsible for monitoring your Open Positions and any activity in your Account. We are not obliged to monitor or advise you on the effect of any Trade, Order or Open Position. You may access your Account information by logging into the Trading Platform or by calling Client Management.

39. Miscellaneous

39.1 The Company reserves the right to suspend the Client's Trading Account at any time for any valid reason with or without Written Notice to the Client.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 39.2 If the Balance of the Client's Trading Account equals zero, the Company reserves the right to delete such Trading Account within 60 (sixty) days after the last trading or monetary operation had been performed in this account with or without Written Notice to the Client.
- 39.3 If a situation not covered by the Agreement arises, the Company will resolve the matter on the basis of good faith and fairness and, where appropriate, by taking such action as is consistent with market practice.
- 39.4 In case any term of the Agreement (or any part of it) shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable for any reason, then such term shall to that extent be deemed severable and not form part of this Agreement. However, the enforceability of the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected.
- 39.5 The Client may not assign, charge or otherwise transfer or purport to assign the Client's rights or obligations under the Agreement without the prior written consent of the Company, and any purported assignment, charge, or transfer in violation of this term shall be voided.
- 39.6 The Client is entitled to make a request for changing the IB he or she was assigned to, for subscribing to the IB, and unsubscribing from the IB via the Company's Customer Support or by sending the corresponding written request at MAIL ID. However, the decision on approving this request shall be at the Company's sole discretion.
- 39.7 The Company is entitled to unsubscribe a Client from an IB at its sole discretion at any moment without any notice.
- 39.8 Where the Client comprises two or more persons, the liabilities and obligations under any agreement with the Company shall be joint and several. Any warning or other notice given to one of the persons who comprise the Client shall be deemed to have been given to all the persons who comprise the Client. Any Order given by one of the persons who comprise the Client shall be deemed to have been given by all the persons who comprise the Client.
- 39.9 The Client confirms that they've thoroughly read and agree to be bound by our Privacy Policy, Risk Disclosure, Return Policy, AML Policy, and any other documents that the Company may publish.

PART B: CLIENT ORDER AND TRADING PLATFORM

40. Client money

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 40.1 As a Client, any money which you have transferred or transfer to us, or which has been transferred to us, which is to be held by us on your behalf, is Client Money within the meaning of the Client Money Rules, and will be held by us on trust for you at all times and for this purpose. In accordance with the requirements of the Client Money Rules, Client Money must be and will be segregated from our own money. In the event of our insolvency, Client Money will be excluded from the assets available to our creditors.
- 40.2 We may hold Client Money on your behalf in an account with an approved bank or third party which may be located inside or outside the BVI. Any such account will be segregated from any account in which our own money or assets is held with the bank or third party, but may be subject to set- off rights of the bank or third party. The legal and regulatory regime applying to any bank or third party located outside the BVI may be different from that of the BVI. You should be aware that there is no deposit protection or guarantee which operates in relation to bank accounts held with BVI approved banks or a third party as permitted by clause 42.5. You should consider taking independent legal advice if you are concerned by the implications of money being held with an approved bank, or third party as permitted by clause 42.5, which may be located inside or outside of the BVI.

Professional Clients and Market Counterparties

- 40.3 If you have been categorized as a Professional Client or a Market Counterparty, we will hold your money as Client Money in accordance with clauses 42.1 and 42.2 unless you have agreed with us in writing that clause 42.4 applies.
- 40.4 Where this clause 42.4 applies, you agree that in relation to any money received by us from you, or received by us on your behalf: (a) full ownership of such money is transferred by you to us for the purpose of securing or covering all your present or future, actual or contingent, or prospective, obligations to us under this Agreement or otherwise; (b) we acquire full ownership of such money and we will not hold such money in accordance with the Client Money Rules; (c) you will have no proprietary claim over such money and we can deal with it as our own; (d) we will owe you a debt equal to the amount of such money received by us, subject to any set-off rights under, or other terms of, this Agreement, or under general law; (e) in the event of our insolvency you will rank as a general creditor of ours in relation to such money; (f) we shall pay to you all or part of any amount owed by us to you under this clause to the extent that we consider, in our discretion, that the amount of money you have transferred to us exceeds the amount required by us to secure or cover all your present or future, actual or contingent, or prospective, obligations to us under this Agreement or otherwise; (g) we shall be obliged to pay to you all amounts owed by us to you under this clause upon the earliest of: (i) termination of the title transfer arrangement in accordance with this clause; (ii) termination of this Agreement under clause 21; or (iii) exercise by us of our rights under clause 54, in each case subject to any set-off rights under, or other terms of, this Agreement. Any title transfer of cash under this clause may be terminated by us at any time by notice to you, and shall terminate in the event of termination of this Agreement under clause 21.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

General

- 40.5 Where any bank or other permitted third party holds money under this clause 42: (a) we will not be liable for the acts or omissions of, or failure or insolvency or any analogous event affecting, such entity; and (b) in the event of the insolvency or other analogous proceeding in relation to such entity, we may have only an unsecured claim against such entity on behalf of you and our other clients, and you may be exposed to the risk that the money recovered by us from such entity is insufficient to satisfy the claims of you and all other clients with claims in respect of the relevant account.
- 40.6 We do not pay interest on any Client Money, or money that you transfer to us under clause 42.4, unless we have expressly agreed to do so in writing.
- 40.7 You will not grant any security interest over any Client Money held in your Account, or any claim against us for money due to you under clause 42.4, to any person other than us.
- 40.8 Where any amounts owed by you to us under the Agreement are due and payable to us, in accordance with the Client Money Rules we shall cease to treat as Client Money so much of any Client Money held on your behalf as equals the those amounts. You agree that we may apply that money in or towards satisfaction of all or part of those amounts due and payable to us. For the purposes of this clause, any such amounts owed by you to us under this Agreement become immediately due and payable, without notice or demand by us, when incurred by you or on your behalf.
- 40.9 You agree that where there has been no movement on your Client Money balance for a period of at least one year (disregarding any payment or receipt of interest, charges or similar items), we may pay such Client Money to the registered charity of our choice: (a) provided that we have taken reasonable steps to trace you and to return the Client Money balance, and in such case we hereby unconditionally undertake that, where any of your Client Money has been paid to charity in accordance with this sub-clause (a), and you subsequently claim against us for such amount of Client Money, we shall pay to you a sum equal to the amount paid to charity; or (b) where the amount of Client Money is US\$ 100 or less, provided we have made at least two attempts to contact you to return the Client Money balance, using the most up-to-date contact details we have for you, and you have not responded to such communication within 60 days of the last communication having been made.
- 40.10 We may transfer any money we hold for you as Client Money (after deduction of any amounts permitted by the terms of this Customer Agreement) to another legal entity (including any of our group companies) where we transfer all or part of our business to that entity and your Client Money relates to the business transferred. Where we transfer your Client Money to another legal entity under this clause we shall require that

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

such Client Money will be held by that entity for you in accordance with the Client Money Rules.

- 40.11 You agree that we shall be entitled to treat Client Money as due and payable to us, to the extent of all or any part of the obligations owed by you to us under this Agreement which are due and payable to us but unpaid.
- 40.12 In this clause 42 "Client Money Rules" means the provisions of the Securities and Investment Business Act, 2010 (the "SIBA", or the "Act") and the BVI Regulatory Code, 2009 (the "Regulations"), and associated statements of guidance, as amended and/or updated from time to time, relating to Client Money held by firms carrying out activities regulated under Securities and Investment Business Act, 2010 (the "SIBA", or the "Act") and the BVI Regulatory Code, 2009 (the "Regulations"), of the BVI.

41. Types of Accounts

The company offers the following type of Accounts, depending on the legal status of the client: (a) Individual account; (b) Joint account; (c) Company account;

Other account types may be available. Please speak to the Company's customer support function to find out more.

42. Client orders and transactions

- 42.1 You may place an Order via the Trading Platform, or in such other manner as we may specify to you in writing from time to time. In such circumstances:
 - 42.1.1 when you do so you are offering to enter into a Trade with us at the price we quote (or within your specified Price Tolerance if applicable to your Account) when you complete all obligatory fields and click the relevant icon; and
 - 42.1.2 when we receive your Order we will provide you with an electronic acknowledgement of receipt but you and we will be bound by a Trade only when details of the Trade are reported as executed on the Trading Platform. If you do not see details of the executed Trade on the Trading Platform, please call us immediately to confirm the status of the Trade through Email Info@orbitglobalfx.com or mobile +971 42570725.
- 42.2 We may accept Orders by telephone. In the event you place an Order by telephone:
 - 42.2.1 your oral instruction to Trade will constitute an offer to enter into a Trade at the price we quote. Trades placed by telephone will only be accepted at the current Our Price;
 - 42.2.2 you can place an Order by telephone only by talking directly to an authorized person. We will not accept an Order left with other employees, on an answering machine or on a voice mail facility;

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 42.2.3 you and we will be bound by a Trade only when our authorized person confirms that the offer has been accepted. After we execute the Trade we will send you a contract note as described in clause 52.
- 42.3 You may place an electronic Order on the Trading Platform at any time or you may place a telephone Order with an authorized dealer during our Trading Hours. However, we will execute Trades only during times which are both our Trading Hours and the Market Hours for the relevant Market. Market Hours are as stated in the Market Information and may change from time to time.
- 42.4 Prices quoted by us (whether by telephone, the Trading Platform or otherwise) do not constitute a contractual offer to enter into a Trade at the price quotes or at all. We reserve the right to refuse to enter into any Trade. Such situations include but are not limited to, when:
 - 42.4.1 Trades are placed outside of the Market Hours;
 - 42.4.2 Trades are individually or in the aggregate larger than the maximum Quantity or smaller than the minimum Quantity we set for the Market;
 - 42.4.3 Our Price has moved unfavourably in excess of the specified Price Tolerance (if applicable to your Account);
 - 42.4.4 your Trading Resource is insufficient to fund the proposed Trade;
 - 42.4.5 entry into the Trade would cause you to exceed the maximum Total Margin, if any, applied to your Account;
 - 42.4.6 Our Price or the Trade derives from a Manifest Error;
 - 42.4.7 Events Outside Our Control or Market Disruption Events have occurred;
 - 42.4.8 any amount you owe us has not been paid; and
 - 42.4.9 we believe the Trade would be in breach of this Agreement or any legal or regulatory requirement applicable to you or us.
- 42.5 If we accept a Trade before becoming aware of any of the events described in clauses 44.4.1 to 44.4.9, we may in our sole discretion treat the Trade as void or close the Open Position at Our Price prevailing at the time we close the Open Position. If we choose to maintain the Open Position, you will be liable for the full value of the Trade when it is closed.
- 42.6 We may set minimum and maximum Quantities for opening and/or closing Trades in each Market and different minimum and maximum Quantities for Trades placed on the Trading Platform or by telephone. Minimum and maximum Quantities (if any) are stated in the Market Information. Trades to close an Open Position are subject to the minimum and maximum Quantity valid at the time that the closing Trade is executed. We may be unable to execute Trades at Our Price which are larger than our maximum Quantity or smaller than our minimum Quantity. Where you wish to execute a Trade whose size exceeds our maximum Quantity, you may request a quote. Where a Trade is executed through several transactions at varying prices you will be charged separate fees and commission for each individual transaction. If multiple Trade instructions are placed or triggered, which in aggregate exceed our maximum Quantity for the relevant Market, we may in our sole discretion take any of the following action: (a) refuse to enter into all or some of the Trades; (b) partially fill your Trades and/or (c) increase the margin rate

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- changed on the positions you hold in the relevant market. We may vary the minimum and maximum Quantity from time to time and new minimum and maximum Quantities will be effective at the time of publication.
- 42.7 Subject to our right to refuse to enter into any Trade pursuant to clause 44.4, we will use our reasonable endeavours to execute a Trade within a reasonable time after we receive it or after the conditions for an Order are fulfilled.
- 42.8 Where your Open Position is larger than our maximum Quantity and you have not closed it before its expiry date, we may roll over the Open Position rather than settle it.
- 42.9 In exceptional cases, short-term orders lasting less than 180 seconds can be cancelled if they are considered abuse.
- 42.10 The Company reserves the right to close the Client's opened orders by the market quotes in the following cases:
 - 42.10.1 The Client is underage;
 - 42.10.2 The Client is from a country to which the Company does not provide its services;
 - 42.10.3 The Client uses any arbitrage strategies as considered by the Company at its sole discretion;
 - 42.10.4 The Client conducts any other violation of this Agreement or any of the Company's policies.
- 42.11 The Company reserves the right to cancel the Client's orders in case they do not comply with this Agreement.
- 42.12 A buy order shall be opened by an Ask price. A sell order shall be opened by a Bid price.
- 42.13 A buy order shall be closed by a Bid price. A sell order shall be closed by an Ask price.
- 42.14 The Company reserves the right to increase spreads in case one or more of the following events occur:
 - 42.14.1 In case the market conditions become irregular
 - 42.14.2 In case the trading conditions for one or more currency pairs have changed
 - 42.14.3 In case of (a) Force Majeure event(s).
- 42.15 The Company provides Market Execution on all trading instruments. The Company applies ECN/STP model to orders' execution, that is, all the Client's positions are offset to the interbank liquidity providers. In some cases, the orders may fail to be offset, or the Company may solely decide not to offset an order or a group of orders.
- 42.16 As a result of the nature of Market Execution, slippage during orders opening or closure may occur. The Client agrees that such possible occasional slippage is a natural consequence and feature of Market Execution, and the Company is not responsible for it in any way.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 42.17 Any possible open or close price deviation is subject to the available liquidity. The Company bears no responsibility for the consequences of such deviations and/or price differences from the price requested by the Client.
- 42.18 The Client can cancel a sent order only while it is in the queue with the 'Order is accepted' status. In this case, the Client should press the 'Cancel order' button. In this case, due to the specifics of the Client Terminal, the order cancellation can not be guaranteed.
- 42.19 The Client's request to open, modify, or close an order can be declined in the following cases:
 - 42.19.1 During the market opening, when the order is sent before the first quote has been received by the Trading Platform
 - 42.19.2 In exceptional market conditions
 - 42.19.3 In case the Client doesn't have sufficient margin. In this case, 'Not enough money' or 'Insufficient funds' message is displayed by the Trading Platform
 - 42.19.4 In case the Client uses Autotrading Software performing over thirty requests per minute, the Company reserves the right to ban such Expert Advisors or cBots.
- 42.20 The use of the same IP address by different clients can be a reason to consider all the orders in all the accounts performed from this IP address as those performed by the same Client.
- 42.21 Orders opened or closed by off-market quotes can be cancelled:
 - 42.21.1 In case the order was opened by an off-market quote
 - 42.21.2 In case the order was closed by an off-market quote.
- 42.22 The use of arbitrage strategies is prohibited. Arbitrage is a strategy aimed at profiting by exploiting the difference in prices of identical or similar financial instruments in different markets or in different forms, including but not limited to latency abuse, price manipulation, or time manipulation. If the Company reasonably suspects that the Client uses arbitrage in an explicit or hidden way, the Company reserves the right to do the following:
 - 42.22.1 Cancel all orders of the Client
 - 42.22.2 Cancel the Client's profit associated with all closed orders
 - 42.22.3 Close all trading accounts of the Client and refuse further provision of the service to the Client.

43. Trade Price

43.1 During Market Hours, we will quote two prices for the Market: a higher price ("Our Offer Price") and a lower price ("Our Bid Price"); together these prices are known as "Our Price" for a Market. Our Price is determined by reference to the price of the Underlying Instrument which is quoted on external securities exchanges or dealing facilities that we select at our discretion. For Trades executed when the relevant exchange or dealing facility is closed or where there is no exchange or dealing facility, Our Price will reflect what we consider the market price of the Underlying Instrument is at that time. Our

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

Prices and how we calculate Our Prices are determined in our absolute discretion and any changes are effective immediately. If during Market Hours Our Price for any Market is not available on the Trading Platform, please call Client Management to obtain a quote.

- 43.2 We will accept a Trade only on the basis of a current Our Price. You may not be able to enter into Trades at Our Price where Our Price is described as "indication only" or "indicative" or "invalid" (or words or messages to the same effect).
- 43.3 We provide quotes for Our Prices on a best efforts basis. If a Market Disruption Event or an Event Outside of Our Control occurs we may not be able to provide a quote for Our Price or execute Trades during Market Hours.
- 43.4 The difference between Our Bid Price and Our Offer Price is "Our Spread". For certain Products, Our Spread may contain an element of charge or commission for us. For some Markets Our Spreads change frequently and there is no limit to how large any such changes may be. You acknowledge that when you close a Trade, Our Spread may be larger or smaller than Our Spread when the Trade was opened, even for markets where Our Spread is fixed.
- 43.5 Unless otherwise stated in the relevant Supplemental Terms, we will provide you with best execution as required by the BVI Rules. Please read our Trade and Order Execution Policy which sets out the basis upon which we seek to provide best execution.
- 43.6 If your Account has Price Tolerance, Markets where Price Tolerance applies will be set out in the Market Information. Price Tolerance will only apply to instructions to Trade for immediate execution. Where applicable, you may change the Price Tolerance via the Trading Platform before you place a Trade. If, before we have executed your Trade, Our Price moves unfavourably away from our quoted price but remains within the specified Price Tolerance, your Trade will be executed at the current Our Price. If, before we have executed your Trade, Our Price moves in your favour (irrespective of the specified Price Tolerance), we will execute the Trade at the current Our Price.

44. Closing Trades

- 44.1 If you have an Account with hedging enabled, you can close an open Trade by selecting that specific trade and closing it. If you open an opposing Trade in the same market for the same quantity, both the original Trade and the opposing Trade will be displayed as open and you will also see the legally binding net position where those Trades offset each other.
- 44.2 If you have an Account without hedging enabled, you can close an open Trade either by selecting that Trade and closing it, or by opening a Trade in the opposing direction.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 44.3 For some Accounts, if you enter into a closing Trade in the same Market with a greater Quantity but in the same expiry as the Open Position it offsets, then the original Open Position will be closed and a new Open Position will be created for the Quantity by which the new Trade exceeds the original Open Position.
- 44.4 You will usually be able to close an Open Position during Market Hours. However, we reserve the right to reject any Trade in accordance with clause 44.4. As a consequence, you may not be able to close the Open Position and your Losses may be unlimited until such time as you are able to close the Open Position. Where you inadvertently close an Open Position and promptly notify us of this error, at your request we may (in certain, exceptional circumstances, acting at our sole discretion and as a gesture of goodwill) allow you to take a new Open Position equivalent to the terms of the original Open Position duly closed by you in error, with such new Open Position being reported to the applicable regulatory authorities as such in the normal course of business.
- 44.5 Unless Open Positions are closed in accordance with this clause 46, rolled over in accordance with clause 47, or are terminated, voided or otherwise closed in accordance with this Agreement, they will remain open until their expiry (if they have an expiry date or event) or will remain open indefinitely if they do not. On the expiry date (or event, if such expiration is dependent upon an event) the Open Position will be closed and settled at Our Price at the time the Open Position is closed.
- 44.6 Where we exercise our rights in accordance with this Agreement to close any of your Open Positions, we will do so at a time and date determined by us in our reasonable discretion.

45. Rollover

- 45.1 We may allow Open Positions to be rolled in accordance with your instructions. We will send you a contract note in respect of the Trade establishing the new Open Position as described in clause 52.
- 45.2 If we agree to roll over an Open Position, then the original Open Position is closed and becomes due for settlement at Our Price at the time the Open Position is closed and a new Trade will be entered into to establish a new Open Position in the relevant Market. The times at which we will close Open Positions which are rolled over are stated in the Market Information. We will send you a contract note in respect of the Trade establishing the new Open Position as described in OGL clause 52.

46. Orders Rules

- 46.1 The range of different Order types which we accept shall be decided by us in our absolute discretion. Certain types of Orders, such as Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders, may only be available for a limited range of Markets.
- 46.2 The types of Orders we accept and which types of Orders attach to specific Open Positions or other Orders ("Attached Orders") are detailed on our Trading Platform. It is

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

your responsibility to understand the features of an Order and how the Order will operate before you place it. Before you place an Order for the first time, we recommend that you read the trading examples on our Website so that you fully understand the features of the Order type.

- 46.3 We endeavour to fill Orders at the first Our Price reasonably available to us after the price specified is reached or at the occurrence of the event or condition specified in the Order. However, we may not be able to execute Orders if there is an Event Outside of Our Control in relation to an Underlying Instrument. For all Orders other than Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders, we may not be able to execute your Order at the price level you specify. We will endeavour to execute your Order at Our Price nearest to your specified price.
- 46.4 We may, without limitation, set a minimum price range between the current Our Price and the price or level of any Stop Orders, Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders and Limit Orders and we reserve the right not to accept any Orders which are less than this minimum price range.
- 46.5 Orders will be "Good until Cancelled" ("GTC") unless you specify at the time of placing the relevant Order that it is only "Good for the Day" ("GFD") or "Good for the Time" ("GFT"). Unless an Order is cancelled or ceases to have effect, we will regard it as valid and execute it when Our Price reaches the price you specify or the specified event or condition occurs.
- 46.6 You can only cancel or amend an Order if we have not acted upon it. You may, with our consent (which will not be unreasonably withheld), cancel or amend an Order at any time before we act upon it. Changes to Orders may be made on the Trading Platform or by calling Client Management.
- 46.7 When you place an Order to close an Open Position (a "Closing Order"):
 - 46.7.1 if you close the Open Position before the Closing Order is executed, we will treat this as an instruction to cancel the Closing Order; and
 - 46.7.2 if you close only a portion of the Open Position before the Closing Order is executed, we will treat the Order as an Order to close only the portion of the Open Position that remains open.
- 46.8 We offer Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders for a limited range of Markets. For these Markets:
 - 46.8.1 the Market Information states if a Guaranteed Stop Loss Order is available;
 - 46.8.2 we may charge a premium payment for each Guaranteed Stop Loss Order. The rate or price of this payment is stated in the Market Information;
 - 46.8.3 we will accept your Guaranteed Stop Loss Order only during Market Hours;
 - 46.8.4 we will execute a Guaranteed Stop Loss Order at the price you specify, when that price level is reached; and

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 46.8.5 we may make available and set minimum and maximum Quantities for Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders which are different from the minimum and maximum Quantities which apply to other types of Order.
- 46.9 Opening, modifying, or deleting orders is allowed only during active trading hours set forth in the Contract Specification; it is not allowed beyond trading hours.
- 46.10 In the exceptional case of irregular market conditions, trading with a specific tool may be prohibited (fully or partially, temporarily or permanently) until the conditions remain irregular or until further notice.
- 46.11 All the pending orders are executed by GTC Model ('Good Till Cancelled') and have no period of validity, that is, they remain active until cancelled by the Client. The Client, however, has the right to set the order expiration date by him- or herself.
- 46.12 In case one or several order parameters are invalid or missing, the order may be declined by the Trading Platform.
- 46.13 The Company will specify the current market price at its sole discretion.
- 46.14 Orders of all types shall not be placed closer than a stated number of points from the current price. The minimum distance in points from the current price may be changed with prior notice.
- 46.15 Pending orders of all types, including Take Profit and Stop Loss, should not be placed closer than Stop Level—a stated number of points away from the current price for each symbol. Stop Level values may be changed with prior notice. The Client can see the current Stop Level value in the symbol's specification in the OrbitfxTrader or MetaTrader trading terminal.
- 46.16 A note in the server log file about the order opening means the Client has opened an order and agrees with it. Each order gets a unique identification number (a ticker).
- 46.17 In case an order opening is requested before the first quote appears in the Trading Platform, it will be rejected by the Trading Platform. In this case, the message 'No price/Trading is forbidden' will appear in the Client Terminal.
- 46.18 A note in the server log file about the order closure or modification means the Client has modified or closed an order and agrees with it.
- 46.19 In case an order closure or modification is requested before the first quote appears in the Trading Platform, it will be rejected by the Trading Platform.
- 46.20 The Company provides the Client with the following options:

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 46.20.1 to partially close their open positions on OrbitfxTrader, the MetaTrader 4, and MetaTrader 5 platforms. This option is realised differently on the aforementioned platforms;
- 46.20.2 to perform singular or multiple Close By operations on their open positions on OrbitfxTrader, the MetaTrader 4, and MetaTrader 5 platforms.
- 46.21 The Company has an option for the Client to perform the Close By operation on their open positions on the MetaTrader 4 and MetaTrader 5 platforms.
- 46.22 The Company has an option for the Client to perform the Multiple Close By operation on their positions on the MetaTrader 4 and MetaTrader 5 platforms.

Note that Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders may not be available if you elect to use a third party hosting or trading application (for example, MetaTrader).

47. Commissions, charges, and other costs

- 47.1 Depending on the Market concerned, we may:
 - 47.1.1 include an element of profit for us in Our Spread;
 - 47.1.2 charge commission;
 - 47.1.3 charge monthly data fees on an account where there is no trading activity for a period of time;
 - 47.1.4 impose a Daily Financing Fee on your Open Positions;
 - 47.1.5 Charge a premium for converting Realized Profits and Losses, adjustments, fees and charges that are denominated in another currency back to the base currency of your account before applying them to your Account.

You can find details with respect to these as well as other fees and charges applicable to your Account on our Website or by calling Client Management.

- 47.2 We may from time to time share a proportion of Our Spread, commissions and other Account fees with other persons including (without limitation) Introducers. We may also receive payment in connection with certain foreign exchange transactions undertaken pursuant to clause 8.
- 47.3 We do not currently receive a share of commission or similar payments from other persons in connection with any Trade under this Agreement. If this changes we will inform you.
- 47.4 We may pass on to you charges which we may from time to time incur in borrowing stock in the external market to hedge a Short Position which you have opened with us. These charges will fluctuate depending on market conditions and the scarcity of the stock concerned. We will advise you of any such charges at the time they are incurred or as soon as possible after we become aware that they have been incurred, whether in the Market Information or otherwise.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

48. Margin Requirement

- 48.1 Before you place a Trade which creates an Open Position you must ensure that your Trading Resource is sufficient to cover the Margin Requirement in respect of that Open Position. If your Trading Resource is less than the Margin Requirement for the Open Position you wish to create, we may reject your Trade. The Margin Requirement must be maintained at all times until the Open Position is closed and may increase or decrease at any time until the Open Position is closed.
- 48.2 The Margin Requirement for an Open Position is calculated using the Margin Factor for the relevant Market. Margin Factors may be expressed as a percentage, number or other form applicable to the nature of the Market. The Margin Requirement may increase or decrease at any time until the Open Position is closed.
- 48.3 Margin Factors for each Market are stated in the Market Information. Unless otherwise stated in our Notices and Policies with respect to third party trading platforms, Margin Factors change as set forth in this clause 50.03. Changes to a Margin Factor will increase or decrease your Margin Requirement. For Margin Factors expressed as a percentage and all Open Positions subject to Orders Aware Margining, the Margin Requirement may change as Our Price for the relevant Market changes. Margin Requirement may also be affected by changes in the exchange rate between the Base Currency and the currency of any Open Position.
- 48.4 Non-standard Margin Requirements may apply for the following:
 - 48.4.1 for certain Markets derived from options or options-related financial instruments;
 - 48.4.2 when you are holding positions in two or more Markets in the same Underlying Instrument;
 - 48.4.3 Trades which have an attached Stop Loss Order in Markets where Orders Aware Margining is available;
 - 48.4.4 when a Margin Multiplier is applied; and
 - 48.4.5 when the Quantity of a Trade is greater than our maximum Quantity.
- 48.5 We reserve the right to change the way in which we calculate Margin Requirements at any time.
- 48.6 Orders Aware Margining offers the potential to reduce the Margin Requirement for Open Positions in certain Markets which are subject to a Stop Loss Order or a Guaranteed Stop Loss Order. Orders Aware Margining is available for a limited range of Markets and details of its availability is provided in the Market Information.
- 48.7 We may apply a Margin Multiplier to all Open Positions placed in your Account or to a specific Open Position. The application of a Margin Multiplier or any change in a Margin

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- Multiplier will result in a change to the Margin Requirement for any Open Positions for the relevant Markets.
- 48.8 We may alter Margin Factors, Margin Multipliers and Margin Requirements at any time and any change will become effective immediately. It is your responsibility to know at all times the current Margin Factors, Margin Multiplier and Margin Requirement applicable to your Account and your Open Positions.
- 48.9 We may notify you of an alteration to the Margin Factors, Margin Multiplier and Margin Requirement by any of the following means: post, telephone, fax, email, text message or by posting notice of the increase on our Website or Trading Platform.
- 48.10 Your Total Margin will be the aggregate of all Margin Requirements in your Account. We may set a maximum figure for your Total Margin which will act as a limit on the amount of funds we hold as the Margin Requirement. If we set a maximum Total Margin we will inform you.
- 48.11 The Client shall provide and maintain the Initial Margin and/or Hedged Margin in such limits as the Company may require from time to time in compliance with the Agreement. It is the Client's sole responsibility to ensure that he or she understands how the margin is calculated.
- 48.12 The Client shall pay the Initial Margin and/or Hedged Margin at the moment of opening a position.
 - 48.12.1 The Hedged Margin amounts to the minimum of 50% of the Margin requirement of equivalent hedged position. The size of the Hedged Margin depends on the volume of the position.
- 48.13 If no Force Majeure Event occurs, the Company is entitled to change margin requirements and send to the Client a Written Notice 3 (three) Business Days prior to these amendments.
- 48.14 The Company is entitled to change margin requirements without prior Written Notice in the case of a Force Majeure Event.
- 48.15 The Company is entitled to apply new margin requirements amended in accordance with above-mentioned paragraphs to the new positions and to the positions that are already open.
- 48.16 The Company is entitled to close Client's Open Positions without the consent of the Client or any prior Written Notice if the Equity is less than a certain rate depending on the account type stipulated on the Company Website.
- 48.17 It is the Client's responsibility to notify the Company as soon as the Client believes that he or she will be unable to meet a margin payment when due.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

48.18 The Company is not obliged to make margin calls for the Client. The Company is not liable to the Client for any failure to contact or an attempt to contact the Client.

49. Margin Close Out Level

- 49.1 Margin call occurs whenever the account's margin level falls below the designated percentage described in the Trading Account specification on the Company Website. In this case, the Company is entitled but not liable to close the Client's positions.
- 49.2 The Company is obliged to close Client's open positions without prior notification in case Margin level falls below the designated percentage described in the Trading Account specification on the Company Website. This event is called Stop Out.
- 49.3 Stop Out is executed at a current market quote on a first-come-first-serve basis. Stop Out will be recorded in the server's log file as a 'stop out'.
- 49.4 In case the Client has several open positions, the first position to close will be the one with the highest floating loss.
- 49.5 In case a Stop Out leads to the account balance becoming negative, this does not imply any debt payments from the Client and can't be regarded as such. The Company will compensate the account balance to zero. In exceptional cases (should the Company deem Client's actions fraudulent or intentional), the Company may claim the debt.
- 49.6 Margin Call and Stop Out levels may be increased during news releases, periods of high market volatility, abnormal market conditions, and other irregular events.
- 49.7 If the Margin Level for your Account reaches or falls below the Margin Close Out Level, this will be classified as an Event of Default under clause 14. In such circumstances we may, among other things, (i) close all or any of your Open Positions immediately and without notice, and/or (ii) refuse to execute new Trades until your Margin Level exceeds the Margin Close Out Level. It is your responsibility to monitor your Account(s) at all times and to maintain your Margin Level above the Margin Close Out Level. We will close your Open Positions at Our Price prevailing at the time when your Open Positions are closed.
- 49.8 We may but are not obliged to contact you before we take any action under clause 53.7.
- 49.9 The Margin Close Out Level applicable to your Account will be equal to the Margin Requirement applicable to your Account unless we alter you Margin Close Out Level. We may alter the Margin Close Out Level applicable to your Account at any time.
- 49.10 We will be entitled to notify you of an alteration to your Margin Close Out Level by any of the following means: post, telephone, fax, email, text message or by posting notice of the increase on our Website or Trading Platform.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

49.11 The Margin Close Out Level is designed to help limit the extent of your trading Losses. We do not however guarantee that your Open Positions will be closed when the Margin Level for your Account reaches the Margin Close Out Level or that your Losses will be limited to the amount of funds you have deposited in your Account.

50. Statements, Contract Notes and Portfolio Reconciliation

- 50.1 Periodic statements, including statements of your Cash, Open Positions and any charges made to your Account will be made available to you on the Trading Platform.
- 50.2 Other than on your specific request, contract notes and statements will be sent to you by email or by being made available through the Trading Platform. We reserve the right to charge for contract notes and statements sent to you in a paper form.
- 50.3 Subject to the other provisions of this clause 52, it is your responsibility to review all statements received to ensure that they are accurate. If you believe that a statement received by you is incorrect, because it refers to a Trade which you have not placed or for any other reason, you must tell us immediately. Statements will, in the absence of a Manifest Error, be conclusive and binding unless we receive an objection from you in writing within 48 hours of receipt or we notify you of an error in the statement in the same period.
- 50.4 A contract note in respect of each Trade that we execute on your behalf, including any new Trade entered into when an existing Open Position is rolled over pursuant to clause 47, will be made available through the Trading Platform. The absence of a contract note will not affect the validity of any Trade that is reported as executed on the Trading Platform or is accepted by telephone pursuant to clause 44.2. If you cannot locate the contract note for any Trade you have executed or rolled over, please inform us immediately.
- 50.5 Contract notes will be made available to you as soon as reasonably practicable and no later than close of business BVI time on the next Business Day after a Trade is executed.
- 50.6 Following the availability of a contract note pursuant to clause 52.5, you must notify us if you believe that a contract note is incorrect for any reason by no later than close of business BVI time on the next Business Day after the date on which the relevant contract note is first available.
- 50.7 If you notify us that you believe a contract note is incorrect for any reason by the time specified in clause 46, you and we will attempt to resolve the difference and confirm the relevant Trade as soon as possible.
- 50.8 If we make a contract note available to you pursuant to clause 52.5 and you do not notify us that you believe that it is incorrect for any reason by the time specified in clause 52.6, you will be deemed to have agreed to the terms of the contract note.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 50.9 On each Portfolio Data Delivery Date, Portfolio Data in respect of all outstanding Trades booked to your Account will be sent to you by email or by being made available through the Trading Platform.
- 50.10 On the Business Day following each delivery of the Portfolio Data pursuant to clause 52.9, you will review the Portfolio Data provided by us in respect of all outstanding Trades booked to your Account against your own records to identify any misunderstandings of Key Terms. If you identify one or more discrepancies which you determine, acting reasonably and in good faith, are material to the rights and obligations of either you or us in respect of any Trades which are or which you believe should be booked to your Account, you must notify us in writing immediately and consult with us in an attempt to resolve such discrepancies in a timely fashion for so long as such discrepancies remain outstanding, using, without limitation, any applicable updated reconciliation data produced during the period in which such discrepancy remains outstanding. If you do not notify us that the Portfolio Data contains discrepancies by the close of business New York time on the Business Day following the delivery of the Portfolio Data pursuant to clause 52.9 you will be deemed to have affirmed such Portfolio Data.

51. Deposites and Withdrawals

- 51.1 If your Account shows a positive Cash balance, you may request that we make a payment to you of such amount. We may however elect to withhold any payment requested, in whole or in part, if:
 - 51.1.1 you have Unrealized Losses on your Account; and/or
 - 51.1.2 such payment would result in your Trading Resource being less than zero; and/or
 - 51.1.3 we reasonably consider that funds may be required to meet any Margin Requirement; and/or
 - 51.1.4 there is any amount outstanding from you to us; and/or
 - 51.1.5 we are required to do so under any relevant legislation or regulation; and/or
 - 51.1.6 we reasonably believe resulted from market abuse in contravention of clause 11.
- 51.2 We may debit the Cash balance on your Account with any amount due and payable to us under this Agreement, and with any bank transfer charges we incur in transferring funds to you. In addition, you are responsible for all costs and expenses we incur as a result of you failing to pay amounts due or if you breach the Agreement including, without limitation, bank charges, court fees, legal fees and other third party costs we reasonably incur.
- 51.3 If we credit a payment to your Account but subsequently discover that the credit was made in error, we reserve the right to reverse any such credit and/or cancel any Trades

- which could not have been made or close any Open Position which could not have been established but for that credit.
- 51.4 Unless we agree otherwise, any amounts payable to you will be paid by direct transfer to the same source (in your name) from which you have made payment to us.
- 51.5 Payment of any amount due to us is subject to the following conditions:
 - 51.5.1 unless otherwise agreed, payment must be made in the Base Currency for your Account;
 - 51.5.2 if made by debit or credit card, the debit or credit card must be accepted by us and we reserve the right to charge an administration fee;
 - 51.5.3 unless otherwise agreed your Account will be credited with the net cleared funds received after all deductions of bank charges or any other costs of transfer incurred in relation to the payment;
 - 51.5.4 we do not accept cash or payments from third parties unless otherwise agreed.
- 51.6 If your Account is in debit, the full amount is due and payable by you immediately.
- 51.7 We may refuse to accept payment by cheque or banker's draft and may require immediate payment by telegraphic transfer, debit card or any other method of electronic transfer acceptable to us.
- 51.8 If you fail to pay any sum due to us on the due date in accordance with this Agreement, we reserve the right in our sole discretion to charge interest on this amount. Interest will be due on a daily basis from the due date until the date on which payment is received in full at a market rate of interest rate not exceeding 5% above British Virgin Islands rate (or a rate we reasonably consider serves materially the same function) from time to time and will be payable on demand.
- 51.9 To provide financial security for the Client, in some cases the Company reserves a right to withdraw Client's funds only to his or her bank account.
- 51.10 For security and/or compliance reasons, the Company reserves the right to demand the Client's complete identification data. The Company also reserves the right to refuse to provide the Services to the Client who fails to pass the control check by phone and fails to answer basic questions concerning the Client's Personal Area:
 - 51.10.1 Following the request of the Company, the Client shall send to the Company advanced selfies and/or regular selfies with the requested identification documents, such as passport, other types of ID, address proof, bank reference letter, and/or any other relevant documents not listed here
 - 51.10.2 Should such request be made by the Company, the Client shall have 14 (fourteen) calendar days to collect and send advanced selfies and/or regular selfies with the requested documents to the Company

- 51.10.3 If the Client does not send advanced selfies and/or regular selfies with the requested documents within the mentioned 14-day period, the Client's account shall be irreversibly blocked, and the Client's personal funds, excluding profits, shall be refunded
- 51.10.4 No profits shall be paid and no losses shall be reimbursed for such accounts
- 51.10.5 For the purposes of this clause, an 'advanced selfie' shall mean a selfie of a person made with a requested document and a sheet of paper with the current date and the word 'Orbit Global FX' written on it.
- 51.11 Internal transfers (that is, transfers from one trading account to another within the Company) between third parties are prohibited.
- 51.12 If the Client has an obligation to pay any amount to the Company that exceeds the Trading Account Equity, the Client shall pay the amount of excess forthwith upon the obligation arising.
- 51.13 All incoming payments shall be credited to the Client's Trading Account no later than within one (1) Business day after the funds have been received by the Company.
- 51.14 The Client acknowledges and agrees that when a payment is due and sufficient funds have not yet been credited to the Client's Trading Account, the Company shall be entitled to treat the Client as having failed to make a payment and to exercise its rights in compliance with the Agreement.
- 51.15 The Client shall make any margin payments or other due payments in US dollars, Euros, and other currencies accepted by the Company. The payment amount will be converted into the Trading Account Currency at the current market rate.
- 51.16 The Company is entitled but not obliged to cover deposit and withdrawal fees applied by Skrill, Neteller, FasaPay, or any other payment processors. Such fees can be charged from the Client in cases which the Company deems appropriate.
- 51.17 The Client may deposit funds into the Trading Account at any time. All payments to the Company shall be made in accordance with the Payment Instructions set forth on the Company's Website. Under no circumstances will third party or anonymous payments be accepted.
- 51.18 In case the nature of the deposit does not allow instant payment processing (bank wire, etc), the Client shall create a Deposit Request in the Personal Area. Failure to do so will lead to a deposit delay.
- 51.19 It is the Client's sole responsibility to create Deposit Requests in his or her Personal Area and to fill them in a correct and proper way. Failure to do so will lead to a deposit delay.
- 51.20 The Client may withdraw funds from the Trading Account at any time in accordance with the procedure described in paragraph 13.19.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 51.21 If the Client requests to withdraw funds from the Trading Account, the Company shall pay the specified amount within three (3) Business Days after the request has been accepted if the following conditions are met:
 - 51.21.1 Withdrawal request contains all necessary information
 - 51.21.2 The request is to perform funds transfer to the Client's bank account or e-currency account (under no circumstances will payments to third party or anonymous accounts be accepted), and
 - 51.21.3 Client's Free Margin exceeds or equals to the amount specified in the withdrawal request including all payment charges.
- 51.22 The Company shall debit the Client's Trading Account for all payment charges (if applicable).
- 51.23 As per Company's AML Policy, to prevent the Client from money laundering or terrorist financing, the Company establishes that the Client shall use the same methods to withdraw funds as he or she did to deposit funds. If the Client deposits funds to his or her Trading Account via multiple payment methods, the Client shall withdraw funds using the same payment methods. In this case, the ratio of withdrawable amounts to one another shall be directly proportional to the ratio of deposited amounts.
- 51.24 In exceptional cases (such as Force Majeure circumstances, termination of payment system operation, etc.), the Company is entitled to decline the Client's funds withdrawal in any payment system. Such cases shall be considered on a case by case basis.

52. Netting and Set Off

- 52.1 The Agreement and all Trades under it shall form part of a single agreement between us and you. You and we both acknowledge that we enter into the Agreement and any Trades under it in reliance upon the fact that these are part of a single agreement between us.
- 52.2 Without prejudice to our right to require immediate payment from you under the terms of this Agreement, we will at any time have the right to:
 - 52.2.1 combine and consolidate your Cash and any money we or any of our Affiliates hold for you in any or all of the accounts you may have with us or with any of our Affiliates; and
 - 52.2.2 set off against each other the amounts referred to in (a) and (b) below:
 - (a) any amounts that are payable by us or any of our Affiliates to you (regardless of how and when payable), including your Cash (if a credit balance), Unrealized Profits and any credit balance held on any account you

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

have with us or with any of our Affiliates, even if any of those accounts have been closed;

- (b) any amounts that are payable by you to us or any of our Affiliates (regardless of how and when payable), including, but not limited to, Unrealized Losses, interest, costs, expenses, and/or charges incurred in respect of, or any debit balances in, any account you have with us or with any of Affiliates, even if those accounts have been closed.
- 52.3 If any amount in clause 54.2.2(b) exceeds any amount in clause 54.2.2(a) above, you must forthwith pay such excess to us whether demanded or not.
- 52.4 You are also entitled to require us to exercise the rights in clause 54.2 above in relation to all your accounts and/or Open Positions which have been closed.
- 52.5 If the rights under clauses 54.2, 54.3 or 54.4 are exercised, all the payment obligations will be consolidated into an obligation for you to pay a net sum to us or for us to pay a net sum to you.

53. Leverage Modification

- 53.1 Leverage modification by the Client is only allowed once every 24 hours.
- 53.2 The Company reserves the right to modify the Client's leverage settings at any time without prior notification.
- 53.3 The following leverage restrictions are applied to all account types
 - 53.3.1 Leverage will be provided as per the leverage to us provided by liquidity provider. It can be varied on types of symbols like forex major pairs, forex minor pairs, metals, commodity, indices, CFDs, crypto, etc.
 - 53.3.2 Default leverage could be 1:200 in forex, 1:100 for metal, commodities, indices and future, 1:10 for shares and crypto trades, but it could be changed on the bases of account size as well as lot size and numbers of the trades. (depending on the account currency)
 - 53.3.3 Leverage could be decrease or increase between 1:1000 to 1:15 without any prior notice, if the trading personal funds reaches/deposit up to or above 10000 USD/EUR and/or size of the trades are huge. (depending on the account currency)
 - 53.3.4 Should it be deemed necessary or appropriate, the Company may at its discretion change the leverage of any account under circumstances different from the cases described in the Agreement.
 - 53.3.5 Personal funds are calculated in the following way: Personal Funds = Balance + Credit + Unrealised PnL
 - 53.3.6 Unrealised PnL is calculated in the following way: Unrealised PnL = Positive Opened Orders PnL + Negative Opened Orders PnL
 - 53.3.7 PnL is calculated in the following way: PnL = (Close price Open price) × Contract size × Number of lots.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

54. Pending orders

The following kinds of pending orders may be executed in the Trading Software:

- 54.1 Buy Limit: an order to open a 'Buy' position if the Ask price becomes lower or equal to the order price. In this case, the current price at the moment of placing the order is higher than the Buy Limit order price
- 54.2 Buy Stop: an order to open a 'Buy' position if the Ask price becomes higher or equal to the order price. In this case, the current price at the moment of placing the order is lower than the Buy Stop order price
- 54.3 Sell Limit: an order to open a 'Sell' position if the Bid price becomes higher or equal to the order price. In this case, the current price at the moment of placing the order is lower than the Sell Limit order price
- 54.4 Sell Stop: an order to open a 'Sell' position if the Bid price becomes lower or equal to the order price. In this case, the current price at the moment of placing the order is higher than the Sell Stop order price
- 54.5 Stop Loss: an order to close an open position at a certain price in case the position generates losses
- 54.6 Take Profit: an order to close an open position at a certain price in case the position generates profit.

55. Trade and Order Execution Policy

55.1 Introduction

we have a duty to conduct our business with you honestly fairly and professionally and to act in your best interests in dealing with you. More specifically, we are required to provide you with best execution when we deal with you. Providing best execution means that when we deal with you we should take reasonable steps to obtain the best result for you in accordance with our Trade and Order Execution Policy (the "Policy").

This document sets out the terms of our Policy. For convenience we annex this Policy to our General Terms documentation. Unless separately defined in this Policy, words and expressions shall have the meanings given to them in the General Terms. However this Policy is not part of our Agreement and it does not form part of the contract between us.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

We deal with you as principal and not as agent. We are therefore your only "execution venue". In dealing with us, you transact directly with us and not on any exchange or other external market or venue. Any Trades with us are non-transferable. If you create an Open Position with us you must close it with us.

55.2 Execution policy

In providing best execution we are obliged to take into account certain execution factors. We must tell you what these are and the relative importance we give to each. If you are a Client, we must determine whether we have provided you with best execution by reference to the total consideration you pay (that is price and costs of execution) though we will also use our judgement and take into account other relevant factors (such as any instructions regarding price) with the aim of providing you with the best result.

The execution factors that we consider and their relative importance are as follows:

Price: The relative importance we attach is high. Our Price for a given Market is calculated by reference to the price of the relevant Underlying Instrument. We obtain this price from third party external reference sources. For some kinds of instruments,

e.g. foreign exchange, we will collect price data from nominated wholesale market participants.

Our Price will often differ from the price of the Underlying Instrument. For some Markets we add Our Spread to the price of the Underlying Instrument. We may also adjust Our Price for any Market to take into account factors such as liquidity in external markets for the Underlying Instrument, dividend amounts, financing charges in an external market or other relevant factors. You must pay Daily Financing Fees, commission and other charges in addition to Our Price for some Products and Markets – see under "Costs" below.

When trading in the Underlying Instrument is very active and the price of the Underlying Instrument changes quickly, there is no guarantee that every price movement in the Underlying Instrument will result in a change to Our Price. We aim to update Our Price as frequently as we reasonably can but our ability to do so may be limited by technological factors including current hardware, software and data and communications links.

For some Markets we will quote Our Price outside of trading hours for the Underlying Instrument. In such circumstances Our Price is set by us by reference to one or more related alternative Underlying Instruments that are then traded, and may be adjusted in response to supply and demand from our clients. This means that outside normal Exchange Hours we exercise a greater degree of discretion in the setting of Our Price. In addition, Our Spread is generally wider and our maximum Quantity is generally smaller than during normal trading hours for the Underlying Instrument.

We execute all Trades at Our Price and in accordance with the General Terms.

Costs: The relative importance we attach is high. For many Markets, Our Price includes Our Spread and no additional charges or commissions are payable by you. For other Markets you will be required to pay a separate commission charge for each Trade to open or close an Open Position.

We may pass on some charges to you arising from the Underlying Instrument traded.

Additionally for many Markets you will be required to pay Daily Financing Fees on the full amount of an Open Position. Generally:

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

if you hold a Short Position (i.e. you have executed a sell" Trade), we pay you a Daily Financing Fee and;

if you hold a Long Position (i.e. you have executed a "buy" Trade), you pay us a Daily Financing

Details of the Daily Financing Fees are set out on our Website.

Details of charges we make in respect of particular Markets are set out in the Market Information.

We will also charge a premium for Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders, details of which are set out in the Market Information.

We may charge monthly data fees on an account where there is no trading activity for a period of time, details of which are set out on our Website.

We may charge a premium for converting Realized Profits and Losses, adjustments, fees and charges that are denominated in another currency back to the base currency of your account before applying them to your Account.

Speed and Likelihood of Execution: The relative importance we attach is high. You may execute Trades either using our Trading Platform or by phoning Client Management.

When you execute through the Trading Platform you will receive immediate execution capability: if you see an Our Price on the screen and the Quantity you want to trade is less than our maximum Quantity for that Market, then the Trade will, under almost all circumstances, be executed at the Our Price quoted on the order window. We will execute all Trades in accordance with the General Terms.

When executing by phone in a Quantity above our minimum Quantity but below our maximum Quantity, you will be quoted the same Our Price you will receive if you use the Trading Platform. In such circumstances, the dealer will generally confirm execution of your Trade immediately after you indicate that you wish to trade at the quoted Our Price.

Trades will be executed as soon as reasonably possible and in most circumstances almost instantaneously. However, there may be circumstances where Trades cannot be executed almost instantaneously, for example, due to illiquidity in the Underlying Instrument or if there is something unusual about the nature of the Order.

Quantity: The relative importance we attach is high. We normally provide certainty of execution for Trades you wish to place for a Quantity which is greater than our minimum Quantity and lower than our maximum Quantity.

Our minimum and maximum Quantities are set by us for each Market and may vary depending on current market conditions for the Underlying Instrument. Our minimum and maximum Quantities can be found in the Market Information or you may contact Client Management.

Where you wish to execute a Trade whose size exceeds our maximum Quantity, you may be quoted a different Our Price for the requested Quantity. Alternatively, if you agree with Client Management by phone, we may work the Order in an external market on your behalf.

55.3 Working an Order in the Market

The Our Price at which a worked Order is executed will be based upon the average price we receive for our transactions on an External Execution Venue. In such circumstances, our Trade with you may be subject to any applicable charges as described in the Market Information.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

Our Trade or Trades with you only become effective after we have executed our hedge transactions on an External Execution Venue and you have confirmed Our Price. Please note if we have agreed to work an Order in the market for you and have started to execute transactions on an External Execution Venue then you cannot cancel the Order. However, we may agree to cancel any unfilled part of the Order.

55.4 Dealing with your Orders

In most cases when the condition or event specified in your Order occurs it will be executed at or very close to the specified Order Price. However, please note that for all Orders other than Guaranteed Stop Loss Orders, the price you receive at execution is not guaranteed. Our Price may move from a price which is less than your specified Order price to a price which is greater than your specified Order price without a quote at any intermediate price. This will be due to rapid price changes in the Underlying Instrument (called 'gapping'), for example following a profits warning or the release of financial statistics different from those expected. In such a case, Our Price at the time of execution may be markedly different to the specified Order price.

If, when an Order is executed, the Quantity is less than our maximum Quantity for that particular Market, the Order will be executed at or near the specified Order price.

Note that if you have placed multiple Orders in the same Market, with the same specified Order price and with a Quantity greater than our maximum Quantity, there is no guarantee that they will all be executed at the same price, since each Order must be executed as a different Trade. The execution prices will depend on the liquidity in the external market for the Underlying Instrument and the execution of the first Trade may affect the liquidity available for the execution of the second and any subsequent Trades.

We will execute all Orders in accordance with the General Terms.

55.5 Specific instructions

You may give us a specific instruction for the execution of a Trade or an Order.

Following your specific instructions may prevent us from taking the steps set out in this Policy to obtain the best possible result for the element of the Trade or Order included in your instructions.

55.6 Our Obligations

We will comply with our Trade and Order Execution Policy when we are required to exercise our judgement in obtaining the best outcome for the execution of clients' Trades and Orders.

55.7 Monitoring and review of Policy

We will monitor compliance with the Policy and maintain records of the data which is used to set Our Price.

We will review the Policy at appropriate intervals. As part of that process, we will review:

- a. the sources of external pricing in Underlying Instruments;
- b. Our Price in relation to the external pricing of an Underlying Instrument; and

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

c. any fees or charges.

If we make any changes to this Policy, we may notify you by email or by posting such information on our Website or the Trading Platform.

56. Trading Tools

- 56.1 Orbitglobalfx.com may from time to time offer market news, commentary, charting, and analysis, trading performance analytics, signals-based products or services and other trading support tools ("Trading Tools"). Before using any Trading Tools please read this note carefully. It complements the Customer Agreement and associated risk disclosures furnished by us and should be read in conjunction with them. Unless stated otherwise, any capitalized terms used below shall carry the same meanings as in the Customer Agreement.
- 56.2 The Trading Tools are general in nature and do not and will not take into account your personal objectives, financial situation, or needs. Before acting on a Trading Tool, you should consider its appropriateness, having regard to your personal objectives, financial situation, and needs.
- 56.3 Orbitglobalfx.com will not give advice to you on the merits of any trade and shall deal with you on an execution-only basis. None of our staff are authorized by us or permitted under applicable laws to give you personal advice. Accordingly, you should not regard any proposed trades, trading signals, suggested trading strategies, or other written or oral communications from us as investment recommendations or personal advice or as expressing our view as to whether a particular trade is suitable for you or meets your financial objectives. You must rely on your own judgement for any investment decision you make in relation to your Account. You have the final decision in relation to every trade you enter into. You should make every effort to ensure you understand the Trading Tools and Orbitglobalfx.com is entitled to assume that you do. If you require investment or tax advice, please contact an independent investment or tax advisor.
- 56.4 Hypothetical performance results have many inherent limitations, some of which are described below. No warranty or representation is made that any Account will or is likely to achieve profits or losses similar to those shown in connection with any Trading Tool. In fact, there are frequently sharp differences between hypothetical performance results and the actual results subsequently achieved. Actual returns may be different to any hypothetical or indicative returns shown in any Trading Tool.
- 56.5 One of the limitations of hypothetical performance results is they are generally prepared with the benefit of hindsight. In addition, hypothetical trading does not involve financial risk and no hypothetical trading record can completely account for the

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

impact of financial risk in actual trading. For example, the ability to withstand losses or to adhere to a particular trading platform in spite of trading losses are material points which can also adversely affect actual trading results. There are numerous other factors related to the markets in general or to the implementation of any specific trading program which cannot be fully accounted for in the preparation of hypothetical performance results and all of which can adversely affect actual trading results.

- 56.6 Orbitglobalfx.com does not undertake to continue to offer the Trading Tools at all times and may not offer the same in the future. Orbitglobalfx.com may withdraw or cancel any or all of the Trading Tools, or terminate your access to any or all of them, for any reason or for no reason at any time with or without notice, in our sole discretion.
- 56.7 Trading Tools can only be used for your own personal benefit. They cannot be used for business purposes or on behalf of another person nor can they be varied, passed on or resold to or shared with (in whole or in part) another person or entity or used to place any trades outside of our platform.
- 56.8 You will not copy, modify, de-compile, reverse engineer, or make derivative works of or from the Trading Tools or the manner in which they operate.
- 56.9 All intellectual property and other rights in the Trading Tools remain our sole property or the property of our licensors. Orbitglobalfx.com does not assign, license, or otherwise transfer to you any right or interest in the Trading Tools whatsoever, except for the right to access and use the Trading Tools as expressly permitted by us in writing. In particular, but without limitation, all goodwill derived from the use or development of the Trading Tools will accrue exclusively to us.
- 56.10 You will not do, or omit to do, or permit to be done, any act that will or may materially weaken, damage or be detrimental to the Trading Tools or the reputation of the goodwill associated with us or the Trading Tools.
- 56.11 Orbitglobalfx.com does not commit to, and is not obliged to provide you with, any number of Trading Tools and the delivery of Trading Tools is not guaranteed. Orbitglobalfx.com may provide the Trading Tools at such times, at such intervals and based on such factors as we may determine in our absolute discretion. You should not therefore use or rely on the Trading Tools as a method of monitoring prices, positions/markets or making trading decisions, and no liability will be accepted by us in this respect.
- 56.12 The Trading Tools are provided "AS IS", without any representation or warranty of any kind whatsoever, including that they will be without interruption or error free.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 56.13 Orbitglobalfx.com may suspend use of the Trading Tools at any time to carry out maintenance, repairs, upgrades or any development related issues, in order to comply with Applicable Laws or for any other reason determined by us in our sole discretion.
- 56.14 To the extent permitted by Applicable Laws, you agree not to hold Orbitglobalfx.com, our directors, officers, employees, or agents liable for losses or damages, including legal fees, that may arise, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, from: (a) non-delivery, delayed delivery, or the misdirected delivery of any Trading Tool, (b) inaccurate or incomplete content of any Trading Tool, or (c) your reliance on or use of the information in any Trading Tool for any purpose.

Any failure by you to comply with any of the above obligations or restrictions shall constitute an Event of Default under our Customer Agreement.

57. Inactive Client account

57.1 Client account will be considered as inactive if the client does not trade for period of 30 days. Calculation will be done at the beginning of every month and those clients who have not traded even a single time will be considered as inactive. the shares/ credit ledger balance if any will be transferred to the client within one week of the identifying the client as inactive. The client has to make written request for reactivation of their account.

57.2 Regarding Inactive / Dormant Accounts

- 57.2.1 In case of trading account the term dormant/Inactive account refers to such account wherein no transactions have been carried out since last 30 (Days) and does not have any outstanding position in Forex market.
- 57.2.2 To ensure complete security of Client Accounts and assets, a list of inactive clients shall be prepared from the back office software on the last day of every month and shall be submitted to the concerned department after confirmation with the management. The management will approve a final list of inactive clients
- 57.2.3 The concerned department shall mark the client status as "inactive" or "dormant" in front/back office software.
- 57.2.4 The Dormant accounts identified based on the above criteria shall be flagged as such in company's record. Company reserves the right to freeze/deactivate such account and refuse to Permit to carry out any fresh transactions in such account.
- 57.2.5 The clients account would be reactivated only after undertaking proper due diligence process and fulfilment of such conditions as may be deemed fit, in the cases where the account is freezed / deactivated.

57.3 Reactivation of Client Accounts

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 57.3.1 Dormant account or inactive client account will be activated on the request of Head Office Compliance officer /Branch Manager / Regional Head / Sub broker / Remissier / Authorized person , on the completion of the following documents and letter from the respective client. The duly signed documents along with necessary annexure should be forwarded to the KYC department for reactivation and KYC Team will request to ADMIN team for the reactivation in Front end and back end software. Clients can get such accounts only reactivated by placing a reactivation request and submitting below mentioned documents.
- 57.3.2 Documents required for Account Reactivation:
 - 1. Account Reactivation Form
 - 2. Financial Proof (list of Valid Income Proof is mentioned below)
 - 3. Authorization for Running Account

PART C: CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

58. Conflicts of Interest Policy

58.1 Introduction

We aim to identify and prevent conflicts of interest which may arise between us and our clients, and between one client and another, in order to avoid any adverse effect on our clients. This Conflicts of Interest Policy (the "Policy") sets out procedures, practices and controls in place to achieve this.

This Policy applies to all officers, directors (whether Executive or Non-Executive), employees and any persons directly or indirectly linked to us (together "Personnel") and refers to interactions with all of our clients.

Unless separately defined in this Policy, words and expressions shall have the meanings given to them in the General Terms.

58.2 Complaints and Disputes

- 58.2.1 If you wish to raise any complaint or Dispute you should contact us as soon as practicable. If we identify a Dispute we will notify you as soon as possible.
- 58.2.2 Please keep your own record of dates or times of Trades and other issues as that will help us to investigate any complaints or disputes. It may be difficult or not reasonably possible for us to locate records/tapes in relation to Trades and other issues in the absence of information about the dates and times of any Trades or other issues in Dispute.
- 58.2.3 We operate a Complaints Handling Procedure to enable us to deal promptly and fairly with complaints. Details of this procedure are available on request from Client Management.
- 58.2.4 Any complaint or Dispute should in the first instance be referred to Client Management (details of which are given on our Website). If the complaint or dispute is not resolved to your satisfaction you may refer the matter to the Complaints Manager at the same address. All complaints will be responded to in writing within 14 days of receipt.
- If either you or we notify the other party of a Dispute, you and we will consult in good faith in an attempt to resolve the Dispute in a timely manner, including, without limitation, by exchanging any relevant information and by identifying and using any agreed process which can be applied to the subject of the Dispute or, where no such agreed process exists or you and we agree that such agreed process would be unsuitable, determining and applying a resolution method for the Dispute.

58.3 Dispute resolution

58.3.1 take all reasonable steps to identify conflicts of interest between us and our client, or one client of ours and another;

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 58.3.2 keep and regularly update a record of the kinds of service or activity we carry on (or which is carried on our behalf) in which a conflict of interest entailing a material risk of damage to the interests of one or more of our clients has arisen or may arise;
- 58.3.3 maintain and operate effective organizational and administrative arrangements with a view to taking all reasonable steps to prevent conflicts of interest from constituting or giving rise to a material risk of damage to the interests of our clients; and
- 58.3.4 establish, implement and maintain an effective, written conflicts of interest policy.

As with all laws and regulations applicable to our business, we take our regulatory requirements relating to conflicts of interest very seriously.

- 58.3.5 In case any conflict situation arises when the Client reasonably believes that the Company as a result of any action or failure to act breaches one or more terms of the Agreement, the Client has the right to file a complaint.
- 58.3.6 To file any complaint, the Client should email it to support@orbitglobalfx.com.
- 58.3.7 A complaint MUST contain:
- (1) First and last name of the Client (or the company name, if the Client is a legal entity)
- (2) Client's login details in the Trading Platform (that is, the Account number)
- (3) Details of when the conflict first arose (date and time in the Trading Platform time)
- (4) Ticker of the order in question
- (5) Description of the conflict situation supported by the reference to the Agreement.
- 58.3.8 The complaint MUST NOT contain:
- (1) Affective appraisal of the conflict situation
- (2) Offensive language
- (3) Uncontrolled vocabulary.
- 58.3.9 The Company has the right to reject a complaint in cases when:
- (1) Any of the above-mentioned provisions are breached
- (2) 2.5.2. More than 30 (thirty) calendar days have passed since the conflict situation.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

58.3.10 The Claim resolution term is set as 10 (ten) working days since the claim has been submitted. In occasional cases, the term may be increased.

58.4 Scope

We have identified the types of conflicts which may occur in our business and which carry a material risk of damage to the interests of a client. These include, but are not limited to, when we or any person directly or indirectly linked to us:

- 58.4.1 are likely to make a financial gain or avoid a financial loss at the expense of our client:
- 58.4.2 have an interest in the outcome of a service or product provided to, or of a transaction carried out on behalf of, our client which is distinct from our client's interest in that outcome;
- 58.4.3 have a financial or other incentive to favour the interests of another client or group of clients over the interests of our client;
- 58.4.4 carry on the same business as our client
- 58.4.5 receive, or will receive, from a person other than our client an inducement in relation to the service provided to our client in the form of monies, goods or services, other than the standard commission or fee for that service; or
- 58.4.6 design, market or recommend a product or service without properly considering all of our other products and services and the interests of our clients.

58.5 Guarding Against Conflicts of Interest

We have put in place the systems and procedures described below to: Minimize the potential for conflicts of interest, to ensure that we have adequate arrangements to manage all conflicts of interest, and where possible to avoid material conflicts of interest.

- 58.5.1 Personal account dealing. All Personnel are bound by the requirements of our Personal Account Dealing Policy. All transactions undertaken by Personnel are actively monitored by our Compliance Department.
- 58.5.2 Production of investment research/research recommendation. We do not produce investment research or provide investment research recommendations.
- 58.5.3 "Need to Know" policy. Where Personnel are in possession of confidential or inside information such as information relating to a client's Trade, Personnel may not disclose such information to another party without ensuring that:
 - (i) there is a clear need-to-know on the part of the recipient;
 - (ii) the procedures set out in this Policy are adhered to;
 - (iii) where the information relates to a client, the information transfer is in accordance with the best interests of the client; and

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

(iv) the recipient is made aware of the requirement to treat the information as confidential.

Only information required for the intended use may be disclosed and the receiving individual is then bound by the same restrictions.

Personnel are required to take care when handling confidential information, such as information relating to a client's trades or personal details. In particular, Personnel are required to ensure that they do not leave documents containing confidential information on their desks and that they refrain from discussing confidential information in circumstances where it could be overheard by other Personnel who have no need to know such information.

- 58.5.4 Restriction on access to information/electronic data. The access to computer drives and to files located within drives is restricted by the use of passwords and user IDs. Computers are automatically locked if unattended for a short period. In addition, Personnel are reminded of the importance of data protection.
- 58.5.5 Gifts and inducements. Personnel may not solicit or accept any gift or inducement which may influence their independence or business judgment or which could create a conflict with any duty owed to us or our clients. This restriction does not include special promotions on products and services which have been agreed by our senior management, nor does it cover corporate gifts and hospitality which are considered to be incidental to our ordinary business. Examples of gifts and inducements which may not be offered or accepted include cash, gifts readily convertible into cash or any other object of significant value.

External business interests

Personnel undertake that they will not (unless granted prior written consent from our senior management or permitted under the terms of their employment) be engaged in or have an interest, either directly or indirectly, in any trade, business or occupation, which is or may be in competition with us and/or which would involve use of our time, property, facilities or resources.

Segregation of duties.

Job roles are designed to limit the potential for conflicts of interest. Where appropriate and proportionate, systems and controls exist to prevent Personnel from undertaking roles where such a conflict may exist. However, due to the nature, scale and complexity of our business, there can be occasions when a member of staff is required to undertake duties that could give rise to a conflict. In this event, every effort is made to ensure that such circumstances exist only for a limited period or that additional controls are in place to identify inappropriate behaviour.

All Personnel are regularly assessed for competency for their roles and Personnel are required to follow the internal procedures detailed in our Compliance Manual. Where a potential conflict may exist within a role, additional monitoring, control and sign-off procedures are in place to mitigate any such conflict. Audit records, reconciliation procedures and Compliance

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

monitoring arrangements are also in place to ensure all processes are adequately controlled and reviewed.

58.6 Whistleblowing Policy

We are committed to ensuring that malpractice is prevented and, should it arise, to deal with it immediately.

Employees are informed as to whom they can and should report public interest issues in the Company's Whistleblowing Policy.

Employees should follow the steps laid out in this procedure, ensuring they are able to raise genuine concerns about malpractice without fear of harassment or victimisation.

58.7 Disclosure policy

We believe that our internal policies and procedures, systems and controls, generally mitigate the risk of any conflict of interest arising, either between us and our client or between two or more of our clients.

Where, however, the potential for conflict arises and that conflict cannot be avoided we would either make a full disclosure or, if it is considered that the disclosure is an inappropriate method of managing the conflict, we would not proceed with the matter or transaction giving rise to the conflict.

If any Personnel are aware of any circumstances which may give rise to a conflict of interest, they must immediately refer the matter to the Compliance Department.

58.8 Policy Review

We regularly review our Conflicts of Interest Policy to ensure that it covers conflicts that can be reasonably expected to arise within the course of our business. Any significant amendments to this Policy must be approved by our senior management.

PART D: PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT PLATFORM

59. Portfolio Management Platform

59.1 Introduction

- 59.1.1 This part is applicable only to those Clients who are eligible and use the Portfolio Management platform provided by the Company.
- 59.1.2 The Company shall allow participation and use of Portfolio Management platform subject to the fulfilment of Client's obligations under this Agreement and of any other requirement of becoming Portfolio Manager or PM Investor or an Associate as applicable from time to time by the Company.

59.2 Portfolio Manager

- 59.2.1 A Client shall be eligible to become a Portfolio Manager and use the Portfolio Management platform provided by the Company provided that he/she meets any applicable requirements required from time to time by the Company.
- 59.2.2 Subject to clauses 61.1.2 and 61.2.1 above herein, Client becomes a Portfolio Manager when creating his/her first Fund. In order to create, manage and maintain a Fund the Portfolio Manager should:
 - (i) Choose a name for the Fund;
 - (ii) Describe the Fund;
 - (iii) Choose an allocation type from the options provided by the Company from time to time;
 - (iv) Set the minimum Fund Investment to the Fund;
 - (v) Choose the leverage for the Fund from the options provided by the Company from time to time;
 - (vi) Set the Performance Fee type and size from the options provided by the Company from time to time;
 - (vii) Provide any other information required by the Company from time to time.
 - (viii) Meet any requirement required by the Company from time to time such as without limitation in relation to minimum and/or maximum size of Fund Investments, the allocation types and Portfolio Manager's trading reliability level as these requirements shall be notified from time to time by the Company and/or as these can be found in the Portfolio Manager's Personal Area and/or the Website and/or any other document and/or policy that might be provided by the Company from time to time.
- 59.2.3 To invite a PM Investor to invest in a Fund, the Portfolio Manager should share a Fund link to or code for the Fund. Funds are not made publicly available, and only individuals and/or legal entities who have received a link to or code for the Fund will be able to invest. After the Client decides to invest in a Fund he/she should sign any required documentation by the Company and send a request to invest in the Fund. The Portfolio Manager is allowed to accept or reject requests to invest in a Fund. After the request is accepted by the Portfolio Manager, the Client has the opportunity to make Fund Investment/s in this Fund.
- 59.2.4 Portfolio Manager is only able to place Orders connected to a Fund and is prohibited to make withdrawals or transfers.
- 59.2.5 The Portfolio Manager acknowledges and agrees that materials created, published and disseminated by him/her in relation to the Portfolio Management, within and outside the Portfolio Management platforms, including but not limited to Fund's information (e.g. biography, photo, Fund name, Fund description, social media page of the connected Fund) shall not:
 - (a) contain materials which are not in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and/or any other regulation of the Company and/or contain illegal and/or unethical references, and/or it contains personal or other information not related to the Fund, and/or does not make sense and/or lacks consistency

- and/or provides misleading or unclear or unfair information and/or infringe third party rights, including trademark and other intellectual property rights;
- (b) mislead and/or insult and/or contain racist or religious references and/or refer to illegal actions, and/or do not respect certain morality or ethical standards;
- (c) claim Portfolio Manager's eligibility to provide the services which may require a license, registration and/or notification in their state of residency and/or in the residency states of PM Investor/s;
- (d) introduce or present Portfolio Manager as an employee or representative of the Company and/or claim, directly or indirectly, that the Company and/or its Affiliates endorse, maintain any control and/or guarantee the accuracy and/or completeness of any Portfolio Manager's statement or their activities;
- (e) contain sexually explicit and/or any grossly offensive content, including expressions of bigotry,racism, hatred or profanity or that is hateful, threatening, or pornographic; incite violence or that contain nudity or graphic or gratuitous violence;
- (f) contain a picture that presents a minor (child);
- (g) contain, post or send unauthorized commercial communications (such as spam);
- (h) collect and/or use/copy users' content or information, or otherwise accessing Website and/or the Portfolio Management platform, using automated means (such as harvesting bots, robots, spiders, or scrapers);
- (i) engage in unlawful multi-level marketing, such as a pyramid scheme on our Websites and/or using our Services;
- (j) contain viruses or other malicious code;
- (k) solicit personal information and/or login information or access an account belonging to someone else;
- (I) disable, overburden, or impair the proper working of Company, such as a denial of service attack and/or facilitate or encourage any violations of these rules;
- (m) make misleading and/or absolute and/or untrue statements about the performance of the Fund and/or guarantee the performance of the Fund;
- (n) contain information which is not related to the Fund, does not make sense and/or lacks consistency or which is not balanced enough overwhelmed on the positive side.
- (o) contain false statements about its knowledge and experience and/or its trading strategy and/or its authorization and/or mislead in any way the PM Investors and/or any other users;
- (p) contain statements which are abusive or defamatory or harassing, and/or insulting statements to the Company, its affiliates, employees, shareholders, and/or any of its Associates and/or other users or otherwise;
- (q) contain statements which advertise or promote any other entities and/or any services unrelated to the product;
- (r) use the Company's websites and/or any Company's Services to do anything unlawful, misleading, malicious, or discriminatory;
- (s) make references to and/or use visuals/logos of third parties including but not limited to regulatory bodies, authorities, and others without possessing the relevant permissions;

- (t) create fund names and/or fund descriptions which do not make sense or have actual/useful meaning;
- (u) make any references to bank account details;
- (v) make unsubstantiated restrictions/giving instructions to investors on how, when, and how much to invest and/or withdraw, or similar.
- (w) include any links in the Portfolio Management platform, such as social media links to profiles which he does not personally manage.
- (x) shall not state and/or imply and/or deceive and/or impersonate that the Fund is managed and/or represented by an individual and/or a legal entity other than the individual and/or the legal entity registered and approved by the Company.
- (y) breach any applicable guidelines and/or policies as published by the Company from time to time on the Company's Website.
- 59.2.6 The Company reserves the right at its absolute discretion, but in any case is under no obligations, to close any or all Open Position(s) within a Fund at any time. This right is reserved only for the benefit of the Company in order to prevent or stop activities that may bring any type of loss or damage in the Company.
- 59.2.7 In addition to clause 14 of the current Agreement each of the following constitutes an "Event of Default" for the Portfolio Manager:
 - (a) if the Portfolio Manager's Fund is carrying excessive risk for a long period of time;
 - (b) the provided Portfolio Manager's biography, photo, Fund name, Fund description, and/or any other information provided as part of the Fund requirements, is not in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and/or any other regulation of the Company and/or it contains illegal and/or unethical references and/or does not make sense and/or lacks consistency and/or provides misleading information;
 - (c) the Portfolio Manager has not been fully verified and/or does not meet any requirements as provided by the Company from time to time;
 - (d) the Portfolio Manager has been inactive and/or has no trading activity connected to the Fund for more than seven (7) calendar days;
 - (e) the Portfolio Manager has been terminated in accordance with paragraph 10 of Part A of this Agreement;
 - (f) if the Portfolio Manager's description of the Fund does not match the actual trading activity in the same Fund;
 - (g) If a substantial portion of the trades in a Portfolio Manager's Fund are identical or similar to the trades of another Fund, to the extent that it appears they are mimicking or replicating those trades;
 - (h) the Portfolio Manager has carried out trading:
 - 1. which can be characterized as excessive and/or without legitimate intent, in order to profit from market movements;
 - 2. while relying on price latency and/or arbitrage opportunities;

- 3. which can be considered in the Company's sole discretion as market abuse and/or market manipulation and/or fraudulent activity;
- 4. During abnormal market/trading conditions.
- the Portfolio Manager is not a holder of a license, registration and/or notification and/or of any other authorisation required in his/her state of residency and/or in the residency states of PM Investors;
- (j) the Portfolio Manager fails to perform or breaches any obligation due to the Company and/or where any representation or warranty made by the Portfolio Manager is or becomes untrue;
- (k) if the Portfolio Manager's account does not have sufficient funds as per the minimum requirements of the specific Portfolio Management account type;
- (I) If the Portfolio Manager does not abide by or is in breach of any applicablethe Content Guidelines.
- (m) for any other reason or circumstance where the Company reasonably believes that it is necessary or desirable to take any action set out in clause 61.2.8 below herein.
- 59.2.8 If an Event of Default occurs the Company reserves the right at its absolute discretion, but in any case is under no obligation, at any time with or without Written Notice, to take any of the following actions:
 - (a) terminate this Agreement with immediate effect;
 - (b) reject and/or block the availability of a proposed and/or existing Portfolio Manager;
 - (c) freeze and/or suspend and/or terminate and/or close or block any and/or all Fund/s managed by the Portfolio Manager and/or any open positions and/or deny access to Portfolio Management platform and/or refuse payment of Performance Fee;
 - (d) change the status of the Fund/s to the "close-only" mode by revoking Portfolio Manager ability to open new position(s);
 - (e) request to make amendments on the description of the Fund/s;
 - (f) take any other action(s) in relation to the Fund/s in order to rectify the Event of Default or minimize any type of loss or damage to the Company;
 - (g) reject or refuse any request of the PM to create a new Fund(s);
 - (h) adjust the Fund(s) balance to remove illicit profit;
 - (i) any other action as deemed fit at the absolute discretion of the Company.
- 59.2.9 The Performance Fee may be determined by the Portfolio Manager for each Fund and for each PM Investor in it. The Performance Fee shall not be changed after the specific Fund is created.
- 59.2.10 The Portfolio Manager shall receive the Performance Fee for any positive returns of PM Investors in USD currency, which is calculated as indicated on the Company's Website and/or in any relevant mobile application/s. Performance Fee shall be calculated on the aggregated profits on each Fund and proportionally on the individual Fund Investment/s made by the PM Investors. The Performance Fee is calculated and credited to the Portfolio Manager's Account at the end of the Billing Period. The Performance Fee is subject to any deductions related to the Shared Fee of an Associate as

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

described below herein and in such a case a Personal Performance Fee shall be received by the Portfolio Manager which shall be calculated as per below:

Personal Performance Fee= Total Performance Fee amount from all Investments in a Fund - Shared Fee

- 59.2.11 In the event that a Fund has been terminated before the end of the Billing Period, the Performance Fee shall be calculated at the time of Fund termination and credited to the Portfolio Manager's account at the end of the Billing Period.
- 59.2.12 It is hereby understood and agreed by the Portfolio Manager that Clients remain Company's Clients at all times.
- 59.2.13 The Portfolio Manager represents and warrants that is duly authorized to enter into this Agreement and maintains any applicable license and/or certification and/or authorisation during the Portfolio Management activities and/or the trading operations of Fund(s) and shall exercise proper skill and care, professional and technical expertise, diligence, morality and impartiality which are necessary, taking into account the complexity of trading.
- 59.2.14 The Company will not in any way be liable for any losses incurred in the Funds, nor shall be liable for anything happening outside of the Company's control.
- 59.2.15 The Portfolio Manager is not allowed to publish, reproduce, transmit, or otherwise reproduce information relating to the Funds and/or the Portfolio Management to any third party without the Company's prior written consent.
- 59.2.16 The Portfolio Manager irrevocably and unconditionally agrees and hereby authorizes the Company to provide Clients with access and/or the option to invest in the Fund(s) upon fulfillment of any applicable requirements set by the Company at its absolute discretion. Upon investing in a Fund, Portfolio Manager authorizes the Company and Company shall have the right to take all necessary actions deemed fit so that Client is allowed to invest and/or access the Fund(s).
- 59.2.17 The Portfolio Manager authorizes the Company to use any information related to the Portfolio Manager and/or the Fund(s) in any way it chooses and make it public or communicate it as deemed appropriate, in any way and with any means in its absolute discretion.

59.3 PM Investor

59.3.1 Only individuals and/or legal entities who receive a Fund link or code for the Fund by the Portfolio Manager might be able to invest in a Fund and become PM Investors. In order to invest in a Fund, the PM Investor shall first become a Client of the Company as per the terms of this Agreement and meet any requirements imposed by the Company and/or accept and/or sign any other applicable documentation required by the Company from time to time. By joining and investing into a Fund with a Fund Investment, the PM Investor agrees to the following:

- a. To authorize the Portfolio Manager as its true and lawful Attorney and Agent with full power and authority to act as a Portfolio Manager on the Fund Investment and instructs the Portfolio Manager to act on his/her behalf in connection to the Fund Investment/s;
- b. To authorize and instruct the Portfolio Manager to use Company's Trading Platform for trading using the Fund Investment/s;
- c. That investing in a Fund bears its own fees, charges and Performance
- d. To authorize the Company to accept trading orders from the Portfolio Manager in relation to the Fund Investment;
- e. To authorize and instruct the Company to transfer the Performance Fee from the Fund Investment to the Portfolio Manager's Account at the end of each Billing Period.
- f. Authorizes the Company to use any information related to the PM Investor and/or the Fund Investment in any way it chooses and make it public or communicate it as deemed appropriate, in any way and with any means in its absolute discretion.
- 59.3.2 Reports and/or information in relation to the Fund Investments while using the Portfolio Management service shall be available on the Website and/or in any relevant mobile application as applicable from time to time.
- 59.3.3 The PM Investor may start the Fund Investment, deposit funds and/or withdraw any available funds to and from his/her Wallet in accordance with the procedures and restrictions available from time to time on the Portfolio Management mobile applications and/or Website and/or any other website maintained by the Company for Portfolio Management and subject to the Agreement.
- 59.3.4 PM Investor can only use the Wallet for the Portfolio Management service and is not allowed to execute any trading operations on the Wallet on its own.
- 59.3.5 The PM Investor may deposit funds into the Investment Wallet via the payment systems/methods made available by the Company for the Portfolio Management platform from time to time.
- In order to terminate the Fund Investment, PM Investor should send a Fund Investment termination request to the Portfolio Manager. In case the termination request is not accepted by the Portfolio Manager after thirty-six (36) hours, the Fund Investment will be terminated automatically. The Client acknowledges and agrees that the Fund Investment can't be terminated outside of normal trading hours and Portfolio Manager is authorised to perform trading operations on the Fund until termination occurs. Any Fund Investment termination request which has been accepted by the Portfolio Manager or has expired outside of the normal trading hours will be executed after trading resumes.
- 59.3.7 Upon termination of Fund Investment as described in clause 61.3.6 above, funds available as a result of the Fund Investment in relevant Fund(s), shall be credited to PM Investor's Wallet.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 59.3.8 The Company reserves the right at its absolute discretion to close any or all Open Position(s) of a Fund at any time.
- 59.3.9 The PM Investor acknowledges and accepts that by making a Fund Investment into a Fund of a specific Portfolio Manager he/she accepts the Performance Fee and Leverage as well as other conditions set for the Fund by the respective Portfolio Manager;
- 59.3.10 In addition to clause 14 of the current Agreement, each of the following constitutes an "Event of Default" for the PM Investor:
 - a. The Fund in which PM Investor made a Fund Investment is subject to an Event of Default as this defined in clause 61.2.7 above herein.
 - b. The PM Investor is misusing the Portfolio Management service in order to mimic or replicate trades conducted in a Fund into his personal trading account with the Company.
 - c. Failure of the PM Investor to provide an amount due under the Agreement;.
 - d. Failure of the PM Investor to perform any obligation due to the Company;
 - e. Any other circumstance where the Company reasonably believes that it is necessary or desirable to take any action set out in clause 3.11 below.
- 59.3.11 If an Event of Default occurs the Company may, at its absolute discretion, at any time and without prior Written Notice, take one or more of the actions described in clause 61.2.8 herein above, in addition to Clause 14.
- 59.3.12 The PM Investor acknowledges and accepts that aFund can be terminated in case of an Event of Default either from Portfolio Manager/s or PM Investors side and in this case Orders in this Fund will be closed in the order decided by the Company.
- 59.3.13 PM Investor may not be able to see the individual Orders made by the Portfolio Manager if the latter decides to do so.
- 59.3.14 The PM Investor is not allowed to publish, reproduce, transmit, or otherwise reproduce information relating to the Funds and/or the Portfolio Management to any third party without the Company's prior written consent.
- 59.3.15 The PM Investor irrevocably and unconditionally acknowledges and agrees that any description provided by the Portfolio Manager in relation to the Fund, including the news feed and/or any other means has not been approved by the Company. The PM Investor acknowledges, agrees, and undertakes to perform his own due diligence on the Portfolio Manager and the relevant Fund before investing with the relevant Fund
- 59.3.16 The PM Investor acknowledges and agrees that the Company shall not be liable for any losses incurred in the Fund.

59.4 Allocation type

59.4.1 The Company will provide Portfolio Manager with two options for managing Fund Investments – so called allocation types. The Portfolio Manager should choose between "lot allocation" and "equity allocation" when creating a Fund.

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

The Company reserves the right not to provide one of those options to any Portfolio Manager on its own discretion and/or to impose specific requirements and/or criteria in order to use and/or when using any of the above allocation types as these shall be communicated by the Company from time to time and/or as these can be found in the Portfolio Manager's Personal Area and/or the Website.

- In order to run a Fund with lot allocation, the Portfolio Manager should make a deposit to the Fund. All Fund Investments made to the Fund with lot allocation will be transferred to the Investment subaccount dedicated to the exact Fund Investment. After a Fund Investment is made, all the existing Open Positions made by the Portfolio Manager under that particular Fund will automatically be followed and copied to the Fund Investment subaccount together with any further new trading orders performed by the Portfolio Manager under the specific Fund.
- 59.4.3 The PM Investor and/or the Portfolio Manager acknowledge and agrees that for Funds with lot allocation:
 - (i) all Orders made by the Portfolio Manager will be followed and copied by the Fund Investment subaccount in accordance with the copy coefficient as indicated on the Company's Website and/or on the Portfolio Management mobile application;
 - (ii) variations in the Orders' pricing may occur from the moment that the PM Investor made a Fund Investment to a specific Fund to the actual moment when an Order opened by the Portfolio Manager, under the specific Fund, was copied to the Fund Investment subaccount;
 - (iii) the Company reserves the right at any time with or without notice to close and/or pause and/or suspend and/or stop copying any Portfolio Manager's account(s), and/or Fund and/or Order either of the PM Investor or Portfolio Manager.
- 59.4.4 All Fund Investments made to a Fund with "equity allocation" will be deducted from the Wallet/s and allocated to the master trading account of the Portfolio Manager connected to that specific Fund and the total amount of money will be displayed as available for trading by the Portfolio Manager. Orders placed by the Portfolio Manager will be split proportionally to the PM Investors in accordance to the respective Fund Investments being made. Only new Orders performed by the Portfolio Manager under the specific Fund will be allocated to each Fund Investment.
- 59.4.5 The PM Investor and/or the Portfolio Manager acknowledge and agree that for Funds with equity allocation:
 - (i) all Orders made by the Portfolio Manager will be allocated to the Fund Investment subaccount in accordance with the ratio of investment equity to the Fund equity calculated at the moment of the Orders' opening. Allocation is executed as described on the Company's Website and/or on the Portfolio Management mobile application;
 - (ii) the Company reserves the right at any time with or without notice to close and/or pause and/or suspend and/or stop allocating any Portfolio Manager's

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

account(s), and/or Fund and/or Order either of the PM Investor or Portfolio Manager.

59.5 Associate

- 59.5.1 In order to become an Associate in a Fund, an individual and/or a legal entity shall first become a Client of the Company as per the terms of this Agreement and meet any requirements imposed by the Company from time to time. A Client shall be eligible to become an Associate in a Fund of a Portfolio Manager upon receipt of an invitation link by the Portfolio Manager and acceptance of the invitation by the Client and provided that any applicable requirements required by the Company from time to time are met.
- 59.5.2 Prior to inviting a Client to become an Associate in a Fund, the Portfolio Manager should define the relevant Fee Sharing Rate of the Fund and/or any other parameters required from time to time and share the invitation link with the proposed Associate. Upon acceptance of such an invitation the Client shall become an Associate in a Fund and eligible for a Shared Fee.
- 59.5.3 It is hereby acknowledged and agreed by the Portfolio Manager and/or the Associate that:
 - (i) only Funds with Equity Allocation type should be eligible to have and/or invite an Associate;
 - (ii) invitations to become an Associate are not made publicly available and only individuals and/or legal entities who have received an invitation to become an Associate and accepted such an invitation and met any other applicable requirements of the Company shall become an Associate in a Fund;
 - (iii) each Fund shall be eligible to have only one, identical or different, Associate;
- 59.5.4 It is hereby acknowledged and accepted by the Associate and/or the Portfolio Manager that the Fee Sharing Rate shall be defined by the Portfolio Manager in advance of the invitation to the Client and it can be changed/modified/disabled by the Portfolio Manager at any time prior to acceptance of the invitation by the Client. Furthermore, the Portfolio Manager can, at its absolute discretion, revoke the invitation, prior to its acceptance by the Client.
- 59.5.5 It is hereby acknowledged by the Associate and/or the Portfolio Manager that, once a Client accepts the invitation and becomes an Associate in a Fund:
 - (i) the Associate shall have the right to invite PM Investors in the Fund;
 - (ii) any accrued Shared Fee shall be credited to Associates' Client Account at the end of the Billing Period at the time that Portfolio Manager receives its' Personal Performance Fee;
 - (iii) if an Associate receives Shared Fee from more than one Funds, the Shared Fee shall be paid with separate transactions from each Fund;
 - (iv) the Fee Sharing Rate can be changed/modified by the Portfolio Manager and/or an Associate can be removed and/or disabled by the Portfolio Manager at any time and without any cause by contacting the Company in accordance with the procedure set by the Company from time to time as this can be found on the Portfolio Manager's Personal Area and/or the Website. Any such changes shall be effective from the next Billing Period and the

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- Associate shall be eligible solely for any accrued Shared Fee prior to the beginning of the next Billing Period which shall be credited to Associates' Client Account as described in section 5.5(b) Part G above herein. Any changes and/or modifications to the Fee Sharing Rate and/or removal of the Associate from a Fund as described in this clause, shall be communicated by the Company to the Portfolio Manager and/or the Associate from time to time and/or they will be reflected in their Personal Area and/or the Website.
- (v) Any information in regards to the Shared Fee and/or fees reports and/or other related information while being an Associate in a Fund shall be available on the Website and/or the Personal Area and/or they shall be communicated by the Company to the Portfolio Manager and/or the Associate from time to time.
- 59.5.6 The Associate will not be able to access the Fund and/or any Investments made by PM Investors in the Fund and is not allowed to execute any trading operations on the Fund.
- 59.5.7 Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Associate will be able to make withdrawals of the Shared Fee in accordance with the procedures, restrictions and payment systems available from time to time from the Company.
- 59.5.8 The Associate authorizes the Company to use any information related to the Associate in any way it chooses and make it public or communicate it as deemed appropriate, in any way and with any means in its absolute discretion.
- 59.5.9 The Company reserves the right at its absolute discretion to remove and/or disable an Associate from a Fund.
- 59.5.10 The Associate is not allowed to publish, reproduce, transmit, or otherwise reproduce information relating to the Funds and/or the Portfolio Management to any third party without the Company's prior written consent.

59.6 Portfolio Management Acknowledgement of Risk and Consents

- 59.6.1 The PM Investor and/or the Associate acknowledges that the Funds are created and managed by Portfolio Managers on their own, and the Company does not provide any guarantee as to the performance of any Fund. The PM Investor and/or the Associate waives the right to request the Company to close any or all Open Position(s) within a Fund.
- 59.6.2 The Company accepts no responsibility for the activities of the Portfolio Managers and the performance of the Funds as well as no liability for any loss or damage related to investing in the Funds. Statistics and indicators provided by the Company for each Fund have inherent limitations. Past performance is not indicative of future results. No representation is being made by the Company that the Funds will or are likely to achieve profits or losses. PM Investors are advised to take the necessary precautions throughout the investing process.
- 59.6.3 It is the responsibility of the PM Investor to understand and acknowledge the risks before making Fund Investments and that he/she may suffer losses due to lack of diversification and/or situations where the Fund is too heavily exposed in any type of financial risk such as without limitation credit risk, currency risk,

- concentration risk, geographical risk and that he/she may end up losing entire investment. It is understood that the Company does not pay or review the activities of Portfolio Managers neither confirm their experience, professionalism or guarantee the performance of the Fund(s).
- 59.6.4 The Company shall not be held liable for any omission, deliberate omission or fraud by a Portfolio Manager, unless to the extent where this would be the result of wilful default or fraud on the part of the Company.
- 59.6.5 Any description and/or information in relation to a Fund is not considered as confidential and/or personal identifiable information. The Portfolio Manager is able to see the name and the country of the PM Investor and vice-versa the PM Investor has the ability to see the name and the country of the Portfolio Manager and any other information made available through the Fund.
- 59.6.6 The Company on its sole discretion and under no obligations is authorized to disclose Portfolio Manager's information to the PM Investor and/or the Associate and vice-versa.
- 59.6.7 The Company reserves the right at any time with or without notice to close and/or pause and/or suspend any Portfolio Manager's account(s), and/or Fund and/or Order.
- 59.6.8 Performance statistics represented in relation to the Portfolio Manager and/or Fund are historical and the Company does not guarantee any profit for the PM Investor and/or Shared Fee for the Associate. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future results.
- 59.6.9 The Portfolio Manager and/or the PM Investor and/or the Associate acknowledges and agrees that the Company may use and/or pass and/or process information in relation to the Investment Fund in the Company's group of companies and/or external companies and/or consultants.
- 59.6.10 It is hereby acknowledged and agreed that the Portfolio Manager and/or the PM Investor and/or the Associate could be clients of different Company's group of companies.
- 59.6.11 The Portfolio Manager, the PM Investor and the Associate acknowledge and agree that are subject to limitations depending on their region.
- 59.6.12 The PM Investor acknowledges and agrees that the money invested belongs to the PM Investor and that it is prohibited to invest money from any other third party.
- 59.6.13 The PM Investor acknowledges that the Company does not make customized assessments of the PM Investors' profile, risk tolerance and/or investment objectives and that the PM Investor has no discretion over the Portfolio Manager's investment decisions.
- 59.6.14 The PM Investor acknowledges that neither the Portfolio Manager nor the Company provides a tailored investment plan or portfolio management that fits the PM Investors' objectives, needs and financial goals.
- 59.6.15 The PM Investor acknowledges and agrees that the Portfolio Manager shall not deposit funds and assets to the PM Investor's Trading Account(s), or redeem or withdraw funds or assets, or initiate transfers from or between PM Investor's Trading Account(s).

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 59.6.16 The PM Investor acknowledges and accepts that all the Fund(s), and their parameters and conditions are created and/or managed and/or set by the Portfolio Manager and that the Company solely allows the use of its Portfolio Management platform and/or applications, subject to any applicable rules as included in the Operational Agreements, thus no obligations arise against the Company with regards to any due diligence and/or review and/or assessment.
- 59.6.17 The PM Investor acknowledges and agrees that the Company shall have no responsibility or liability to the PM Investor in following the Portfolio Manager's instructions and that it is under no duty to supervise or otherwise know or review the trading practices, advice or any other acts carried out by the Portfolio Manager and the Company relies on the PM Investor monitoring the trading and transactions on the account(s) conducted by the Portfolio Manager.
- 59.6.18 The PM Investor acknowledges and agrees that the Portfolio Manager is not an employee, agent or representative of the Company, subject to the existence of any partnership or digital affiliate agreement and further that the Portfolio Manager does not have any power or authority to act on behalf of the Company or to bind the Company in any way.
- 59.6.19 The PM Investor acknowledges and accepts that, in providing an electronic or online trading system to the Portfolio Manager, the Company has the right but not the obligation to set limits, controls, parameters and/or other controls on the Portfolio Manager's ability to use such a system. The PM Investor accepts that if the Company chooses not to place any such limits or controls on the Portfolio Manager's trading, or if such limits or controls fail for any reason, the Company will not exercise oversight or control over instructions given by the Portfolio Manager and the PM Investor accepts full responsibility and liability for the Portfolio Manager's actions in such circumstances.
- 59.6.20 The PM Investor ratifies and accepts full responsibility and liability for all instructions given to the Company by the Portfolio Manager (and for all transactions that may be entered into as a result).

PART E: SOCIAL TRADING

60. Social Trading

60.1 Introduction

This Part is applicable only to those Clients who use the Social Trading service.

- 60.2 Investor
 - 60.2.1 The Investor, by following a Strategy of a Strategy Provider, hereby agrees to the following:
 - To authorize and instruct the Strategy Provider to act on his/her behalf in accordance with the specific Strategy in connection to the Investment Account;

- (ii) To authorize and instruct the Company to take any necessary action to follow the Strategy of the Strategy Provider selected by the Investor;
- (iii) Any Strategy selected to be followed by the Investor should be followed in the proportion of the funds of the Investor in the Investment Account;
- (iv) To authorize and instruct the Company to transfer the Strategy Provider's commission from the Investment Account to the account allocated by the Strategy Provider for this purpose at the end of each Social Trading Period.
- 60.2.2 Details and/or information in relation to the Investor's trading activities while using the Social Trading service shall be available on the Social Trading website and/or Social Trading mobile application.
- 60.2.3 The Investor may start copying a Strategy, deposit and transfer funds and/or withdraw any available funds to and from his/her Investment Account in accordance with the procedures and restrictions available from time to time on the Social Trading mobile applications and/or Website and/or any other website maintained by the Company for Social Trading and subject to the Agreement.
- 60.2.4 The Investor can transfer the funds allocated for following a specific Strategy from his/her Investment Account after he/she stops following a Strategy.
- 60.2.5 The Investor may stop following Strategy at any time during the time the market is open and the relevant Open Position(s) shall be closed at market price.
- 60.2.6 The Company reserves the right at its absolute discretion to close any or all Open Position(s) of a Strategy Provider at any time and the Investor's Account shall be adjusted accordingly.
- 60.2.7 The Social Trading system may close any or all Open Position(s) of an Investor at any time.
- 60.2.8 The Investor may deposit via the payment systems/methods available by the Company for the Social Trading service from time to time.
- 60.2.9 The Investor acknowledges and accepts that by following a Strategy of a specific Strategy Provider he/she accepts the commission and Leverage set by the respective Strategy Provider.
- 60.2.10 The Investor acknowledges and understands that he/she should always maintain the required Balance reflected in his/her Investment Account in order to follow the specific Strategy selected.
- 60.2.11 The Investor acknowledges and agrees that once he/she selects to start following and copying a specific Strategy, all the existing Open Positions under that particular Strategy will automatically be followed and copied by the Investor together with any further new trading orders performed by the Strategy Provider under the specific Strategy.
- 60.2.12 The Investor acknowledges and accepts that variations in the pricing may occur from the moment that the Investor selects to copy a specific Strategy to the actual moment that the Investor starts copying such a Strategy.
- 60.2.13 In addition to clause 14 of the current Agreement, each of the following constitutes an "Event of Default" for the Investor:

 The Investor has carried out trading through Social Trading:

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- (i) Which can be characterized as excessive, without legitimate intent, to profit from market movements;
- (ii) While relying on price latency or arbitrage opportunities;
- (iii) Which can be considered as market abuse;
- (iv) During abnormal market/trading conditions.
- 60.2.14 If an Event of Default occurs the Company may, at its absolute discretion, at any time and without prior Written Notice, take one or more of the following actions in addition to Clause 14 of Part A:
 - (i) Adjust the Investor's trading account balance to remove illicit profit;
 - (ii) Freeze and/or terminate and/or block the Strategy Provider's Strategy and/or deny access to Social Trading.
- 60.2.15 The Investor irrevocably and unconditionally acknowledges and agrees that any description provided by the Strategy Provider in relation to the Investment Account, including the news feed and/or any other means, has not been approved by the Company. The Investor acknowledges, agrees, and undertakes to perform his own due diligence on the Strategy Provider and the relevant Investment Account before investing with the relevant Investment Account.
- 60.2.16 The Investor acknowledges and agrees that the Company shall not be liable for any losses incurred in the Investment Account.

60.3 Strategy Provider

- 60.3.1 In order to create and maintain a Strategy the Strategy Provider should:
 - (i) Choose a name for the Strategy;
 - (ii) Describe the Strategy;
 - (iii) Set the commission;
 - (iv) Choose the Leverage of the Strategy from the options provided by the Company from time to time;
 - (v) Set a password for the operation of the Strategy Provider's account;
 - (vi) Deposit and maintain in the Strategy Provider's Account the minimum amount set by the Company from time to time;
 - (vii) Provide any other information required by the Company from time to time.
 - (viii) Meet any requirement required by the Company from time to time as these can be found in the Strategy Provider's Personal Area and/or the Website and/or any other document and/or policy or guidelines that might be provided by the Company or published to the Company's Website from time to time.
- 60.3.2 The Company reserves the right to reject and/or block the visibility of a proposed and/or existing Strategy for any reason including without limitation the below:
 - (i) The provided description of the Strategy is not in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and/or any other regulation of the Company and/or it contains illegal and/or unethical references, and/or it contains personal or other information not related to the Strategy, and/or does not make sense and/or lacks consistency and/or provides misleading information

- and/or infringe third party rights, including trademark and other intellectual property rights;
- (ii) The selected name for a Strategy is misleading and/or insulting and/or contains racist or religious references and/or refers to illegal actions, and/or does not respect certain morality or ethical standards;
- (iii) The selected picture connected to a Strategy presents a minor (child) and/or is inappropriate and/or is misleading and/or insulting of a race and/or any religion and/or refers to illegal actions, and/or does not respect certain morality standards and/or is unethical;
- (iv) The Strategy Provider's account does not have sufficient funds as per the minimum requirements of the specific Social Trading account type;
- (v) The Strategy Provider's account has not been fully verified in accordance with paragraph 62.3.2 of Part A;
- (vi) The Strategy Provider's Strategy has been inactive and/or has no trading activity upon it for more than seven (7) calendar days
- (vii) The Strategy Provider introduce or present himself as an employee or representative of the Company and/or claim, directly or indirectly, that the Company and/or its Affiliates endorse, maintain any control and/or guarantee the accuracy and/or completeness of any Strategy Provider's statement or their activities;
- (viii) The Strategy Provider content contains sexually explicit and/or any grossly offensive content, including expressions of bigotry, racism, hatred or profanity or that is hateful, threatening, or pornographic; incite violence or that contain nudity or graphic or gratuitous violence;
- (ix) The Strategy Provider post or send unauthorized commercial communications (such as spam);
- (x) The Strategy Provider collects and/or uses/copies users' content or information, or otherwise accessing Website and/or the Social Trading system, using automated means (such as harvesting bots, robots, spiders, or scrapers);
- (xi) The Strategy Provider engages in unlawful multi-level marketing, such as a pyramid scheme on our Websites and/or using our Services; ;
- (xii) The Strategy Provider's materials created contains viruses or other malicious code:
- (xiii) M. The Strategy Provider solicits personal information and/or login information or access an account belonging to someone else;
- (xiv) The Strategy Provider disables, overburdens, or impairs the proper working of Company, such as a denial of service attack and/or facilitates or encourages any violations of these rules;
- (xv) The Strategy Provider makes misleading and/or absolute and/or untrue statements about the performance of the Strategy and/or guarantee the performance of the Strategy;
- (xvi) The Strategy Provider materials contain information which is not related to the Strategy, does not make sense and/or lacks consistency or which is not balanced enough overwhelmed on the positive side.

- (xvii) The Strategy Provider's materials contain false statements about its knowledge and experience and/or its trading strategy and/or its authorization and/or mislead in any way the Investors and/or any other users;
- (xviii) The Strategy Provider's materials contain statements which are abusive or defamatory or harassing, and/or insulting statements to the Company, its affiliates, employees, shareholders, and/or any of its Associates and/or other users or otherwise;
- (xix) The Strategy Provider's materials contain statements which advertise or promote any other entities and/or any services unrelated to the product;
- (xx) The Strategy Provider uses the Company's websites and/or any Company's Services to do anything unlawful, misleading, malicious, or discriminatory;
- (xxi) The Strategy Provider makes references to and/or uses visuals/logos of third parties including but not limited to regulatory bodies, authorities, and others without possessing the relevant permissions;
- (xxii) The Strategy Provider creates strategy names and/or strategy descriptions which do not make sense or have actual/useful meaning;
- (xxiii) The Strategy Provider makes any references to bank account details;
- (xxiv) The Strategy Provider makes unsubstantiated restrictions/giving instructions to investors on how, when, and how much to invest and/or withdraw, or similar.
- (xxv) The Strategy Provider includes any links in the Social Trading system, such as social media links to profiles which he does not personally manage.
- (xxvi) The Strategy Provider states and/or implies and/or deceives and/or impersonates that the Strategy is managed and/or represented by an individual and/or a legal entity other than the individual and/or the legal entity registered and approved by the Company.
- (xxvii) The Strategy Provider does not abide by or is in breach of any applicable Content Guidelines.
- (xxviii) For any other reason considered as relevant and appropriate by the Company in its sole discretion.
- 60.3.3 The Company reserves the right at its absolute discretion to close any or all Open Position(s) of a Strategy Provider at any time.
- 60.3.4 The Strategy Provider understands and accepts that he/she shall not be able to withdraw any of his/her own funds in and from his/her Strategy Provider's account while his/her specific Strategy has any Open Positions.
- 60.3.5 In addition to clause 14 of Part A of the current Agreement each of the following constitutes an "Event of Default" for the Strategy Provider:
 - (i) If the Strategy Provider's Strategy is carrying excessive risk for a long period of time;
 - (ii) If the Strategy Provider's description of the Strategy does not match the actual trading conditions;
 - (iii) The Strategy Provider has carried out trading:
 - 1. Which can be characterized as excessive and/or without legitimate intent, to profit from market movements;

Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Bonovo Road – Fomboni, Island of Mohéli – Comoros Union.

- 2. While relying on price latency and/or arbitrage opportunities;
- 3. Which can be considered in the Company's sole discretion as market abuse;
- 4. During abnormal market/trading conditions.
- (iv) If the Strategy Provider is in breach of clause 62.3.2. Part F of this Client Agreement.
- 60.3.6 If an Event of Default occurs the Company may, at its absolute discretion, at any time with or without Written Notice, take any of the following actions in addition to clause 14:
 - (i) Freeze and/or terminate and/or block the Strategy Provider's Strategy and/or deny access to SocialTrading;
 - (ii) Request to make amendments on the description of the Strategy.
- 60.3.7 The Strategy Provider's commission is calculated and paid to the Strategy Provider at the end of the Social Trading Period connected with each Strategy.
- 60.3.8 The Strategy Provider 's commission may be determined by the Strategy Provider for each Strategy but may not exceed 50% of the Investor's Profit. The Strategy Provider's commission shall not be changed after the specific Strategy is created.
- 60.3.9 The Strategy Provider shall receive the Strategy Provider's commission for the positive returns of Investors in USD currency, which is calculated as indicated on the Company's Website and/or on the Social Trading mobile application.
- 60.3.10 In the event that an Investor stops following a specific Strategy of a Strategy Provider before the end of the Social Trading Period, the Strategy Provider's commission is calculated at the time of Strategy closing at the current market price.

60.4 Social Trading Acknowledgement of Risk and Consents

- 60.4.1 The Company does not provide any guarantee as to the performance of any Strategy.
- Any description and/or information in relation to a Strategy is not considered as confidential and/or personal information.
- 60.4.3 The Company reserves the right at any time with or without notice to close and/or pause and/or suspend and/or stop copying any Strategy Provider's account(s), and/or Strategy and/or Order either of the Investor or Strategy Provider.
- 60.4.4 Performance statistics represented in relation to Strategy Providers and/or Strategies are historical and the Company does not guarantee any profit for the Investor; past performance is not a reliable indicator of future results and the Investor is recommended to decide on the selection of a Strategy by reviewing the actual history and/or performance of the Strategy.
- 60.4.5 The Strategy Provider acknowledges that the Company may use and/or pass and/or process information in relation to the Strategy Provider's Strategy in

- the Company's group of companies and/or external companies and/or consultants.
- 60.4.6 The Strategy Provider and the Investor acknowledge and agree that are subject to limitations depending on their region.
- 60.4.7 The Investor acknowledges and agrees that the money invested belongs to the Investor and that it is prohibited to invest money from any other third party.